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Corperate Profile 

 

Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. (“XIB”), was established on August 31, 1985 

and headquartered in Xiamen. It is the first Sino-foreign joint venture bank in the 

People’s Republic of China. In 2013, XIB was wholly restructured from a limited 

liability company to a joint-stock limited company, and from a Sino-foreign joint 

venture bank to a Chinese commercial bank. 

For 30 years since its establishment, the Bank has been keeping forging ahead and 

attaching great importance to innovation and reform as it is dedicated to providing 

quality services to its clients and committed to attaining forefront status in the banking 

industry and creating superior value. Given that, it has gradually evolved into a 

commercial bank which is renowned for prudent development and profitability, 

enjoying a good reputation both at home and abroad. In 2014, XIB ranked among the 

top 1000 banks of the world listed by the Banker, a British professional magazine, and 

in the list, it took the 444
th

 position in terms of tier I capital and occupied the 320
th

 place 

in terms of total assets, which bears witness to its ongoing rise in ranking. The Bank has 

wholly-owned subsidiaries in both Hong Kong and Macau - Xiamen International 

Investment Co., Ltd. (“XII”) in Hong Kong and Luso International Banking Ltd. (“LIB”) 

in Macau. LIB, a comprehensive bank ranking among top four local banks in Macau in 

terms of key indicators, has 12 branches and has set up a representative office in 

Hengqin, Zhuhai in January 2014; in Mainland China, we operate over 40 branches in 

Beijing, Shanghai, Zhuhai, Xiamen, Fuzhou, Ningde, Longyan, Quanzhou and 

Zhangzhou, thus perfecting our nationwide network of branches gradually. 

Looking into the future, XIB will strive actively to provide our clients with warm, 

convenient, safe and professional high-quality services together with diversified and 

personalized comprehensive financial services and differentiated and tailored financial 

products and solutions, to attain promising returns for our shareholders, employees and 

the society. XIB looks forward to creating a brilliant future together with you! 
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Chairman’s Statement 

 

In 2014, in standing up to the five reforms of this age, i.e. interest rate 

liberalization, financial disintermediation, pan-asset management, big data and new 

regulatory standards, XIB achieved desirable results with foresight and sound judgment 

based on keen insight into the market, pioneering innovation, risk management and 

robust development by adhering to the working guideline of the year, carrying out 

reforms for enhancement and through driving medium and long-term strategic layout in 

an all-round way, including the reform of operation and management models , 

increasing capital and shares, issuing tier II capital bonds and the business operation 

network establishment. As at the end of 2014, our total assets reached 348.9 billion 

Yuan, up by 33.63% on a year-on-year basis while our market shares rose further. The 

Bank recorded after-tax profit of 2.228 billion Yuan at a year-on-year growth rate of 

33.53%. Its non-performing loan ratio was maintained at 0.46%, and asset quality 

continued to remain at a stable and optimal level. 

The spectacular results that we produced in 2014 were attributable to the strong 

guidance and support of governments at all levels and regulatory authorities, to the trust 

and assistance of all of our shareholders, clients and different sectors of the society, and 

to our staff’s persistent endeavor and hard work. On behalf of the Board of Directors, I 

would like to take this opportunity to express our heartfelt gratitude to leaders at all 

levels, our shareholders and clients for their long and lasting support and care for our 

development and sincere gratitude to the staff of our bank for their arduous endeavors. 

Looking into 2015, XIB will meet great challenges in terms of operation and 

management in deliberation of China’s current economic downturn pressure, acid test 

for the asset quality of the banking industry, gradual acceleration of interest rate 

liberalization and financial disintermediation as well as increasing competition in the 

banking industry. As the economic structural adjustment and a wide range of financial 

reforms enter the substantial implementation period in the “new normal” situation, and 

driven by a new round of capital increase and IPO, the Bank will still take full 

advantage of the development opportunities created by the reforms. To celebrate our 
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30
th

 anniversary and the successful ending of the Third Five-year Plan (2011-2015), we 

will keep up closely with the trend of times and pay tribute to our 30
th

 anniversary with 

outstanding performance through carrying forward the reform of operation and 

management models in an all-round way, speeding up strategic transformation and 

achieving continuous improvement of efficiency and effectiveness. 
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President’s Report 

 

In 2014, despite the adverse external situation featuring economic downturn, 

“Triple Superposition
1
”, tightened regulatory policies, etc., XIB unswervingly 

implemented relevant requirements of the General Shareholders’ Meeting and the Board 

of Directors and gave full play to the teamwork and dedication spirit. We broke 

bottlenecks through reform and achieved growth with innovation in order to consolidate 

the linkage among institutions both at home and abroad, intensify the marketing of 

financial solutions and promote the diverse development of corporate business, personal 

business, financial institutions and all lines of the financial market. Thus, we saw a new 

record high in terms of scale and profitability, significant optimization of business 

structures and asset quality at a stable and optimal level. As a result, the Bank 

accomplished the goals set by the Board of Directors in a comprehensive and 

overfulfilled way. 

As at the end of 2014, the Bank’s deposit and loan balances increased by 64.38% 

and 36.78%, respectively, in comparison the end of last year while a variety of 

businesses kept rapid growth; it registered the growth of after-tax profit for the whole 

year by 33.53% on a year-on-year basis, evidencing the simultaneous rapid rise of 

profitability; its non-performing loan and asset ratios were 0.46% and 0.21%, 

respectively, maintaining basically flat with the end of the previous year, and it held its 

asset quality at an optimal level against the backdrop of significant climb of 

non-performing ratios in the banking industry; its provision coverage was sufficient at 

the ratio of 415.66%. 

XIB unswervingly adheres to the strategic mindset of “acting with integrity, 

operating with wisdom, managing risks and managing in a lean way” while upholding 

the strategic positioning of “sticking to niche market, seizing advance opportunities, 

achieving in-depth development, creating differentiation and doing business 

internationally”. We build our unique soft power into the hard backbone of our 

development through pulling together to strengthen organizational and cultural 

advantages constantly, and create the impetus for competing aggressively and the 
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fundamental protection of healthy development through constructing the barriers to 

prevent and control risks with orderly and effective all-round quality management. In 

2014, XIB made significant progress in terms of medium and long-term layout with the 

successful completion of a new round of increase of capital and shares, the issuance of 

tier II capital bonds for the first time, promoted all-round acceleration of such major 

efforts as reforms of operation and management models, business operations network 

outlet arrangement, comprehensive operation and creation of cross-border platforms as 

well as the completed the research and development as well as successful launch of a 

new core IT supporting systems. 

Looking into 2015, XIB will experience the satisfactory accomplishment of the 

Third Five-year Plan (2011-2015) and another year of opportunities and challenges. We 

will further strengthen the forward-looking, up-front and initiative-driven operation and 

management, intensify the efforts for reform, innovation and operational transformation 

and further enhance all-round quality management to promote sustainable and rapid 

development of XIB. Thus, the Bank will accomplish the goal of its Third Five-year 

Plan in a comprehensive way, which shall pay tribute to XIB’s 30
th

 anniversary and 

place a high starting point for a new round of development. 
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Definition 
 

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise specified, the following terms 

shall bear the respective meanings as following: 

Term Definition 

The Bank, the Company, this Company, 

XIB 

Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. 

Articles of Association, these Articles of 

Association, the Company’s Articles of 

Association 

The Articles of Association of Xiamen 

International Bank Co., Ltd. 

The Central Bank, the Central Bank of 

China 

The People’s Bank of China 

CBRC China Banking Regulatory Commission 

CBRC Xiamen Xiamen Office of China Banking 

Regulatory Commission 

Yuan RMB Yuan 

Capital Management Measures, New 

Capital Management Measures 

The Measures on Capital Management of 

Commercial Banks (Tentative) 

promulgated by the CBRC in June 2012 

City Commercial Bank City Commercial Bank 

Domestic Institution All of the institutions that XIB has 

established in Chinese Mainland, 

including the head office of Xiamen 

International Bank Co., Ltd. 

Overseas Institution  Luso International Banking Ltd., Xiamen 

International Investment Co., Ltd. (Hong 

Kong) 

LIB Luso International Banking Ltd. 
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Important Notice 
 

The Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, directors, supervisors and senior 

management members of this Company hereby warranty that the information stated 

herein does not contain any false record, misleading statement or material omission, and 

they assume joint and several responsibilities for the authenticity, accuracy and 

completeness of the information herein. 

The financial figures and indicators contained herein were prepared in accordance 

with China Accounting Standards. Unless specifically stated, they are consolidated data, 

including both domestic and overseas data, and all of them are shown in RMB. 

Our auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Co., Ltd., conducted an 

audit on the 2014 Financial Report which was prepared in accordance with Chinese 

Accounting Standards, and the auditor has presented an audit report with standard and 

unqualified opinions. 

The Bank’s Chairman Mr. Weng Ruo Tong, President Mr. Lyu Yao Ming, Financial 

Officers Ms. Tsoi Lai Ha and Mr. Zou Zhiming hereby guarantee the authenticity, 

accuracy and completeness of the financial report contained in the Annual Report 2014. 
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Major Risk Notice 
The risks that this Company faces during its operation mainly include credit risk, 

market risk, liquidity risk, operating risk, compliance risk and technology risk, and we 

have taken measures to effectively manage and control various types of operational 

risks. Please refer to Chapter VI – Report of the Board of Directors. 
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Chapter I Corporate Information 
 

I. Legal Name in Chinese: 厦门国际银行股份有限公司 

For short: 厦门国际银行 

Legal Name in English: Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. 

II. Legal Representative: Weng Ruo Tong 

III. Board Secretary: Su Li Na 

Address: Xiamen International Bank Building, 8-10 Lujiang Road, Xiamen 

Postal Code: 361001 

Telephone: (86-592) 207 8888 

Fax: (86-592) 298 8788 

Email: xib@xib.com.cn 

IV. Registered Address: Floors 1-6, Xiamen International Bank 

Building, 8-10 Lujiang Road, Xiamen 

Office Address: Xiamen International Bank Building, 8-10 Lujiang Road, Xiamen 

Postal Code: 361001 

Internet Website: www.xib.com.cn 

V. Location of Availability of the Annual Report: the Office of the 

Board of Directors of the Bank 

VI. Other Relevant Information of the Company: 

Initial registration date: August 31, 1985 

Initial registration location: State Administration for Industry and Commerce of the 

People’s Republic of China 

Registration date of amendment to registration item(s): January 31, 2013 

Registration location of amendment to registration item(s): Administration for Industry 

and Commerce of Fujian 

Registration number of business license for corporate legal person: 350000400002013 

Taxation registration number: 350204612017727 

Organization code: 61201772-7 

CPA firm hired by the Company: PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Co., Ltd. 

http://www.xib.com.cn/
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(special general partnership) 

Office address of the CPA firm: 11/F, PricewaterhouseCoopers Center, Building 2, 

Corporate Avenue, 202 Hubin Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai 
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Chapter II Accounting and Business Figure Highlights 

 

I. Key Financial Figures and Indicators 

Reporting Period 

Business Performance (RMB Thousand 

Yuan) 
2014 

2013 

(Restated) 

2014 v.s. 2013 

Annual 

Growth (%) 

2012 

(Restated) 

 Net interest income 4,511,243 3,468,882 30.05% 2,017,771 

 Net non-interest income 1,093,189 1,002,811 9.01% 602,099 

 Operating income 5,604,431 4,471,693 25.33% 2,619,870 

 Business and administration expenses 1,530,113 1,241,247 23.27% 879,488 

 Asset impairment loss 854,182 783,409 9.03% 261,413 

 Operating profit 2,919,283 2,127,461 37.22% 1,294,344 

 Total profit 2,927,873 2,138,968 36.88% 1,297,395 

 Net profit attributable to shareholders of 

the Company 

2,227,580 

 

1,668,244 33.53% 1,002,160 

 Net profit attributable to the shareholders 

of the Company after deducting 

non-recurring profit and loss 

2,218,990 1,656,736 33.94% 999,108 

 Net cash flow from operating activities 41,204,867 42,640,870 -3.37% 90,571,426 

Per share (RMB Yuan/Share) 2014 
2013 

(Restated) 

2014 v.s. 2013 

Annual 

Growth (%) 

2012 

(Restated) 

  

 Basic earnings per share 

0.97   0.83  16.71%  0.55  

 Basic earnings per share after deducting 

non-recurring profit and loss 

0.97   0.83  16.71%  0.55  

  

 Net cash flow from operating activities 

per share 

17.97   21.27  -15.54%  50.10  
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Profitability Indicator 2014 
2013 

(Restated) 

2014 v.s. 2013 

Annual 

Growth (%) 

2012 

(Restated) 

 Average return on total assets 0.73% 0.71%  0.02  0.64% 

 Average return on net assets 16.87% 16.33%  0.54  15.01% 

  

 Average return on net assets after 

deducting non-recurring profit and loss 

16.80% 16.21%  0.59  14.96% 

 Cost-income ratio 27.30% 27.76%  -0.46  33.57% 

  

 Ratio of net income from processing fees 

and commission in operating income 

10.15% 19.37% -9.22 13.22% 

End of Reporting Period 

Scale Indicator (RMB Thousand Yuan) 2014 
2013 

(Restated) 

2014 v.s. 2013 

Annual 

Growth (%) 

2012 

(Restated) 

 Total assets 348,940,894 261,133,121 33.63% 206,870,889 

 Total loans and advances 111,373,540 81,424,222 36.78% 66,141,530 

 Total liabilities 333,494,802 250,170,416 33.31% 197,398,320 

 Total customer deposits 224,185,216 136,383,565 64.38% 96,285,973 

 Shareholders’ equities attributable to 

shareholders of the Company 

15,446,092 10,962,705 40.90% 9,472,569 

 Net assets per share attributable to 

shareholders of the Company (RMB 

Yuan/share) 

 6.74   5.47  23.15%  5.24  

Asset Quality Indicator 2014 
2013 

(Restated) 

 

2014 v.s. 2013 

Annual 

Variation 

Percentage 

2012 

(Restated) 
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 Non-performing loan ratio 

0.46% 0.40%  0.05  0.42% 

 Provision coverage ratio 415.66% 455.57%  -39.91  332.90% 

 Loan provision ratio 1.90% 1.84%  0.06  1.41% 

Capital Adequacy Indicator 
 

2014 

2013 

(Restated) 

2014 v.s. 2013 

Annual 

Variation 

Percentage 

2012 

(Restated) 

 Capital adequacy ratio 10.60% 11.37%  -0.77  10.97% 

  Core capital adequacy ratio 8.17% 9.78%  -1.61  9.96% 

  Total equities v.s. total assets ratio 4.43% 4.20%  0.23  4.58% 

Note: 1. Average return on total assets = net profit/average of opening and closing 

balances of total assets. 

2. Average return on net assets = net profit attributable to shareholders of the 

Company/average of opening and closing balances of shareholders’ equities attributable 

to the Company. 

3. Cost-income ratio = business and administration expenses/net operating 

income 

4. Ratio of net income from processing fees and commission in operating 

income = net income from processing fees and commission/net operating income. 

5. Non-performing loan ratio = non-performing loan balance/total loans and 

advances. 

6. Provision coverage ratio = loan impairment provision/non-performing loan 

balance. 

7. Loan provision ratio = loan impairment provision/total loans and advances 

8. Since 2013, the capital adequacy ratio shall be calculated in accordance 

with the New Capital Management Measures. 
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II. Supplementary Financial Figures and Indicators 

Key Indicators 
December 31, 

2014 

December 31, 

2013 

(Restated) 

December 31, 

2012 

(Restated) 

Liquidity ratio 
Summary 

(RMB) 

33.92% 51.71% 67.17% 

Loan-to-deposit ratio 

 

Summary 

(RMB) 

48.15% 59.70% 68.69% 

Interbank lending 

ratio 

 

Borrowed 

fund ratio 

3.31% 2.58% 2.76% 

Highest loan ratio of individual client 5.57% 7.48% 8.50% 

Credit concentration ratio of 

individual corporate client 
7.65% 

8.23% 12.42% 

Note: 1. Regulatory indicators are calculated in pursuance of relevant provisions of 

the regulations of the banking industry in China. 

2. Highest loan ratio of individual client = Highest total loan of individual 

client/net capital. 

3. Credit concentration ratio of individual corporate client = Total loan of the 

largest individual corporate client/net capital. 
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III. Composition of and Changes to Capital 

Currency Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan 

Item End of 2014 
End of 2013 

(Restated) 
End of 2012 

Net capital  20,043,277   12,408,228   9,946,100 

Hereinto: Net core tier I 

capital 
15,446,091 10,674,247 9,027,956 

Risk weighted assets  189,120,638   109,176,427  90,633,765 

Credit risk weighted assets  178,476,962   101,243,082  - 

Market risk weighted assets  2,883,230   2,230,966  - 

Operational risk weighted 

assets 
 7,760,445  

 5,702,379  - 

Note: Calculated in accordance with the New Capital Management Measures as of 

2013. The old capital management measures are applied to the report for 2012 without 

differentiating among credit risk weighted assets, market risk weighted assets and 

operational risk weighted assets. 
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Chapter III Changes in Share Capital and Shareholders 

 

I. Major Changes to Shareholding during the Reporting Period 

In August 2014, the Bank introduced 27 new shareholders, including Fujian 

Kanghong Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Huarongfeng Industrial (Group) Co., Ltd., ect., 

resulting in increase of 288,830,000 shares, making the total shares rise to 

2,293,130,000 shares and the number of shareholders increase to 89. In November 2014, 

Xiamen Xinlianfa Import & Export Co., Ltd. transferred all of its 400,000 shares to 

another shareholder of the Bank – Xiamen Aviation Development Corp. Ltd. As on 

December 31, 2014, we had 88 shareholders. The main changes to shares during the 

reporting period were as follows: 

Type/Name of Shareholder 

Shareholding 

Proportion 

before Change 

Shareholding 

Proportion 

at the End of 

the Reporting 

Period 

Number of 

Shares at the 

End of the 

Reporting Period 

(Ten Thousands 

Shares) 

Changes to 

Top Ten 

Shareholders 

Min Xin Holdings Limited 16.93% 14.80% 33,939.48 

Industrial and Commercial Bank 

of China Limited 
10.00% 8.74% 20,043.00 

Fujian Investment & Enterprise 

Holding Corporation 
9.68% 8.46% 19,401.62 

Xiamen C&D Corporation 

Limited 
9.00% 7.87% 18,038.70 

Asian Development Bank 5.33% 4.66% 10,689.60 

Sino Finance Group Limited 2.67% 2.33% 5,344.80 

Fujian Provincial 

Communication Transportation 

Group Co., Ltd. 

2.67% 2.33% 5,344.80 

CCB Trust Co., Ltd. 2.49% 2.18% 5,000.00 
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Shanghai Jiading Rail Transit 

Construction Investment Co., 

Ltd. 

2.49% 2.18% 5,000.00 

Zhuhai Huachuang Investment 

Management Co., Ltd. 
2.49% 2.18% 5,000.00 

Total Shares - - 229,313.00 

Hereinto: Percentage of foreign-owned shares 24.93% 21.79% 49,973.88 

 

II. Top Ten Shareholders and Their Shareholding during the 

Reporting Period 

XIB’s majority shareholder is Fujian Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. 

(“FIDC”), which holds 25.29% of the Bank’s shares in total directly and indirectly 

through Min Xin Holdings Limited (“Min Xin”) and Fujian Investment & Enterprise 

Holding Corporation. 

The top ten shareholders of XIB and their shareholdings during the reporting 

period were as follows: 

 Name 

Number of 

Shares Held 

during This 

Period 

(Ten Thousands 

Shares) 

Shareholding 

Proportion 

1 Min Xin Holdings Limited 33,939.48 14.80% 

2 
Industrial and Commercial Bank of 

China Limited 
20,043.00 8.74% 

3 
Fujian Investment & Enterprise Holding 

Corporation 
19,401.62 8.46% 

4 Xiamen C&D Corporation Limited 18,038.70 7.87% 

5 Asian Development Bank 10,689.60 4.66% 

6 Sino Finance Group Limited 5,344.80 2.33% 
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 Name 

Number of 

Shares Held 

during This 

Period 

(Ten Thousands 

Shares) 

Shareholding 

Proportion 

7 
Fujian Provincial Communication 

Transportation Group Co., Ltd. 
5,344.80 2.33% 

8 CCB Trust Co., Ltd. 5,000.00 2.18% 

9 
Shanghai Jiading Rail Transit 

Construction Investment Co., Ltd. 
5,000.00 2.18% 

10 

 

Zhuhai Huachuang Investment 

Management Co., Ltd. 

5,000.00 2.18% 

Total 127,802.00 55.73% 

 

III. Shareholders with over 5% Shareholding 

1. Min Xin Holdings Limited, listed in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. 

(“SEHK”), focuses on investment holding business, and its main holding subsidiaries 

include small-loan companies, insurance companies, real estate development companies, 

property investment companies and investment companies, covering business sectors 

such as banking, small-loan business, insurance, real estate development, property 

investment, high-tech industries, power sector and other investments. 

2. Established on January 1, 1984, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China 

Limited (“ICBC”) was formerly known as the Industrial and Commercial Bank of 

China, and it was restructured in its entirety to a company limited by shares on October 

28, 2005. ICBC successfully got listed in both Shanghai Stock Exchange (“SSE”) and 

the SEHK on October 27, 2006. As at the end of 2014, the ICBC had presence in six 

continents with an overseas network covering 41 countries and regions. It provided a 

wide range of financial products and services to 5.09 million corporate clients and 465 
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million individual clients through 17,122 domestic institutions, 338 overseas institutions, 

2,007 agencies as well as such distribution channels as online banking, telephone 

banking and self-service banking, creating a comprehensive and international business 

pattern focusing on commercial banking, by virtue of which it has maintained a leading 

position in commercial banking business in China. 

3. On April 29, 2009, as approved by Fujian Provincial People’s Government, 

Fujian Investment & Enterprise Holding Corporation was merged and reorganized with 

four provincial state-owned enterprises, including Fujian Investment & Development 

General Company, to establish Fujian Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. With 

the purpose of building Fujian and serving the west coast of Taiwan Straits, Fujian 

Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. focuses on industries and financial 

investment, and by using the unique business model of double-round coordination and 

interaction for mutual development, it mainly undertakes the functions given by Fujian 

Provincial People’s Government, such as investment in infrastructure facilities, basic 

industries and the financial industry, equity management and capital operation. Its line 

of business covers the power sector, gas sector, water-related affairs, railway 

construction, development and construction of industrial parks and experimental areas, 

banking, trust, securities, insurance, funds, venture capital investment, guarantee 

business, re-guarantee business, financial leasing, pawn business, small-loan business, 

bidding and tendering, auction, and asset operation and management in addition to 

many areas, including key industrial investments in Fujian Province as confirmed by 

Fujian Provincial People’s Government. It has investment projects inside and outside 

Fujian Province. 

4. Xiamen C&D Corporation Limited, incorporated in December 1980, has 

evolved into a large industrial investment enterprise group in Fujian Province with 

registered capital amounting to RMB 4.5 billion as well as both total assets and annual 

revenue exceeding RMB 100 billion. Its main business activities cover many sectors, 

including supply chain operation, real estate development, tourism and hospitality, 

conference and exhibition industry, etc. In 2014, it ranked the 128
th

 among China’s top 

500 enterprises and the 48
th

 among China’s top 500 enterprises in the service industry. 
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Besides, it has occupied the top position of top 100 enterprise groups in Fujian Province 

for many years consecutively. 

 

IV. Number of Shareholders 

By December 31, 2014, the number of shareholders of XIB was 88. 

 

V. Significant Related-party Transactions
2
 

In 2014, the Board of Directors of XIB approved five significant related-party 

transactions, namely, the provision of working capital loan to Xiamen C&D 

Corporation Limited at the amount of RMB 200 million, the comprehensive credit line 

for Fujian Huaxing Group Co., Ltd. at the amount of RMB 50 million, the interbank 

credit line for CCB Trust Co., Ltd. amounting to RMB 1.5 billion, the investment in two 

bonds with the total par value of RMB 280 million – “14 C&D MTN001” and “12 Min 

Jiao Yun MTN2,” and the comprehensive credit line for Min Xin Holdings Limited at 

the amount of HKD 100 million. All the above related-party transactions were 

conducted in compliance with business principles on the terms and conditions which 

were not superior to those of the similar transactions with non-related parties. 

By December 31, 2014, the Bank’s biggest single related-party credit client was 

Fujian Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. with the credit balance of RMB 630 

million, accounting for 3.19% of the consolidated net capital at the end of the fourth 

quarter of 2014 of the Bank; the highest credit balance of the single related-party group 

(Fujian Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. and its member enterprises) totaled 

RMB 680 million and the aggregated credit balance after deducting deposit pledge 

loans was RMB 680 million, making up 3.44% of the consolidated net capital at the end 

of the fourth quarter of 2014 of the Bank. All these practices were in compliance with 

the indicator requirements contained in the provisions on related-party credit 

concentration stipulated in the CBRC’s Administrative Measures on the Related-party 

Transactions between Commercial Banks and Their Insiders and Shareholders. 
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VI. Bond Issuances 

The Bank successfully issued Tier II capital bonds amounting to RMB 3 billion in 

the interbank bond market during the reporting period. 
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Chapter IV Overview of Directors, Supervisors, Senior 

Management, Employees and Organization 
 

I. Basic Information of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management 

(I) Basic Information of Directors 

Position Name Sex 

 

Year 

of 

Birth 

Other Title in Other 

Employer 

Whether 

Receiving 

Remunerations 

from the Bank 

Chairman 
Weng Ruo 

Tong 
Male 1954 

Chairman and Legal 

Representative of 

Fujian Investment & 

Development Group 

Co., Ltd. 

Board Chairman of 

Min Xin Holdings 

Limited 

No 

Vice 

Chairman, 

Executive 

Director 

Lyu Yao 

Ming 
Male 1954 

President of Xiamen 

International Bank 

Co., Ltd. 

Yes 

Shareholder’s 

Representative, 

Director 

Peng 

Jinguang 
Male 1962 

 

Deputy Secretary of 

the Party Committee, 

General Manager and 

Vice Chairman of 

Fujian Investment & 

Development Group 

Co., Ltd. 

No 
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Position Name Sex 

 

Year 

of 

Birth 

Other Title in Other 

Employer 

Whether 

Receiving 

Remunerations 

from the Bank 

Shareholder’s 

Representative, 

Director 

Li Jinhua Male 1963 

 

Director of Min Xin 

Holdings Limited 

No 

Shareholder’s 

Representative, 

Director 

Song Hanyi Male 1971 

 

Vice General Manager 

of the Human 

Resources Department 

of Industrial and 

Commercial Bank of 

China Limited 

No 

Shareholder’s 

Representative, 

Director 

Huang 

Wenzhou 
Male 1965 

Deputy Secretary of 

the Party Committee 

and General Manager 

of Xiamen C&D 

Corporation Limited, 

No 

Shareholder’s 

Representative, 

Director 

Roy 

Doumani 
Male 1935 

Manager of Sino 

Finance Group L.L.C.  
No 

Shareholder’s 

Representative, 

Director 

Xu Ye Male 1975 
Vice President of CCB 

Trust Co., Ltd. 
No 

Shareholder’s 

Representative, 

Director 

Wang 

Xiaohong 
Male 1976 

Financial Director and 

Vice General Manager 

of Shanghai 

Shangshen Investment 

Co., Ltd. 

No 
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Position Name Sex 

 

Year 

of 

Birth 

Other Title in Other 

Employer 

Whether 

Receiving 

Remunerations 

from the Bank 

Independent 

Director 

Zheng 

Zhenlong 
Male 1966 

 

Professor of Financial 

Engineering in Xiamen 

University, Doctoral 

Tutor, Member of the 

Discipline Appraisal 

Group of the State 

Council, “Minjiang 

Scholars” 

Distinguished 

Professor and Director 

of the Securities 

Research Center of 

Xiamen University 

No 

Independent 

Director 

Chen 

Hanwen 
Male 1968 

Vice Dean of the 

Graduate School and 

Accounting Professor 

of Xiamen University 

No 

Independent 

Director 

Tsalm-hsiang 

Lin 
 1955 

 

Professor of Finance at 

Taiwan Tamkang 

University, Doctoral 

Tutor, Director of 

Cross-straits Financial 

Research Center 

No 
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Position Name Sex 

 

Year 

of 

Birth 

Other Title in Other 

Employer 

Whether 

Receiving 

Remunerations 

from the Bank 

Executive 

Director 

Zhang 

Dechun 
Male 1963 

Vice President of 

Xiamen International 

Bank Co., Ltd. and 

General Manager of 

XIB China Insitutions 

Yes 

Executive 

Director 
Jiao Yundi Male 1958 

Vice President of 

Xiamen International 

Bank Co., Ltd. and 

General Manager of 

Luso International 

Banking Ltd. 

Yes 

Executive 

Director 
Zheng Wei Male 1967 

 

Vice President of 

Xiamen International 

Bank Co., Ltd. and 

General Manager of 

Shanghai Branch 

Yes 

Executive 

Director 
Lyu Xiaoting Female 1964 

 

Vice President of 

Xiamen International 

Bank Co., Ltd. 

Yes 
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 (II) Basic Information of Supervisors 

Position Name Sex 

Year 

of 

Birth 

Other Position in Other 

Employer 

Whether 

Receiving 

Remunerations 

from the Bank 

Chairman 

of the 

Board of 

Supervisors 

Ip Kai 

Ming 
Male 1951 

Chairman of the Board of 

Supervisors of Xiamen 

International Bank Co., Ltd. 

Yes 

Equity 

Supervisor 
Chen Le Male 1959 

Vice General Manager of 

Fujian Provincial 

Communication 

Transportation Group Co., 

Ltd. 

No 

Equity 

Supervisor 

Luo 

Jianlong 
Male 1976 

Vice General Manager of 

Shanghai Jiading Rail Transit 

Construction Investment Co., 

Ltd. 

No 

External 

Supervisor 

Huang 

Wei 
Male 1972 Partner of GFE Law Office No 

External 

Supervisor 

Li 

Changqing 
Male 1968 

Accounting Professor of the 

School of Management of 

Xiamen University, Doctoral 

Tutor, Dean of the 

Department of Finance of 

Xiamen University 

No 

Employee 

Supervisor 
Zhang Qi Female 1972 

Compliance Manager, Vice 

General Manager of Risk 

Management Department 

and Chief of the Law Office 

是 

Yes 
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Position Name Sex 

Year 

of 

Birth 

Other Position in Other 

Employer 

Whether 

Receiving 

Remunerations 

from the Bank 

of Xiamen International 

Bank Co., Ltd. in China 

Employee 

Supervisor 
Zhuang Xi Male 1972 

Vice Chairman of the Labor 

Union and General Manager 

of the General Affairs Office 

of Xiamen International 

Bank Co., Ltd. 

Yes 

 

 (III) Basic Information of Senior Management 

Position Name Sex 
Year of 

Birth 

Other 

Position 

in Other 

Employer 

President 
Lyu Yao 

Ming 
Male 1954 Yes 

Vice President and General 

Manager of XIB China 

Institutions 

Zhang 

Dechun 
Male 1963 Yes 

Vice President and General 

Manager of LIB 
Jiao Yundi Male 1958 Yes 

Vice President Zheng Wei Male 1967 Yes 

Vice President Lyu Xiaoting Female 1964 Yes 

Associate President 
Huang 

Daqing 
Male 1969 Yes 

Chief Financial Officer Tsoi Lai Ha Female 1963 Yes 

Chief Audit Officer Lee Fai Ming Male 1964 Yes 
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Position Name Sex 
Year of 

Birth 

Other 

Position 

in Other 

Employer 

Chief Information Officer Wang Pengju Male 1964 Yes 

Chief Risk Officer and Chief 

Loan Approval Officer 
Zhang Lixing Male 1963 Yes 

Secretary of the Board of 

Directors 
Su Lina Female 1973 Yes 

Deputy Information Director Zhang Hong Male 1969 Yes 

Deputy Financial Director Zou Zhiming Male 1974 Yes 

Deputy Human Resources 

Director 
Huang Zhiru Male 1974 Yes 

Deputy Marketing Director 
Miao 

Shaohua 
Male 1963 Yes 

 

II. Biographical Data and Full-time and Part-time Employment of 

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management 

 (I) Directors 

Mr. Weng Ruo Tong, Bachelor of Economics and Administration, worked as a 

Director of this Bank as of December 2009 and as Chairman of the Board of Directors 

of the Bank as of October 2011, and he was elected as Chairman of the Board of 

Directors of XIB in December 2012 (approved in April 2013). Currently, he is the 

Chairman of the Board of Directors of both FIDC and Min Xin Holdings Limited. He 

has successively held such offices as the Deputy Section Chief of the Discipline 

Inspection Group, Deputy Director of the Labor Division and Director-General of the 

General Office of Fujian Provincial Department of Forestry. 

Mr. Lyu Yao Ming, Ph.D. of Economics, has being working in XIB since 

December 1998, and has successively served as the Standing Director, Executive Vice 

President and President. He was elected as the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors 
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and President of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. in December 2012 (approved in 

April 2013). He has successively held the offices of President of Fuzhou Branch of the 

ICBC and Vice President of Fujian Branch of the ICBC. Currently, he concurrently 

holds the office the Deputy Director of the Institute of Finance of Xiamen University. 

Mr. Peng Jinguang, Bachelor of Economics, was elected as the Director of XIB in 

December 2012 (approved in May 2013). At present, he serves as the Deputy Secretary 

of the Party Committee, General Manager and Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors 

of Fujian Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. Successively, he has worked as 

the Chief of the Academic Affairs Department of Fujian Ningde Finance & Economics 

School, Director of the Accounting Center, Vice Chief Accountant and Assistant to 

General Manager of Fujian Investment & Development General Company, Financial 

Director of CNOOC Fujian Natural Gas Co Ltd., Chief Accountant of Fujian 

Investment & Development General Company, and Vice General Manager and Chief 

Accountant of Fujian Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. 

Mr. Li Jinhua, Master of Business Administration, has been a Director of the Bank 

since November 2010, and he was elected as Director of the XIB in December 2012 

(approved in May 2013). He now works as a Director of Min Xin Holdings Limited. He 

has successively held such offices as Vice General Manager of Fujian Raw Material 

Joint Development Company, General Manager of Zhongmin Leasing Company, Vice 

General Manager of CNOOC Fujian Gas & Power Co., Ltd. assigned by the Planning 

and Development Department of Fujian Investment & Development General Company, 

and Vice General Manager of Min Xin Holdings Limited. 

Mr. Song Hanyi, Ph.D. of Economics, was elected as Director of XIB in December 

2012 (approved in June 2013). At present, he is the Vice General Manager of the 

Human Resources Department of the ICBC. He has worked successively as Deputy 

Division Director, Division Director and Vice General Manager of the Human 

Resources Department, and Vice General Manager of the Strategy Management and 

Investor Relationship Department of the ICBC. 

Mr. Huang Wenzhou, Master of Business Administration, was elected as Director 

of XIB in December 2012 (approved in May 2013). He is now the Deputy Secretary of 
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the Party Committee and General Manager of Xiamen C&D Corporation Limited. Mr. 

Huang has successively served as the Vice Manager and Manager of the Financial 

Department of Xiamen C&D Company, Assistant to General Manager and Vice 

General Manager and General Manager and Chairman of the Board of Directors of 

Xiamen C&D Inc. 

Mr. Roy Doumani graduated from the University of California at Los Angeles 

(UCLA) with a degree in Business and Finance and received a Juris Doctor degree from 

the University of Southern California School of Law. Mr. Doumani is a professor at the 

UCLA School of Medicine where he teaches “The Business of Science”, “MedTech 

Innovations”, and “Healthcare Technology” and is the Executive Director of the 

Business of Science Center. Since 2005, he has served as Co-Chairman of the Zhejiang 

California NanoSystems Institute in the People’s Republic of China (PRC). From 

January 1999 to present, Mr. Doumani served on the Board of Directors of Xiamen 

International Bank where he served as Vice Chairman from January 1999 to December 

2013. Mr. Doumani has been involved with numerous financial institutions: Founder 

and Director of First Los Angeles Bank; Chairman of First Interstate Bank of Hawaii; 

Director of HonFed Bank; and Chairman of World Trade Bank in Los Angeles. Mr. 

Doumani has been a member of RAND’s Center for Asia Pacific Policy’s advisory 

board and served as Chairman of the Pacific Pension Institute’s advisory board since 

February 1998. Mr. Doumani is also a founder and Board Member of Kite Pharma, a 

publicly listed biotechnology company. 

Mr. Xu Ye, Master of Law, was elected as Director of XIB in December 2012 

(approved in May 2013). Currently, he is the Vice President of CCB Trust Co., Ltd. Mr. 

Xu has successively served as a Principal Staff Member of the Human Resources 

Department, Secretary of the Organ Youth League Committee, Senior Vice Manager 

and Senior Manager of the Investment Banking Department of China Construction 

Bank Corporation, and Assistant to the President of CCB Trust Co., Ltd. 

Mr. Wang Xiaohong, Bachelor of Accounting, was elected as Director of XIB in 

December 2012 (approved in May 2013). He is now the Financial Director and Vice 

General Manager of Shanghai Shangshen Investment Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang used to serve 
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as Accountant and Financial Manager of Fujian Nanping Xunfa Real Estate 

Development Co., Ltd., and the Financial Manager of Fujian Huatai Real Estate 

Development Co., Ltd. 

Mr. Zheng Zhenlong, Ph.D. of Finance, was elected as Independent Director of 

XIB in December 2012 (approved in May 2013). At present, he works as the Professor 

of Financial Engineering in Xiamen University, Doctoral Tutor, Member of the 

Discipline Appraisal Group of the State Council, “Minjiang Scholars” Distinguished 

Professor and Director of the Securities Research Center of Xiamen University. Mr. 

Zheng now serves concurrently as the Standing Director and Member of the Academic 

Committee, the Standing Director of the Financial Engineering Professional Committee 

and Chairman of the Second Board of Directors of China Society for Finance and 

Banking, Vice Chairman of Fujian Financial Society and Editor-in-chief of the Finance 

(Quarterly). Successively, he worked as the Vice Dean of the Graduate School and 

Acting Dean of the Department of Finance of Xiamen University, and Director of 

Asia-Pacific Finance Association. Mr. Zheng is concurrently serving as the Independent 

Director of Huafu Securities Co., Ltd., Xiamen C&D Corporation Limited and Fujian 

Septwolves Industry Co., Ltd. 

Mr. Chen Hanwen, Ph.D. of Accounting, was elected as Independent Director of 

XIB in December 2012 (approved in May 2013). He is currently a professor of the 

Department of Accounting and the Vice Dean of the Graduate School of Xiamen 

University. He used to be the Vice Dean of the School of Management and Dean of the 

Department of Accounting of Xiamen University, Academic Pacesetter of the 

Discipline of Accounting of Xiamen University – National-level Key Discipline, 

Academic Pacesetter of the Key Research Base for Humanity and Social Sciences of the 

Ministry of Education of the P.R.C., Judge of Fujian Senior Auditor Review Committee, 

Judge of Fujian Senior Accountant Review Committee, Standing Director of China 

Audit Society and Vice Chairman of Internal Auditing in Fujian. Mr. Chen has 

successively served as Independent Director of many companies, such as Hongbo 

Shares, Meiya Pico, Amoi, Xiamen ITG Group, SBS Zipper, Fujian Cement and Prima. 

Mr. Tsalm-hsiang Lin, Ph.D. of Finance, was elected as Independent Director of 
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XIB in December 2012 (approved in May 2013). He is now a professor of Taiwan 

Tamkang University, Doctoral Tutor, Director of Cross-straits Financial Research 

Center and a chair professor of the Hengyi Foundation at Zhejiang University, and he 

works concurrently as Director of Asia Pacific Telecom, Eastern Media International 

and Yuanta Polaris Research Institute, Adjunct Professor of the Institute of Health 

Policy and Management at National Taiwan University. Mr. Lin has successively held 

offices such as Chairman of Financial Engineering Association of Taiwan, Member of 

Listing Review Committee of Taiwan Stock Exchange, Independent Director of Global 

Lighting Technologies Inc., Director of Taiwan Stock Exchange, Director of Taiwan 

Futures Exchange, Standing Director of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation, 

Director of China Development Industrial Bank, Director of China Development 

Financial and Supervisor of EBC, etc. 

Mr. Zhang Dechun, Bachelor of Economics, was elected as Executive Director and 

Vice President of XIB in December 2012 (approved in May 2013). At present, he works 

as the Vice President and General Manager of China insitutions of XIB. He has 

successively held the offices such as Departmental Vice Manager and Manager of XIB 

and Branch Director of LIB; Sub-branch General Manager and Assistant General 

Manager of XIB. Currently, he concurrently serves as Honorary Vice Chairman of 

Mindu Small and Medium-sized Bank Education Development Foundation, Director of 

China Banking Association, Standing Director of Xiamen Association of Banks, 

Honorary Vice Chairman of Xiamen Charity Federation, etc. 

Mr. Jiao Yundi, Master of Business Administration, was elected as Executive 

Director and Vice President of XIB in December 2012 (approved in May 2013). He is 

currently the Vice President of XIB and General Manager of LIB. Mr. Jiao has 

successively served as Departmental Deputy Manager, Departmental Manager, 

Departmental Senior Manager, Assistant General Manager and Vice General Manager 

of XIB. At present, he is also the Standing Director of the Macau Association of Banks 

and Vice Chairman of Macau Chinese Enterprises Association. 

Mr. Zheng Wei, Bachelor of Economics, was elected as Executive Director and 

Vice President of XIB in December 2012 (approved in May 2013). At present, he works 
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as Vice President of XIB and General Manager of Shanghai Branch. He has held offices 

such as Departmental Manager of XIB, General Manager of Zhuhai Branch, Assistant 

General Manager and General Manager of Shanghai Branch of XIB. 

Ms. Lyu Xiaoting, Bachelor of Engineering with the education background of 

in-service graduate of the Party School of the CPC Central Committee, has been 

working as Director of the Bank since October 2010 and was elected as Executive 

Director and Vice President of XIB in December 2012 (approved in May 2013). She is 

now the Vice President of XIB. Ms. Lyu has successively held such offices as Principal 

Staff Member of Zhangzhou Financial Bureau, Fujian Province, Deputy Chief of the 

Comprehensive Section and Chief of the Industrial Section II of the Industrial and 

Communication Division, Chief of the Revenue and Budget Section, Assistant 

Researcher and Deputy Director of the Budget Division, and Director of the Social 

Security Division of Fujian Provincial Department of Finance, and Director of the 

Fiscal Taxation and Finance Division of the General Office of Fujian Provincial 

People’s Government and Director of the General Office of Fujian Financial Policy 

Research Group. 

 (II) Supervisors 

Mr. Ip Kai Ming, Master of Science of Corporate Governance and Directorship of 

Hong Kong Baptist University, was elected as Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of 

XIB in December 2012 (approved in April 2013). He has successively worked in Hang 

Seng Bank Limited and Xiamen International Finance Co., Ltd., and he was a member 

of Beijing Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference. At 

present, Mr. Ip serves concurrently as the Convener of Advisors for Hong Kong, Macau 

and Taiwan Affairs of Beijing Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative 

Conference and a senior member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Hong 

Kong Institute of Directors. 

Mr. Chen Le, a graduate of the major of Mathematics from Ningde Normal 

University in 1980 with three-year college education background, was elected as 

Supervisor of XIB in December 2012. He is now the Vice General Manager of Fujian 

Provincial Communication Transportation Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Chen has worked 
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successively as a teacher in Fu’an Campus of Fujian Automobile Transportation 

Technician Training School, Chief of the Secretariat Section of Ningde Materials 

Bureau, Fujian Province, Deputy Director and Secretary of General CPC Branch of 

Zhouning County Materials Bureau, Fujian Province, Chief of the Materials Section of 

Ningde Planning Commission, Fujian Province, General Manager of Ningde Investment 

& Development General Company, Fujian Province, General Manager of the Planning 

Department and Financial Investment Department of Fujian International Trust 

Investment Co., Ltd., and Assistant to General Manager and Vice General Manager of 

Fujian Investment Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. 

Mr. Luo Jianlong, a graduate from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics 

in 2002 with the degrees of Master of Investment Economics and Manager, was elected 

as Supervisor of XIB in December 2012. He is now the Vice General Manager of 

Shanghai Jiading Rail Transit Construction Investment Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Jiading 

Garden City Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Luo has successively held such offices as 

Principal Staff Member of the Comprehensive Section of Shanghai State-owned Assets 

Supervision and Management Office, Project Manager of the Investment Banking 

Department of Ping An Securities Limited, Manager of the Investment & Development 

Department of Shanghai Jiading State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd., Manager of 

the Investment & Development Department, Manager of the Assets and Financial 

Department and Director of the Economic Development Center of Shanghai Jiading 

Rail Transit Construction Investment Co., Ltd., and Vice General Manager of Shanghai 

Jiatong Contruction & Development Co., Ltd. 

Mr. Huang Wei, a graduate from the Department of Law of Sun Yat-Sen 

University in 1993 and Master of Law of University of Aberdeen, was elected as 

Supervisor of XIB in December 2012. With abundant law practice experience, he has 

successively worked in Shu Jin Law Firm and Trust Law Firm (one of the large 

comprehensive law firms in China). Since 2002, Mr. Huang has been a partner of GFE 

Law Office, and during this period, GFE Law Office has been honored as Advanced 

Collective of Guangzhou Judicial Bureau in terms of Legal Aid, National Excellent Law 

Firm and Top Ten Law Firms in Guangzhou. 
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Mr. Li Changqing, Ph.D. of Management (Accounting) and a Chinese CPA, was 

elected Supervisor of XIB in December 2012. He is now an Accounting Professor in the 

School of Management, Doctoral Tutor and the Dean of the Department of Finance of 

Xiamen University. Mr. Li graduated from the Business Administration Education 

Center of Xiamen University in 1993 and he was awarded MBA of China-Canada Joint 

Education and Ph.D. of Management (Accounting) of Xiamen University in 1999. He 

has been in charge of National Natural Science Foundation, Humanity and Social 

Sciences Foundation of the Ministry of Science, major projects of the Research Base for 

Humanity and Social Sciences of the Ministry of Education of the P.R.C., 

China-Canada University Industry Partnership Program Foundation, Shanghai Stock 

Exchange Joint Research Program and other scientific research projects. Mr. Li has 

successively been engaged in financial statement audit and supervision in CPA firms 

and Shanghai Stock Exchange. He works concurrently as Independent Director of many 

companies, including China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and 

Xiamen 35.com Technology Co., Ltd. 

Ms. Zhang Qi, Bachelor of Law, was elected as Supervisor of XIB in December 

2012. She currently serves as the Vice General Manager of the Risk Management 

Department and Chief of the Law Office of XIB. She has successively held the offices 

of the Assistant General Manager of the Loan Management Department and Risk 

Management Department of XIB. 

Mr. Zhuang Xi, Bachelor of Management, was elected as Supervisor of XIB in 

December 2012, and he is now the Vice Chairman of Trade Union and General 

Manager of the General Affairs Office of XIB. He has successively worked as Senior 

Clerk of the Banking Department and Information Consultation Department, Assistant 

General Manager and Vice General Manager of the General Affairs Office of XIB. 

 (III) Senior Management 

Mr. Lyu Yao Ming was engaged as the President of XIB in December 2012 

(approved in April 2013). Please refer to the resume of Mr. Lyu Yao Ming in the 

“Directors” above. 

Mr. Zhang Dechun was engaged as the Vice President of XIB in December 2012 
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(approved in May 2013), and he works concurrently as the General Manager of China 

of XIB. Please refer to the resume of Mr. Zhang Dechun in the “Directors” above. 

Mr. Jiao Yundi was engaged as the Vice President of XIB in December 2012 

(approved in May 2013), and he works concurrently as the General Manager of LIB. 

Please refer to the resume of Mr. Jiao Yundi in the “Directors” above. 

Mr. Zheng Wei was engaged as the Vice President of XIB in December 2012 

(approved in May 2013), and he works concurrently as the General Manager of 

Shanghai Branch. Please refer to the resume of Mr. Zheng Wei in the “Directors” 

above. 

Ms. Lyu Xiaoting was engaged as the Vice President of XIB in December 2012 

(approved in May 2013). Please refer to the resume of Ms. Lyu Xiaoting in the 

“Directors” above. 

Mr. Huang Daqing, Bachelor of Economics, was engaged as the Assistant 

President of XIB in December 2012 (approved in May 2013), and he works 

concurrently as the General Manager of Beijing Branch of XIB. He has successively 

served as the Manager of Huli Business Department of XIB, General Manager of the 

Credit Department and Marketing Department of the Head Office of XIB, General 

Manager of Sub-branch Directly under the Head Office in Xiamen of XIB, General 

Manager of Xiamen Regional Management Department of XIB and General Manager of 

Xiamen Siming Sub-branch (Branch Level) of XIB. 

Ms. Tsoi Lai Ha, Bachelor, was engaged as the Chief Accountant (Chief Financial 

Officer) of XIB in December 2012 (approved in May 2013). She has successively 

worked as the Manager of the Fund Planning Department of Nanyang Commercial 

Bank, Vice Manager of the Accounting Department of Asian Oceanic Group and Group 

Financial Director of Mbf Asia Capital Corporation Holding Ltd. 

Mr. Lee Fai Ming, Master of Management, was engaged as the Chief Auditor 

(Chief Audit Officer) of XIB in December 2012 (approved in May 2013), and he was 

the Audit Manager of the Internal Audit Department of Nanyang Commercial Bank. 

Mr. Wang Pengju, Master of Computer Science, was engaged as the Chief 

Information Officer of XIB in December 2012, and he is currently the General Manager 
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of the Technology Department of XIB. He has successively worked as the Senior 

Technological Architect of IBM Global Business Service Division (United States) and 

Chief Architect for Financial Services of IBM Global Business Service Division 

(China), and was involved in the information technology governance, technology 

planning and technology implementation projects of global prestigious enterprises, such 

as JP Morgan, UPS, Boeing, Huawei and CCB. 

Mr. Zhang Lixing, Master of Science, was engaged as the Chief Risk Officer of 

XIB in December 2012, and at present, he serves as the Chief Loan Approval Officer 

and General Manager of the Risk Management Department of XIB. He has successively 

worked as Vice Manager of Securities Trade Business Department of Bank of China 

Fujian Trust Consultation Co., Ltd., Managing Director of Yin Hua International 

Finance Investments Co., Ltd. assigned by Fujian Branch of Bank of China, General 

Manager of Investment Consultation Department of Shanghai Shuntai Enterprise 

Management Consultation Co., Ltd., Manager of the Investment Department of Thai 

Hot (Fujian) Group Co., Ltd., Vice General Manager of Fujian Thai Hot Biochemical 

Technology Joint-stock Company, and Vice General Manager and General Manager of 

the Risk Assessment Department and Deputy Director of Risk of XIB. 

Ms. Su Lina, Bachelor of Arts, was engaged as the Secretary of the Board of 

Directors of XIB in December 2012 (approved in April 2013), and now she works 

concurrently as the General Manager of the Development and Research Department of 

XIB. She has successively worked as a translator/interpreter of the General Office of 

Xiamen Port Development Co., Ltd., Assistant General Manager, Vice General 

Manager and General Manager of the President’s (General Manager’s) Office of XIB. 

Mr. Zhang Hong, Ph.D. of Science, was engaged as the Deputy Information 

Director of XIB in December 2012, and he has successively worked as Documentation 

Specialist of Fujian Light Article Industry Imp. & Exp. Co., Ltd., Research Assistant 

and Associate Professor of State University of New York at Buffalo. 

Mr. Zou Zhiming, Ph.D. of Economics, was engaged as Deputy Financial Director 

of XIB in December 2012, and he is now the General Manager of the Financial 

Planning Department of XIB. Mr. Zou has successively served as Vice Manager of the 
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Financial Planning Section of the Finance and Accounting Division of Xiamen Branch 

of the CCB, and Assistant General Manager and Vice General Manager of the Financial 

Planning Department of XIB. 

Mr. Huang Zhiru, Bachelor, has held the office of the Deputy Human Resources 

Director of XIB since September 2013, and he works concurrently as the General 

Manager of the Human Resources Department of XIB. Mr. Huang has successively 

served as Deputy Director and Director of Internal Audit, Assistant General Manager 

and Vice General Manager of the Human Resources Department of XIB. 

Mr. Miao Shaohua, Bachelor, has been the Deputy Marketing Director of XIB 

since September 2013 and he works concurrently as the General Manager of the 

Marketing Management Department and Retail Business Management Department of 

XIB. He has successively held such offices as the Manager of the Bank Card 

Department and Director of the Deposit Division of Fuzhou Branch of the ICBC, 

Deputy Director of the Bank Card Division of Fujian Branch of the ICBC, Assistant to 

the President of Fuzhou Branch of the CMBC, Vice General Manager of the Market 

Service Department of China UnionPay, Vice General Manager of Fujian Branch of 

China UnionPay, Vice General Manager of Fuzhou Branch of XIB and Fund Operation 

Department of XIB. 

 

III. Changes to Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management during 

the Reporting Period 

During the reporting period, the Bank’s former director Mr. Zheng Kangbin 

resigned from his office of director due to changes to his work and his letter of 

resignation was submitted to the Board of Directors and become effective on October 

10, 2014; there was no new engagement or dismissal of any supervisor of this Bank, and 

so was the case with the Bank’s senior management. 
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IV. Employee Information 

 (I) Categorization by Educational Attainment 

Educational Attainment Number Proportion (%) 

Graduate and above 347 14.59% 

Bachelor’s degree 1,663 69.93% 

Three-year college and 

below 

368 15.48% 

Total 2,378 100.00% 

 (II) Categorization by Position Type 

Position Type Number Proportion (%) 

Management 379 15.94% 

Operation 1,541 64.80% 

Support 458 19.26% 

Total 2,378 100.00% 
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V. Company Organizational Chart 

 

 

Note: The number of network outlets above was by the end of December 2014. 

 

VI. Institutional Structure 

By the end of the reporting period, the Bank had 54 institutions with 8 business 

intsitutions in Xiamen and 7 branches in Beijing, Shanghai, Fuzhou, Zhuhai, Ningde, 

Longyan and Quanzhou, respectively, under which there were 23 local sub-branches. In 

addition, XIB had a wholly-owned affiliate in Hong Kong – Xiamen International 

Investment Limited (Hong Kong), which owned 8 wholly-owned subsidiaries, and the 
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Bank owned the equities of these companies indirectly through Xiamen International 

Investment Co., Ltd. Furthermore, XIB also had a wholly-owned affiliate in Macau – 

Luso International Banking Ltd., which had 12 local branches in Macau and 1 

representative office in Hengqin, Zhuhai. 

No. Office Name Business Address 

Offices in Chinese Mainland 

1 Head Office 
Xiamen International Bank Building, No. 8-10 Lujiang 

Road, Xiamen 

2 Beijing Branch 
China Commerce Tower, No.5 Sanlihe East Street, 

Xicheng District, Beijing 

3 
Beijing Chaoyang 

Sub-branch 

Top New Tower, Building 2, No. 15 Guanghua Road, 

Chaoyang District, Beijing 

4 
Beijing Zhongguancun 

Sub-branch 

 

Tai Peng Mansion, No. 10 Haidian North 2
nd

 Street, 

Zhongguancun, Haidian District, Beijing 

5 
Beijing Xicheng 

Sub-branch 

Rm. 103, 1
st
 Floor, Building 2, 29 North Third Ring  

Middle Road, Xicheng District, Beijing 

6 
Beijing Dongcheng 

Sub-branch 

1
st
 Floor, Shou Dong International Tower, Building 3, 

Guangqu Jiayuan, Dongcheng District, Beijing 

7 
Beijing Shijingshan 

Sub-branch 

1
st
 Floor, Building 3, No. 6 Zhengda Road, Shijingshan 

District, Beijing 

8 
Beijing Asian Games 

Village Sub-branch 

1
st
 Floor, AVIC Industrial Information Center, 14-01 

Anwai Xiaoguandongli, Chaoyang District, Beijing 

9 
Beijing Haidian 

Sub-branch 

F1-001 & F2-001, Guoyi Plaza, No. 19 West Third 

Ring Middle Road, Haidian District, Beijing 

10 Beijing Fengtai Sub-branch 
1

st
 Floor, Building 31, Section I, No. 188, South Fourth 

Ring West Road, Fengtai District, Beijing 

11 Beijing Gongti Sub-branch 
Room 103, East Side, 1

st
 Floor, Building 40, Xingfu 

Village II, Chaoyang District, Beijing 

12 Shanghai Branch Majesty Building, No.138, Pudong Avenue, Pudong 
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No. Office Name Business Address 

New District, Shanghai 

13 
Shanghai Xuhui 

Sub-branch 

No. 183-191, Nandan East Road, Xuhui District, 

Shanghai 

14 
Shanghai Jing’an 

Sub-branch 

Annex Building, Hengli International Plaza, No. 233 

Weihai Road, Jing’an District, Shanghai 

15 
Shanghai Changning 

Sub-branch 

5
th

 Floor, the Orient V-Capital Building, No. 333, 

Xianxia Road, Changning District, Shanghai 

16 
Shanghai Huangpu 

Sub-branch 

No. 369, Henan Middle Road, Huangpu District, 

Shanghai 

17 
Shanghai Yangpu 

Sub-branch 

Room 108, Kaidi Finance Building, No. 1088, 

Xiangyin Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai 

18 
Shanghai Beiwaitan 

Sub-branch 

Rooms 105, 106 and 107, No. 950, Dalian Road, 

Shanghai 

19 
Shanghai Minhang 

Sub-branch 
Unit 01B, 1

st
 Floor, No. 6088, Humin Road, Shanghai 

20 

Xiamen Siming 

Sub-branch (branch-level 

office) 

Xingang Plaza, No. 10, Hubin North Road, Xiamen, 

Fujian 

21 
Sub-branch Directly under 

Xiamen Head Office 

Xiamen International Bank Building, No. 8-10, 

Lujiang Road, Xiamen, Fujian 

22 
Xiamen Dongqu 

Sub-branch 

1
st
 Floor, No. 7-9, Huachang Building, Huachang 

Road, Huli District, Xiamen, Fujian 

23 Xiamen Jiahe Sub-branch 
Lianhua Building, No. 188, Jiahe Road, Xiamen, 

Fujian 

24 
Xiamen Wenyuan 

Sub-branch 

Units 147-150, No. 61, Wenyuan Road, Siming 

District, Xiamen, Fujian 

25 
Xiamen Xinglin 

Sub-branch 

No. 51-4-7, Xingnan Road, Jimei District, Xiamen, 

Fujian 

26 Xiamen Huli Wanda Units 108-110, No. 3, Jinzhong Road, Huli District, 
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No. Office Name Business Address 

Sub-branch Xiamen, Fujian 

27 
Xiamen Haicang 

Sub-branch 

Room A01, No. 156, Canghong Road, Haicang 

District, Xiamen, Fujian 

28 Fuzhou Branch No. 162, Wuyi North Road, Fuzhou, Fujian 

29 Fuzhou Gulou Sub-branch 
Zhongshan Building, No. 152, Hudong Road, Fuzhou, 

Fujian 

30 
Fuzhou Taijiang 

Sub-branch 

Maotai Century Building, No. 2, Wuyi South Road, 

Taijiang District, Fuzhou, Fujian 

31 
Fuzhou Minjiang 

Sub-branch 

Two Units, East Side, 1
st
 Floor, Jiayang Building, No. 

71, Taijiang Road, Fuzhou, Fujian 

32 Fuzhou Fuqing Sub-branch 
Storefronts 106-109, Building 1, No. 39, Qingchang 

Road, Fuqing, Fujian 

33 Fuzhou Hualin Sub-branch 

 

1
st
 Floor, Hualin Building, No. 201, Hualin Road, 

Wenquan Sub-district, Gulou District, Fuzhou, Fujian 

34 Zhuhai Branch 
AVIC Building, No. 1195, Jida Jiuzhou East Road, 

Zhuhai, Guangdong 

35 
Zhuhai Gongbei 

Sub-branch 
No. 111, Shuiwan Road, Gongbei, Zhuhai, Guangdong 

36 
Zhuhai Xinxiangzhou 

Sub-branch 

Storefronts 8-01, 9 and 10, Building 1, No. 856, 

Renmin West Road, Zhuhai, Guangdong 

37 Ningde Branch 

Rooms 101 and 201, Building 7, (Dongcheng Shui’an) 

No. 1, Funing North Road, Dongqiao Economic 

Development Zone, Ningde, Fujian 

38 Longyan Branch 
No. 284, Longyan Road, Xipi Town, Xinluo District, 

Longyan, Fujian 

39 Quanzhou Branch 
Xiamen International Bank Building, No. 288, 

Baozhou Road, Fengze District, Quanzhou, Fujian 

Offices in Hong Kong and Macau 
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No. Office Name Business Address 

40 LIB Head Office Av. Dr. Mario Soares, No. 47 

41 
LIB Head Office, Main 

Branch 
Av. Dr. Mario Soares, No. 48 

42 
LIB Sam Chun Tang 

Branch Branch 
Rotunda Carlos da Maia, No.8, R/C 

43 
LIB Pun Cheong Tong 

Branch 

 

Rua S. Domingos No. 15 

44 LIB Hac Sac Van Branch Bairro Iao Hon, Rua Um, No. 8, R/C 

45 
LIB Kin Heng Long 

Branch 

 

Stores I and J, R/C, Edifício Praça Kin Heng Long 

Kuong Cheong, No. 238-286, Alameda Dutor Carlos 

d'Assumpção, NAPE 

46 LIB San Kiu Branch 
Av. do Almirante Lacerda, edif. Cheong Meng Garden, 

Loja CK, CJ and P, R/C 

47 LIB Toi San Branch 
Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa Jardins de Cidade, Edif. 

Cento Com. Loja IN1 e IO1 

48 LIB Hung Kai Si Branch Av. Horta e Costa, No. 126-128 

49 LIB San Hao Ngon Branch 
Rua de Pequim, No. 244-246, Macau Financial Centre, 

Loja J & K R/C 

50 LIB Fai Chi Kei Branch 
Rua do Commandante Joao Belo nos. 182-J. 186 Edif. 

Wang Hoi Bloco 3, B R/C, D R/C 

51 LIB Taipa Branch 
Av. de Guimaraes, Nos. 152 e 158, Edif. Supreme 

Flower City, Loja F, Taipa 

52 LIB Pou Lei Tat Branch 
Avenida do Nordeste No.507、511, Polytec Garden, 

R/C AG、AH, Macau 

53 
LIB Zhuhai Hengqin 

Representative Office 

Area D, Building 8, Zhuhai Hengqin Financial 

Industrial Service Base, Central Business District, 

Shizimen, Hengqin New Area, Zhuhai 

54 Xiamen International Room. 2906, Two Exchange Square, Central, Hong 
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No. Office Name Business Address 

Investment Limited (Hong 

Kong) 

Kong 
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 Chapter V Corporate Governance Structure 

 

I. Corporate Governance 

 (I) Shareholders and Shareholders’ Meeting 

During the reporting period, XIB convened shareholders’ meetings in accordance 

with relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association of the Bank as well as 

rules of procedure of shareholders’ meetings with convening, deliberating and voting 

procedures in compliance with standards, and thus shareholders’ legal rights and 

interests are protected. Besides, this Bank kept improving investor relationship 

management and took initiative to debrief shareholders’ opinions and suggestions to 

ensure that shareholders exercise their right to know, participate and vote regarding the 

Company’s major matters. 

XIB held four shareholders’ meetings in 2014 as follows: 

1. On March 7, the first special shareholders’ meeting in 2014 was held to 

deliberate and approve the proposal of extending the issuance expiry date and issuance 

authorization period of secondary bonds (tier II capital bonds) of XIB, and the proposal 

of engaging a CPA firm to carry out annual auditing of 2013 and 2014. 

2. On April 18, the shareholders’ meeting for 2013 was held to deliberate and 

approve 12 proposals, including the Report of the Board of Directors 2013, the Report 

of the Board of Supervisors 2013, the Annual Report 2013, the Financial Final 

Accounting Report 2013 and the Proposal of Profit Distribution 2013. 

3. On May 30, the second special shareholders’ meeting in 2014 was held to review 

and adopt three proposals, including the specific plan of capital increase, the proposal of 

list of new investors as shareholders and their subscribed shares and the proposal 

regarding the change to the registered capital of the Bank, and the amendment of the 

Articles of Association of the Bank. 

4. On June 27, the third special shareholders’ meeting in 2014 was held to debrief 

the report of the Board of Directors regarding the list of investors and their number of 

subscribed shares for capital increase, and deliberated and adopted the proposal of 

changing the registered capital of the Bank and amending the Articles of Association of 
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the Bank. 

 (II) Board of Directors 

1. Members of the Board of Directors 

In 2014, one director of the Board of Directors of the Bank resigned due to change 

of his work. By December 31, 2014, the Board of Directors of XIB consisted of 16 

directors, including 8 shareholder representative directors, 3 independent directors and 5 

executive directors classified by category. 

2. Specialized committees under the Board of Directors 

There are 4 professional committees under the Board of Directors of the Bank, i.e. 

the Strategy Committee, Related-party Transaction Control and Audit Committee, Risk 

Management Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Except the 

Strategy Committee, the offices of the heads of the other three committees were taken 

by independent directors. These committees provided professional opinions to the 

Board of Directors or made decisions on professional matters based on the authorization 

of the Board of Directors, and they also communicate with the senior management and 

departments of the Head Office regarding the operation of commercial banks and risk 

conditions on an irregular basis in addition to providing opinions and advice. 

 
Strategy 

Committee 

Related-party 

Transaction 

Control and 

Audit 

Committee 

Risk 

Management 

Committee 

Nomination 

and 

Remuneration 

Committee 

Person-in-charge 
Weng Ruo 

Tong 

Zheng 

Zhenlong 

Tsalm-hsiang 

Lin 

Zheng 

Zhenlong 

Members 

Huang 

Wenzhou 
Chen Hanwen Song Hanyi 

Wang 

Xiaohong 

Zheng Wei Lyu Xiaoting Jiao Yundi Zhang Dechun 

Peng 

Jinguang 
- Xu Ye 

Tsalm-hsiang 

Lin 
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Strategy 

Committee 

Related-party 

Transaction 

Control and 

Audit 

Committee 

Risk 

Management 

Committee 

Nomination 

and 

Remuneration 

Committee 

Zheng 

Zhenlong 
- Li Jinhua - 

Roy 

Doumani 
- - - 

 (1) Strategy Committee 

The Strategy Committee has the following main duties: 

Researching and drafting suggestions on the development strategies, business 

objectives, risk management strategies, capital management strategies and medium and 

long-term development plans of XIB and reporting to the Board of Directors for 

deliberation; inspecting and evaluating the process of strategy implementation and 

giving suggestions to the Board of Directors; putting forth suggestions on strategic 

adjustment based on any change to the operational environment and reporting to the 

Board of Directors for deliberation; providing opinions and suggestions on the setting 

planning proposed by the senior management and reporting to the Board of Directors 

for deliberation; performing regular assessment on and offering suggestions on the 

improvement of the governance of the Company and reporting to the Board of Directors 

for deliberation; inspecting the implementation of annual operational plans and major 

investment plans of XIB, giving suggestions on major investment matters of the Bank 

and reporting to the Board of Directors for deliberation; providing suggestions on the 

alignment of relevant committees as well as human capital throughout the Bank, risk 

management, organizational charge and processes, capital and institutional planning 

with the development strategies of the Bank as a whole for consistency and unification, 

and reporting to the Board of Directors for deliberation; making annual working plans 

of this committee, holding meetings to discuss matters within its extent of authority on a 

regular basis and report its work to the Board of Directors on a regular basis; proposing 
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to amend this committee’s duties and rules of procedure and submitting them to the 

Board of Directors; in the case that any matter to be deliberated by the Board of 

Directors falls into the areas of responsibilities of this committee, this committee shall 

consider and provide suggestion for it first and submit relevant proposals and 

deliberation results to the Board of Directors for deliberation; other matters as 

authorized by the Board of Directors. 

 (2) Related-party Transaction Control and Audit Committee 

The Related-party Transaction Control and Audit Committee have the following 

main duties: 

Researching and drafting the related-party transaction management system of the 

Bank and reporting to the Board of Directors for deliberation; general related-party 

transactions shall be approved in accordance with the extent of authority of internal 

approval and procedures of the Bank and be recorded with this committee one by one; 

the Risk Management Department shall summarize the approval of general related-party 

transactions of the previous month within five working days at the beginning of each 

month and reports to this committee; reviewing major related-party transactions which 

need to be submitted to the Board of Directors or shareholders’ meetings for 

deliberation and approval and reporting to the Board of Directors for deliberation; 

reviewing and confirming the list of related parties of the Bank and making the 

confirmed list of related parties known to the Board of Directors, the Board of 

Supervisors and relevant functional departments of the Bank in a timely manner; 

monitoring the control over related-party transactions of the Bank and the 

implementation of the related-party transaction control systems of the Bank by directors, 

senior officers and related persons of the Bank, and providing suggestions and opinions 

to the Board of Directors; monitoring the accounting policies, financial conditions and 

financial reporting procedures, risks and compliance of the Bank and giving suggestions 

and opinions to the Board of Directors; reviewing annual auditor’s reports of the Bank, 

providing suggestions and opinions of the authenticity, completeness and accuracy of 

the information of the audited financial reports and reporting to the Board of Directors 

for deliberation; reviewing the Bank’s internal medium and long-term audit planning, 
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annual audit working plans and internal audit system, internal audit budgets and internal 

auditors’ remunerations, and providing suggestions and opinions to the Board of 

Directors; providing evaluation and suggestions on the working procedures and 

outcomes of the internal audit department and reporting to the Board of Directors for 

deliberation; debriefing the regulatory reports presented by the banking industry 

supervision and management authority of the State Council to the Bank and deliberating 

the report of rectification of the Bank; reviewing separation auditor’s reports of 

non-director members of the senior management and providing suggestions and 

opinions to the Board of Directors; evaluating the work conducted by an external audit 

organization, providing suggestions on the engagement and replacement of an external 

audit organization and reporting to the Board of Directors for deliberation; making 

annual working plans of this committee, holding meetings to discuss matters within its 

areas of responsibilities on a regular basis and report its work to the Board of Directors 

on a regular basis; proposing to amend this committee’s duties and rules of procedure 

and submitting them to the Board of Directors; in the case that any matter to be 

deliberated by the Board of Directors falls into the areas of responsibilities of this 

committee, this committee shall consider it first and submit relevant proposals and 

deliberation results to the Board of Directors for deliberation; other matters as 

authorized by the Board of Directors. 

 (3) Risk Management Committee 

The Risk Management Committee has the following main duties: 

Researching and providing the suggestions on adjusting the Bank’s risk 

management guidelines and policies in good time based on the changes to international 

and domestic economic and financial situations or policies and regulations as well as the 

needs of the development of banking business; inspecting and monitoring the internal 

control over credit risks, market risks, operational risks, liquidity risks, legal risks, 

reputation risks, technological risks and country risks of the Bank, conducting regular 

assessment on the risk management conditions and risk management abilities and levels 

of the Bank, and researching and providing suggestions on adjusting the Bank’s risk 

management guidelines and policies in good time; evaluating the working procedures 
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and working outcomes of the Bank’s internal audit department and providing 

suggestions on improving risk management and internal control of the Bank; 

researching and providing suggestions on drafting basic policies of risk management 

and internal control of the Bank, inspecting the completeness and effectiveness of risk 

control guidelines and policies of the Bank, and reporting to the Board of Directors for 

deliberation; understanding the risk assessment methods, models and assumption 

preconditions used by the Bank, and reviewing risk assessment results; researching and 

providing relevant suggestions on improving and perfecting the risk management 

information system to the Board of Directors to promote continuous improvement of 

credit risk identification and control of the Bank; deliberating major issues or plans 

regarding guidelines, policies and procedures related to capital management to be 

submitted to the Board of Directors for approval, providing suggestions and opinions to 

the Board of Directors and offering suggestions regarding the information disclosure of 

capital adequacy of the Bank to the Board of Directors; making annual working plans of 

this committee, holding meetings to discuss matters within its areas of responsibilities 

on a regular basis and report its work to the Board of Directors on a regular basis; 

proposing to amend this committee’s duties and rules of procedure and submitting them 

to the Board of Directors; in the case that any matter to be deliberated by the Board of 

Directors falls into the areas of responsibilities of this committee, this committee shall 

consider and provide suggestions on it first and submit relevant proposals and 

deliberation results to the Board of Directors for deliberation; other matters as 

authorized by the Board of Directors. 

 (4) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has the following main duties: 

Conducting annual review on the structure, number and composition of the Board 

of Directors, and providing suggestions on the scale and composition of the Board of 

Directors to the Board of Directors based on strategic planning, business activities, asset 

size and equity structure of the Bank; carrying out the following jobs in pursuance of 

relevant laws and regulations as well as relevant provisions of the Articles of 

Association, screening criteria and nomination procedures of the Bank: reviewing the 
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resumes, basic information, job qualification and conditions of nominated candidates 

for director and reporting to the Board of Directors for deliberation; being responsible 

for nominating candidates for the secretary of the Board of Directors and reporting to 

the Board of Directors for deliberation; reviewing the job qualification and conditions 

of the president, chief Auditing Officer, and members and heads of specialized 

committees under the Board of Directors of the Bank, and reporting to the Board of 

Directors for deliberation; reviewing the job qualification and conditions of the senior 

officers who are nominated by the President and appointed or dismissed by the Board of 

Directors, and reporting to the Board of Directors for deliberation; researching and 

providing suggestions on drafting basic policies of remuneration management of the 

Bank and reporting to the Board of Directors for deliberation; researching and providing 

suggestions for drafting the criteria of remunerations and allowances for directors of the 

Bank and evaluation methods of their performance of their duties, providing 

suggestions on the evaluation of directors’ performance of their duties and reporting to 

the Board of Directors for deliberation; researching and providing suggestions for 

drafting assessment methods and remuneration plans for the senior officers who are 

appointed or dismissed by the Board of Directors, providing suggestions on the 

assessment and evaluation of these officers and reporting to the Board of Directors for 

deliberation; making annual working plans of this committee, holding meetings to 

discuss matters within its areas of responsibilities on a regular basis and report its work 

to the Board of Directors on a regular basis; proposing to amend this committee’s duties 

and rules of procedure and submitting them to the Board of Directors; in the case that 

any matter to be deliberated by the Board of Directors falls into the areas of 

responsibilities of this committee, this committee shall consider it first and submit 

relevant proposals and deliberation results to the Board of Directors for deliberation; 

other matters as authorized by the Board of Directors. 

3. Performance of Daily Work by the Board of Directors during the Reporting 

Period 

 (1) Meetings of the Board of Directors 

During the reporting period, the Board of Directors of XIB held 22 meetings of the 
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Board of Directors in total (6 on-the-site meetings and 14 voting-via-communication 

meetings) with details as follows: 

①On-the-site Meetings 

On February 26, XIB held the fourth meeting of the first Board of Directors in 

Xiamen, and the proposals debriefed, deliberated and adopted in the meeting included: 

the work report of 2013 and work plan in 2014, the proposal on the engagement of a 

CPA firm to carry out annual auditing of 2013 and 2014, the report on progress of the 

issuance of tier II capital bonds, the report on the progress of implementation of 

medium and long-term capital plans, the plan of increasing capital and shares, the plan 

of becoming a public listed company, the resolution on establishing committees under 

the Board of Directors, the report on withdrawing and distributing incentive payment of 

2013, totally 8 proposals. 

On April 14, XIB held the fifth meeting of the first Board of Directors in Xiamen, 

and the proposals debriefed, deliberated and adopted in the meeting included: the 

President’s Report 2013, the Report of the Board of Directors 2013, the Financial 

Report of 2013, the Annual Report 2013, the proposal for profit distribution of 2013, the 

report of evaluation on the performance of duties by the Board of Directors and its 

members in 2013, the report of evaluation on the performance of duties by the senior 

management and its members in 2013, the report of the implementation of related-party 

transaction control system and related-party transactions in 2013, the work report of risk 

management in 2013, totally 22 proposals. 

On May 27, XIB held the sixth meeting of the first Board of Directors in Xiamen, 

and the proposals debriefed, deliberated and adopted in the meeting included: the 

specific plan of capital increase, the proposal of the list of new investors as shareholders 

and their subscribed shares, the proposal of changing the registered capital of the Bank, 

the proposal of amending the Articles of Association of the Bank, the proposal of 

estabilishing a financial leasing company, and the report of review on the application for 

share transfer by Fujian Yuanyuan Shipping Co., Ltd.. 

On June 16, XIB held the seventh meeting of the first Board of Directors in 

Xiamen, and in the meeting, the report of the development progress of Hong Kong 
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institution was debriefed and the proposal of pushing forward the Gulangyu Island 

Project was deliberated and adopted. 

On June 24, XIB held the eighth meeting of the first Board of Directors in Xiamen, 

and three proposals were deliberated and adopted in the meeting, i.e. the list of new 

investors and their number of shares for increasing capital, the proposal of changing the 

registered capital and amending the Articles of Association of the Bank, and the 

proposal of convening the third special shareholders’ meeting in 2014. 

On September 24, XIB held the ninth meeting of the first session of the Board of 

Directors in Macao, and the proposals debriefed, deliberated and adopted in the meeting 

included: the work report of the first half of 2014, the financial report of from January 

to June in 2014, the work report of risk management in the first half of 2014, the work 

report of internal control in the first half of 2014, the progress report of key projects, 

totally 8 proposals. 

② Communication Meetings 

On January 21, the Board of Directors deliberated and adopted the Emergency Plan 

of Liquidity Management and Information Technology Risk Management Policy of the 

Bank via communication. 

On January 24, the Board of Directors deliberated and agreed on the proposal of 

extending the issuance expiry date and issuance authorization period of issuing tier II 

capital bonds to December 31, 2015 via communication. 

On March 3, the Board of Directors deliberated and adopted the Suggestion on 

Convening the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of 2013 of Xiamen International Bank 

Co., Ltd. via communication. 

On March 14, the Board of Directors deliberated and adopted the Application for 

Issuing the RMB 200 Million Working Capital Loan to Xiamen C&D Corporation 

Limited via communication. Based on the review and consent opinion of the 

Related-party Transaction Control and Audit Committee, the Board of Directors 

unanimously adopted this related-party transaction and required that the credit 

concentration (balance) shall be controlled no to go beyond external regulation 

provisions. Related directors avoided the voting on this resolution. 
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On March 17, the Board of Directors deliberated and adopted the Report of 

Suggestions on Setting Liquidity Risk Limits and Calculation Method via 

communication, and consented to the official issurance of the Credit Risk Management 

Policy of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. 

On March 19, the Board of Directors deliberated and adopted the Auditor’s Report 

2013 of the Bank via communication. 

On April 3, the Board of Directors deliberated and adopted the Request on 

Approval of Cash Bond Investment Related-party Transaction via communication. 

Based on the review and consent opinion of the Related-party Transaction Control and 

Audit Committee, the Board of Directors agreed to buy the two bonds – “14 C&D 

MTN001” and “12 Min Jiao Yun MTN2” with total par value of RMB 280 million and 

required that the transaction should be conducted in accordance with the principle of 

fair trade and specific provisions of relevant laws and regulations. Related directors 

avoided voting on this resolution. 

On April 30, the Board of Directors deliberated and adopted the request for 

instruction on the establishment of Quanzhou Branch via communication. 

On June 6, the Board of Directors deliberated and adopted the Application for 

Issuing RMB 1.5 Billion Interbank Line of Credit to CCB Trust Co., Ltd. via 

communication. Based on the review and consent opinion of the Related-party 

Transaction Control and Audit Committee, the Board of Directors passed this 

related-party transaction unanimously and required it be done in strict adherence to the 

principle of fair trade. Related directors avoided voting on this resolution. 

On June 6, the Board of Directors deliberated and adopted Application for Issuing 

RMB 50 Million Comprehensive Line of Credit to Fujian Huaxing Group Co., Ltd. via 

communication. Based on the review and consent opinion of the Related-party 

Transaction Control and Audit Committee, the Board of Directors passed this 

related-party transaction unanimously, and required that the credit concentration 

(balance) should be controlled not to go beyond provisions of external regulations, the 

transaction should be done in strict adherence to the principle of fair trade and the 

interest rate should not be better than those of other banks. 
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On August 4, via communication, the Board of Directors deliberated and adopted 

the Report on Application for Launch of Core and Supporting Systems in Domestic 

Institutions and the Report of Change to Going into Production of Core and Important 

Supporting Systems of the Bank, and it agreed to start the work of switch to launch as 

scheduled after the business was closed on August 8, 2014, complete the switch on 

August 9 and 10, 2014, go for launch and test run of the new system on August 11, 2014, 

and achieve official run of the new system on August 12, 2014. It also required that the 

executive management should strengthen the organization and management of the 

system launch by putting risk prevention in place and improving emergency response 

regime in an all-round way in addition to enhancing monitoring public sentiment and 

communication with customers with all-out efforts to ensure the smooth completion of 

the launch and switch of the system. 

On October 22, the Board of Directors deliberated and adopted the Review Report 

of the Application for Share Transfer by Xiamen Xinlianfa Import and Export Co., Ltd. 

via communication. It gave consent to the application of Xiamen Xinlianfa Import and 

Export Co., Ltd. for transferring the shares of the Bank that it held to Xiamen Aviation 

Development Corp. Ltd. and required the Bank to go through the formalities of filing 

with the regulatory authority and registering with the industrial and commercial 

administration subsequently according to law. 

On November 3, the Board of Directors deliberated and adopted the Request for 

Instruction on Submission for Deliberation of the Bank’s Participation in the 

Restructuring of Urban Commercial Bank Capital Liquidation Center via 

communication and gave consent that the Bank should subscribe 5 million shares (RMB 

1 per share) to be issued by the new company after the restructuring of Urban 

Commercial Bank Capital Liquidation Center with 1% shareholding. 

On December 4, the Board of Directors deliberated and adopted the Report of 

Application for Issuing HKD 100 Million Comprehensive Line of Credit to Min Xin 

Holdings Ltd. via communication. Based on the review and consent opinion of the 

Related-party Transaction Control and Audit Committee, the Board of Directors 

deliberated and adopted this related-party transaction, and it required that the transaction 
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should be performed in accordance with the principle of fair trade and the interest rate 

should not be better than the conditions of other types of transaction of the Bank, while 

the approved and confirmed conditions for the line of credit should be fulfilled and the 

credit concentration (balance) should be controlled not be go beyond the provisions of 

external regulations. 

 (2) Implementation of Resolutions of Shareholders’ Meetings by the Board of 

Directors 

In 2014, the Board of Directors convened 4 shareholders’ meetings in total. Based 

on the resolutions adopted in these shareholders’ meetings, the Bank has successfully 

completed the work of cash dividend distribution in 2013, issued RMB 3 billion tier II 

capital bonds, actively pushed forward the work of increasing capital and shares, and 

obtained the approval of the Bank’s change to its registered capital from CBRC Xiamen 

in August 2014. 

 (3) Performance of Duties by Specialized committees under the Board of 

Directors 

In 2014, the four specialized committees under the Board of Directors – Strategy 

Committee, Risk Management Committee, Related-party Transaction Control and Audit 

Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee – provided professional 

opinions to the Board of Directors or made decisions on professional matters based on 

authorization of the Board of Directors, and they communicated with the senior 

management and departments of the Head Office regarding the operation of commercial 

banks and risk conditions on an irregular basis and gave opinions and suggestions. In 

2014, in total, the Bank held 3 meetings of the Strategy Committee and debriefed and 

deliberated 17 proposals; it held 3 meetings of the Risk Management Committee and 

debriefed and deliberated 12 proposals; it held 3 meetings of the Related-party 

Transaction Control and Audit Committee and debriefed and deliberated 14 proposals; it 

held 4 meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and debriefed and 

deliberated 12 proposals. 

 (III) Board of Supervisors 

1. Members of the Board of Supervisors 
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The Board of Supervisors of the Bank consists of 7 supervisors at present, 

including 2 equity supervisors, 3 employee supervisors and 2 external supervisors. The 

Board of Supervisors of the Bank, attaching importance to the benefits of shareholders 

and the entire benefits of the Company, perform their supervision duties earnestly by 

taking initiative to carry out special researches and audit surveys, and supervising the 

Company’s financial activities, risk management and internal control, and the 

performance of duties by the Board of Directors and senior management according to 

law. 

2. Specialized committees under the Board of Supervisors 

The Board of Supervisors of the Bank has two specialized committees – Audit 

Committee and Nomination Committee, and the offices of the heads of these 

committees are taken by external supervisors. 

3. Supervisor’s Convening and Attending the Meetings as Non-voting Attendees 

during the Reporting Period 

 (1) Convening meetings of the Board of Supervisors and its specialized 

committees, deliberating relevant proposals and supervising according to law 

In 2014, the Board of Supervisors convened 4 meetings of the Board of 

Supervisors in accordance with the Articles of Association of Xiamen International 

Bank Co., Ltd. (“Articles of Association”) as well as rules of procedure of the Board of 

Directors and the rules of procedures of relevant committees under the Board of 

Supervisors, and all of these meetings were on-the-spot ones, in which 9 proposals were 

deliberated and 23 reports were debriefed; it organized 2 meetings of the Nomination 

Committee and all of them were on-the-spot meetings, in which 4 proposals were 

deliberated and adopted and 1 proposals was debriefed; it organized 3 meetings of the 

Audit Committee under the Board of Directors and all of them were on-the-spot 

meetings, in which 3 proposals were deliberated and 15 reports were debriefed. In this 

year, the Board of Supervisors provided working suggestions or guiding opinions for 

many times, which were responded by the management with positive and careful 

feedback. Through convening meetings of the Board of Supervisors and its specialized 

committees, comprehensive and timely deliberation and review were conducted on the 
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bank operation and management conditions, financial conditions reports, risk 

management work reports, internal control evaluation reports, evaluation and opinions 

on the performance of duties by the Board of Directors and its members, and the senior 

management and its members, self-assessment of the Board of Supervisors, the results 

of evaluation of the performance of duties by the Board of Supervisors and other 

relevant proposals of the Bank in 2014. 

 (2) Attending relevant meetings as non-voting attendees, obtaining the 

information related to performance of their duties and fulfilling supervision duties 

In 2014, the Board of Supervisors organized supervisors to attend shareholders’ 

meetings, interim shareholders’ meetings, the meetings of the Board of Directors and 

senior management as non-voting attendees in pursuance of relevant provisions of the 

Articles of Association. By attending these meetings as non-voting attendees, on one 

hand, the Board of Supervisors supervised the participation and presentation in these 

meetings of directors and senior officers to acquire full understanding of their 

performance of their duties, and on the other hand, by debriefing the deliberation of 

relevant proposals, the Board of Supervisors grasped the operational, financial, risk and 

internal control conditions of the whole bank in a timely manner to actively perform its 

duties of business supervision. 

 (3) Carrying out researches on offices and providing suggestions on supervision 

and management 

In 2014, the Board of Supervisors organized and carried out special research 

activities aiming at focal and hot issues of the operation and management of the Bank in 

combination with daily supervision conditions and regulatory requirements. In 2014, the 

Board of Supervisors organized supervisors to conduct researches on two branch-level 

offices in Xiamen and Fuzhou, respectively, during which it focused on the following 

aspects, respectively: ① five aspects of Xiamen Siming Sub-branch, i.e. operation and 

management, case prevention measures, non-performing loan ratio, risk proactiveness 

or early warning system; ②  understanding the operation and management, risk 

management and case prevention of Fuzhou Branch, performing the Board of 

Supervisors’ duties to supervise the operation and management of the bank and 
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providing relevant opinions and suggestions. 

4. The Board of Supervisors' Supervision Work during the Reporting Period 

 (1) Evaluation and supervision of performance of duties 

In 2014, the Board of Supervisors paid attention to the deliberation process of 

major decision-making matters and supervised the compliance with laws and 

regulations and the Articles of Association, implementation of resolutions adopted in 

shareholders’ meetings, exercise of their power and fulfillment of their obligations of 

the Board of Directors, senior management and their respective members by taking full 

advantage of being present in and attending as non-voting attendees shareholders’ 

meetings, the meetings of the Board of Directors and its specialized committees, 

president working meetings and the meetings of the administrative management of the 

Bank. 

 (2) Financial supervision 

Reviewing regular financial reports in an earnest way: in 2014, the Board of 

Supervisors debriefed the Financial Report of 2013, the Financial Budget 2014, and the 

Report of Financial Conditions from January to June in 2014, and deliberated and 

adopted the Proposal of Profit Distribution 2013 by having in-depth understanding of 

the completeness and effectiveness of the management of financial consolidated 

statements, changes to key financial figures and reasons therefor, etc. 

Strengthening communication with the CPA firm regarding the annual audit of the 

Bank and intensifying financial supervision: in 2014, the Board of Supervisors held two 

working talks with PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Co., Ltd., through which 

it understood the annual audit plans and schedules for the Bank of 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Co., Ltd. and their conclusions for the 

financial audit of 2013 and suggestions on internal control management after the 

completion of such audit. 

 (3) Supervision on risk and internal control 

In 2014, despite a series of severe challenges, including macro economic downturn, 

ongoing tightened regulatory policies and long-term sluggish capital market, the Board 

of Supervisors put great emphasis on the business decision-making, risk management 
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and internal control of the whole bank, and it had understanding of new changes to 

national macro economic and financial policies and regulatory requirements and their 

influences, and paid attention to new situations and new issues arising in the process of 

pushing forward the development strategy throughout the Bank. The Board of 

Supervisors debriefed the Report of Risk Management 2013, the Report of 

Implementation of Related-party Transaction Management System and Related-party 

Transactions 2013, the Report of Evaluation on Internal Control 2013, the Report of 

Internal Audit 2013 and the Report of Risk Management of the First Half of 2014, and it 

deliberated the Proposal of the Report of Internal Control of the First Half of 2014, and 

provided opinions and suggestions on relevant issues. 

Supervision on the information technology risk management: in 2014, the Bank 

made great breakthrough in terms of the launch of its new generation of core system. 

The Board of Supervisors paid focal attention to the launch and switch efforts of the 

Bank’s new core system and its supporting systems, guided the Internal Audit 

Department of the Head Office to conduct special inspection on the launch and switch 

work of the new core system in the Head Office, and specially debriefed the Special 

Report of Acceptance and Testing Management and Risk Analysis of the New Core 

System and Its Supporting Systems, the Special Report of Risk Analysis of Preparations 

before the Launch of the Core System and Its Supporting Systems of Xiamen 

International Bank Co., Ltd., and the Summary Report of the Core System and Its 

Supporting System Going into Production of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. 

Supervision on the risk management of a wide range of interbank asset 

management businesses: in 2014, the Board of Supervisors required the Internal Audit 

Department to conduct special audit of business risk management of financial 

institutions and debriefed the Report of Overview of Business Risk Management of 

Financial Institutions from 2013 to October 2014 submitted by the Chief Auditing 

Officer. 

Supervision on the internal control over new business and new product 

management system, operational procedures, key risk links and relevant management 

information systems: in 2014, the Board of Supervisors required the New Product 
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Committee to submit a special inspection report about this and debriefed the Report of 

New Business and New Product Management submitted by the New Product 

Committee. 

Strengthening the supervision on core indicators of regulatory risks: in 2014, the 

Board of Supervisors required the Bank to report to it the implementation of risk 

regulatory indicators on a quarterly basis and debriefed the Report of the 

Implementation of Risk Regulatory Indicators in the Third Quarter in 2014; it focused 

on the conditions of the indicators of the Bank which had difference from the 

pre-warning value acquired by the CBRC and the reasons for this, and provided relevant 

suggestions. 

Intensifying the efforts for supervision on case prevention: in 2014, the Board of 

Supervisors took initiative to carry out supervision work related to case prevention and 

specially debriefed the Brief Report of Case Prevention Work from January to July in 

2014 of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. with the focus on the general situation of 

the performance of case prevention work of the Bank and working suggestions; the 

Board of Supervisors also specially organized internal trainings on case prevention and 

guidance and preach about internal control to improve supervisors’ ability of 

performing duties in terms of case prevention. It required the Internal Audit Department 

to conduct independent audit of the case prevention work. In December 2014, the Board 

of Supervisors reviewed the Report of Special Inspection on Internal Control and Case 

Prevention of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. in 2014. 

Supervision on the performance of human resources security work in the reform of 

operation and management models: in 2014, the Board of Supervisors required the 

Human Resources Department to submit a special report of this and debriefed the 

Report of Performance of Human Resources Security Work in the Reform of Operation 

and Management Models. 

 (4) Supervision on Development Strategies 

In 2014, the members of the Board of Supervisors fulfilled its supervision duties 

by paying timely attention to the Bank’s development strategies through attending as 

non-voting attendees the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Bank. XIB has 
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pushed forward the reform of operation and management models in an all-round and 

in-depth way while guaranteeing the scientificity, reasonability and effectiveness of 

medium and long-term development strategies by setting up a leading group for the 

reform and the research team for the reform through streamlining administration and 

delegating power to the lower levels which was engaged in researching and designing 

the plan of reform through streamlining administration and delegating power to the 

lower levels, laying a sound foundation for the research and development of the Fourth 

Five-Year Plan. 

 (5) Supervision on Information Disclosure 

During the reporting period, the Bank disclosed information in strict accordance 

with the accounting system and relevant regulatory requirements by following the 

principles of authenticity, accuracy, completeness and timeliness and did a good job in 

fulfilling its obligation of information disclosure on the whole. 

5 Building and Other Matters of the Board of Supervisors during the Reporting 

Period 

The Board of Supervisors organized and summarized important laws and 

regulations of the CBRC for the supervisors to learn and refer to. It also organized the 

training on procedures of loan business of the Bank, from submission for approval to 

review to approval, and the onsite training on strengthening the supervision on shadow 

banking by inviting experts in the industry to give lectures, which improved the ability 

to perform their duties of the Board of Supervisors effectively; some of the supervisors 

of the Bank participated in the fourth session of Training Class of Internal Control of 

Commercial Banks held by the CBRC in Guangzhou. 

For interbank exchange, the Board of Supervisors of the Bank held a work 

exchange symposium with the Board of Supervisors of Fujian Haixia Bank and they had 

work exchange regarding how to better give play to the functions of the board of 

supervisors in terms of financial supervision, risk supervision, internal control 

supervision and evaluation of duty performance as required by laws and regulations, 

including new guidelines for the corporate governance of commercial banks and 

working guidelines for the board of directors of commercial banks to strive to improve 
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supervision levels through learning from the practical experience of the board of 

directors in the industry. 

In December 2014, the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors and some 

supervisors of the Bank paid a visit to the CBRC Xiamen, during which they focused on 

reporting the work of the Board of Supervisors in 2014 and preliminary ideas about its 

work in 2015. Besides, they also listened to the CBRC Xiamen’s opinions and 

suggestions on the overall inspection on the Bank in the year carefully. 

 (IV) Senior Management 

The senior management of the Bank consists of the President, Vice Presidents, 

Assistant Presidents, the Chief Financial Officer, etc. In pursuance of laws and 

regulations, Articles of Association and authorization of the Board of Directors, the 

President organizes the performance of operation and management activities, organizes 

the implementation of resolutions of the Board of Directors, drafts annual business 

plans and investment plans, drafts basic management systems and develops specific 

regulations, represents the Bank in external engagement, negotiation and signing 

relevant documents within his/her extent of authority, decides on the setup of internal 

management organs and branches based on the setup standards approved by the Board 

of Directors, decides on the number of employees of the Bank, decides on the 

appointment or dismissal of the employees other than those to be appointed or 

dismissed as decided by the Board of Directors, delegates the directors and members of 

the senior management of the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, etc. 

 (V) Related-party Transactions 

In 2014, XIB continued to promote the robust development of business by 

strengthening related-party transaction management and controlling related-party 

transaction risks. The Bank’s related-party transactions were conducted in strict 

accordance with the Administrative Measures on the Related-party Transactions 

between Commercial Banks and Their Insiders and Shareholders externally and the 

Administrative Provisions on Related-party Transactions and the Implementation 

Bylaws of the Administrative Measures on Related-party Transaction. All of these 

transactions went through review and approval formalities in a stringent way to ensure 
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its compliance with the principles of honesty, credit and fairness and they were carried 

out under the conditions which were not better than those of similar transactions done 

by related parties by following business principles. 

 

II. Performance of Duties by Independent Directors 

 (I) Independent Directors’ Attendance in the Meetings of the Board of Directors 

during the Reporting Period 

In 2014, the average attendance rate of the independent directors of the Bank in 

person in the meetings of the Board of Directors was 93.33%. 

 (II) The independent directors of the Bank had no objection to the proposals of 

the Board of Directors and other non-board proposals during the reporting period. 

 (III) Establishment and Improvement of Relevant Working Systems and Main 

Job Duties of Independent Directors and Their Performance of Their Duties 

The Related-party Transaction Control and Audit Committee, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management Committee under the Board of 

Directors of the Bank are in the charge of independent directors, where independent 

directors make up two thirds of the Related-party Transaction Control and Audit 

Committee and one half of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

The independent directors of the Bank performed their duties as required, 

including attending the meetings of the Board of Directors and providing professional 

opinions. They could provide objective and impartial opinions and suggestions on 

operation and management, risk management, etc. of the Bank from their respective 

professional perspectives. In addition, they also effectively fulfilled their duties of 

organizing and participating in relevant work of the specialized committees under the 

Board of Directors. These directors paid attention to the legitimacy and fairness of 

major related-party transactions as well as profit distribution plans, appointment of 

senior officers and other matters. 

 

III. Business Decision-making System of the Bank 

The Shareholders’ Meeting is the organ of supreme power of the Bank; the Board 
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of Directors is the highest decision-making organ of the Bank, which is responsible for 

making decisions on major matters and determining annual business goals of the Bank; 

the Board of Supervisors is the supervisory organ of the Bank, which is responsible for 

the supervision on the performance of duties by the Board of Directors and senior 

management; the senior management, under the leadership of the Board of Directors 

and the supervision of the Board of Supervisors, carries out a wide variety of operation 

and management activities according to law. The decision-making system centering on 

the Board of Directors, the execution system centering on the senior management and 

the supervision system centering on the Board of Supervisors perform their own 

functions with well-defined division of labor, creating the balance mechanism featuring 

clearly-defined responsibilities and reciprocal bond. 

 

IV. Assessment, Incentive and Restriction Regime of Senior Officers 

In order to get better adapted to the changes to internal and external business 

environment, the Bank has sorted out the remuneration system in an all-round way and 

renewed and issued a series of remuneration policies based on its compliance with 

various remuneration policies and guidelines promulgated by the regulatory authority, 

such as the Measures on Remuneration Management of Xiamen International Bank Co., 

Ltd. and the Measures on Management of Performance Risk Fund of Xiamen 

International Bank Co., Ltd., aiming to improve the incentive regime, ensure the smooth 

progress of operation and management of the Bank and stability of its workforce in 

addition to the establishment of a long-term and effective restriction regime. 

The remunerations of the directors, supervisors and senior officers of the Bank are 

reviewed and issued after going through standardized approval procedure by following 

the criteria and procedures provided for internally and externally. Directors and 

supervisors receive allowances in accordance with standards; the remuneration items to 

which senior officers are entitled to are included in the overall remuneration system 

framework of the Bank, which consists of four parts, namely basic remunerations, 

performance remunerations, medium and long-term income and benefit income; the 

performance remuneration is linked with several important indicators, such as annual 



 

         68 

after-tax profits, non-performing loan ratio, net return on assets, capital adequacy ratio, 

leverage ratio, provision coverage ratio and case risk ratio; the performance risk fund is 

withheld by stipulated proportion to guarantee the robust and orderly operation and 

management of the Bank. 

In order to enhance the assessment, incentive and restriction of senior officers, the 

Bank’s affiliated organization – LIB – signed the annual job objective responsibility 

statement with its senior officers and defined their responsibilities for operation with 

compliance, internal management and other aspects to further define senior officers’ 

responsibilities and requirements. 

 

V. Internal Control 

 (I) Internal Audit 

The Bank has the Internal Audit Department to perform the duty of internal audit. 

The Internal Audit Department, under the management of the Related-party Transaction 

Control and Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, conducts inspection, 

assessment and scrutiny of various business activities of the Bank, assists the Bank’s 

members to perform their duties effectively, improves the results of the Bank’s business 

activities, risk management, internal control and corporate governance to promote the 

robust development of the Bank. 

Internal audit work is independent from the operation and management and it is 

risk oriented to guarantee objectivity and impartiality. The Board of Directors of the 

Bank assumes ultimate liabilities for the appropriateness and effectiveness of internal 

audit. It is responsible for approving medium and long-term audit planning and annual 

working plans of internal audit, providing necessary security for the performance of 

internal audit work in an independent and objective way and carrying out assessment 

and supervision on the audit work. 

The Internal Audit Department is led by and reports to the Chief Auditing Officer. 

The Chief Auditing Officer reports audit work to the Related-party Transaction Control 

and Audit Committee and the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis, and besides, 

he/she communicates with the person chiefly in charge in the senior management about 
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key findings in the audit work and suggestions. He/she shall submit the audit work 

report to the Board of Directors and the Related-party Transaction Control and Audit 

Committee thereunder at least once a year, which shall includes the performance of 

duties, audit findings, suggestions and other contents. 

 (II) Establishment and Improvement of the Internal Control System 

The internal control system of the Bank includes the control systems for a wide 

variety of risks, such as credit risks, market risks, liquidity risks, operational risks, 

information technology risks, strategy risks, reputation risks and country risks. XIB has 

kept improving its internal control systems and it has established the inter control 

institutional system covering all businesses and management of the Bank, which gives 

full play to balancing and supervision and guarantees the effective progress of business 

operation. 

The Bank updates the internal control system in a timely manner based on relevant 

state laws and regulations, departmental rules and regulatory requirements as well as the 

needs of business development and internal control and management of the Bank to 

ensure the soundness and effectiveness of the internal control system; besides, XIB also 

inspects and examines the implementation of the internal control system and keeps 

improving it based on the evaluation on inspection results. 

 (III) Law and Compliance Management and Environmental and Social Risk 

Control Systems 

The Bank’s organizational structure of compliance management consists of the 

Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors and Specialized Committees under the 

Board of Directors, the Senior Management, Vice/Assistant General Managers in charge 

of various business lines; the Chief Auditing Officer and his subordinated Internal Audit 

Department; the bank-wide Compliance Management departments, management 

departments in charge of different business lines in the Bank’s head office, all branches, 

compliance officers of the branches, as well as employees of all levels. All compliance 

departments perform their respective duties in accordance with the Compliance 

Management Policy of XIB. 

The Bank’s Head Office has set up a bank-wide compliance management 
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department - the Legal Affairs Office to coordinate comprehensively compliance risk 

management and identification for the Bank’s various domestic branches. The Planning 

and Finance Department, Risk Management Department, Risk Assessment Department, 

Fund Operation Department, Operation and Management Department, Technology 

Department, Marketing Management Department and Administrative Office of the 

Head Office are compliance management departments of relevant business lines, 

fulfilling their compliance management responsibilities on respective business lines and 

reporting to the bank-wide compliance management department regarding their 

compliance management conditions. 

All branch-level offices set up Compliance Officers who are responsible for the 

compliance work of their respective offices, assessing and reporting compliance risk 

regularly. Compliance Officers are to report their compliance management work to the 

Bank’s Head office. 

The Bank implemented the Compliance Management Policy and the Compliance 

Management Manual in an all-round way to ensure that the organization and personnel 

were in place, having duties clarified, truth sought from facts, efforts exerted 

unremittingly, management tracked and effectiveness achieved. The Bank kept on 

enhancing and perfecting all types of rules and regulations, and based on the changes of 

policies of relevant external laws and regulations and the Bank’s business development 

situations, conducted review on our Bank’s various kinds of rules and regulations, 

which, together with the existing normative documents, were improved or cleared up to 

guarantee that business was developed in an orderly manner and that rules were 

available for performing daily operations. 

Through implementing and practicing the compliance management policy, 

developing and revising rules and regulations, conducting compliance and anti-money 

laundering inspection, carrying out the publicity and trainings of policies on compliance, 

anti-money laundering and case prevention, holding meetings on compliance work, and 

other initiatives, the compliance culture that the Bank upholds has been further 

infiltrated into the mind of all the employees during the reporting period, which has 

helped fostering the employees’ correct values and professional ethics, and safeguarded 
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and piloted the Bank on her way towards sustainable development of its business. 

 

VI. Overview of the Engagement of Auditors 

In February 2014, the Board of Directors and Shareholders’ Meeting of the Bank 

deliberated and adopted the proposal of engaging PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian 

CPAs Co., Ltd. (special general partnership) (“PWC”) for the annual audit of 2014. 

PWC is one of the Big Four international accounting firms. It meets the qualification 

requirements stated in the Bank's Articles of Association in terms of business presence 

in China, client base, year-by-year increase of revenue and the large number of auditing 

cases of commercial banks. During its cooperation with the Bank regarding auditing 

business, PWC can always complete auditing jobs in a professional and independent 

manner, and keeps getting adequate professional audit staff involved in our projects, 

reflecting strong professional competence and independence through issuing high 

quality audit reports and consulting services on a timely basis. 
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Chapter VI Report of the Board of Directors 

 

I. Review on Business Conditions during the Reporting Period 

 (I) General Business Conditions 

In 2014, confronting the adverse situation featuring “triple superposition,” 

economic downturn and tightened regulatory policies, XIB, by adhering to its working 

guideline of the year that dividend would be released under the leadership of reform, 

innovation would drive transformation, efficiency would be improved via platform 

upgrade and prosperity would be achieved through moving forward based on 

benchmarking, took imitative to handle all kinds of challenges by attaching importance 

to the exploration of a wide range of business and pushing forward key jobs steadily. It 

achieved amazing performance through the hard work and perseverant efforts at both 

higher and lower levels of the Bank, which has laid a solid foundation for 

accomplishing the Third Five-year (2011-2015) Plan. 

1. All businesses maintained a high-quality and efficient development trend and the 

annual business objectives set by the Board of Directors were accomplished in an 

all-round way. As at the end of the reporting period, the Bank’s asset size registered 

RMB 348.9 billion, up by 33.63% over the end of the previous year; deposit balances 

amounted to RMB 224.2 billion, climbing by 64.38% compared with the end of the 

previous year; after-tax profits recorded RMB 2.228 billion, growing by 33.53% on an 

year-on-year basis; the non-performing loan ratio was 0.46% and the non-performing 

asset ratio was 0.21%. XIB continued to maintain high asset quality in spite of the 

severe situation which saw significant increase of interbank non-performing loan ratio. 

2. Development was promoted through reforms by upholding the differential 

positioning in pursing excellence and uniqueness. In 2014, the Bank drove the reform of 

10 modules of operation and management models in an all-round way, including 

resource allocation, organizational process re-engineering, financial instrument 

innovation and comprehensive quality management. It has created a good brand image 

in terms of cross-board finance and project design by means of product portfolio design 

using the “Eight Combinations3” as the innovation model with small and medium-sized 



The Annual Report 2014 Xiamen International Bank Co. Ltd.   [English translation for reference only] 

73 

enterprises as its main service targets, which has effectively improved its market 

competitiveness. 

 3. Significant results were made in attaining a forefront status. Among the top 

1000 global banks in 2014 as listed by the Banker, a British professional magazine, XIB 

moved upward to the 320th position by 38 places on a year-on-year basis in terms of 

total assets, and to the 444th position by 36 places on a year-on-year basis in terms of 

tier 1 capital. Its domestic ranking also climbed. As at the end of 2014, XIB moved 

upward from the 13th position at the end of the previous year to 10th position among 

145 urban commercial banks in terms of asset size. The Bank also won the Most Unique 

Bank award again in the selection of the best small and medium-sized banks in 2014 by 

the Modern Bankers. The Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiary LIB, by taking the 

opportunity of its 40th anniversary to speed up development, was among the top rank in 

the banking industry in Macau in terms of businesses and profitability growth rate, and 

it was only after Bank of China Macau Branch and ICBC Macau in ranking in the 

market in terms of key business indicators. 

4. All-round quality management safeguarded and piloted healthy business 

development. Under the severe external situation that domestic economic downturn 

pressure increased, business close-down, enterprise owners absconding with the money 

and other events happened frequently, and the asset quality in the banking industry was 

on the decline, the Bank carried out the all-round quality management strategy featuring 

simultaneous exertion of the three efforts, i.e. product innovation and standardization, 

risk control and case prevention and control. For business innovation and 

standardization, XIB, sticking to the "system first," strengthened forward-looking and 

proactive management and further enhanced risk prevention awareness to create the 

space for business development on the precondition of standardizing business operation 

and preventing risks effectively. In respect of risk control, people at all levels of the 

Bank were prepared for danger and put precautions in place. They lost no time to 

conduct comprehensive check and onsite sampling check on all kinds of risks to 

improve operation and management continuously. Furthermore, the Bank strictly 

followed the requirements of the Board of Directors and the regulatory authority for 
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case prevention and control, and carried out the case prevention and control work in 

2014 in a comprehensive way based on the in-depth summarization of the experience of 

the previous year. XIB established the information technology risk quantitative index 

system in 2014 to keep improving information technology risk management while 

attaching importance to and strengthening public sentiment and reputation risk 

management. 

5. New progress was made in terms of replacement capital. With efforts in many 

ways, the Bank accomplished the issuance of RMB 3 billion tier 2 capital bonds in the 

first quarter successfully, which optimized capital structure effectively. It overcame the 

difficulty of the downturn of the stock market by increasing its capital by RMB 1.791 

billion from 42 investors in a short time, which laid a capital foundation for the business 

development in 2014. 

6. The construction of network outlets was sped up. With the support and help of 

regulatory authorities at all levels, Longyan Branch and Quanzhou Branch went through 

preparations and opened successfully, and Zhangzhou Branch was also approved to 

prepare for establishment successfully at the end of 2014. In addition, the construction 

of sub-branch network in the places where existing offices were present was accelerated. 

Throughout the year, 17 new sub-branches in total were opened in Beijing, Shanghai, 

Fuzhou, Xiamen and Zhuhai in addition to another three approved to prepare for 

establishment, thus increasing the number of new sub-branches considerably compared 

with last year. LIB’s representative office in Hengqin, Zhuhai was officially opened, 

making LIB the first foreign-funded bank to have an office in Hengqin and the first 

Macau bank to have a foothold in Hengqin New Area, Zhuhai. 

7. New core system was successfully launched. Based on the best practice of 

international advanced banks in combination of the practical needs of the Bank and 

future development trends, XIB’s core system and its supporting systems, with the hard 

work and painstaking efforts of several hundreds of people of domestic and overseas 

offices, was developed as a highly complex project group involving 22 new systems, 10 

reconstructed systems and 11 outsourcing vendors. The Bank launched this new core 

system and its supporting systems successfully in domestic offices through totally 4 
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rounds of user acceptance tests, 4 rounds of simulation run tests, 2 launch and switch 

simulation drills, 1 launch emergency drill and 20 batches in 5 rounds of data migration 

tests. Moreover, LIB's new core system also accomplished development and tests, 

making full preparation for official launch and connection with the systems at home and 

abroad in 2015. In the meantime, the Bank has intensely pushed forward the 

construction of new electronic banking channels, such as online banking, telephone 

banking and financial IC cards, which will be launched in succession in the first half of 

2015. 

 (II) Financial Analysis 

In 2014, the Bank made the operating income of RMB 5.604 billion, up by 1.133 

billion at the growth rate of 25.33% on a year-on-year basis. Main income items of the 

operating income included: interest spread income RMB 4.511 billion, increasing by 

RMB 1.042 billion at the growth rate of 30.05% compared with the previous year; other 

operating income amounting to RMB 1.093 billion, climbing by RMB 90 million at the 

growth rate of 9.01%, including net income from processing fees reaching RMB 569 

million, decreasing by RMB 297 million at the decrease rate of 34.30% on a 

year-on-year basis; investment income in the amount of RMB 404 million, up by RMB 

244 million at the growth rate of 153.19% compared with the previous year; profit/loss 

of variation of fair value reaching RMB 17 million, up by 17 million on a year-on-year 

basis. 

 In 2014, the Bank’s total operating and administration expenses amounted to 

RMB 1.530 billion, up by RMB 289 million at the growth rate of 23.27% on a 

year-on-year basis. Its business taxes and surtaxes reached RMB 294 million, down by 

RMB 22 million at the decrease rate of 6.99% compared with last year; the expenditure 

of asset impairment provision was RMB 854 million, rising by RMB 71 million at the 

growth rate of 9.03% compared with the previous year. 

In 2014, the Bank paid income tax in the amount of RMB 700 million, climbing by 

RMB 230 million at the growth rate of 48.77% compared with the previous year. 

The Bank’s main profit/loss items and variations are listed in the following table: 
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(Current Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan) 

Item 2014 2013 2012 

Operating income 5,604,431 4,471,693 2,619,870 

Hereinto:Net interest income 4,511,243 3,468,882 2,017,771 

Net non-interest income 1,093,189 1,002,811 602,099 

Operating expenditure 2,685,148 2,344,232 1,325,526 

Hereinto:Operating and 

administration expenses 

1,530,113 1,241,247 879,488 

Business taxes and surtaxes 293,948 316,031 181,018 

Asset impairment loss 854,182 783,409 261,413 

Other operating costs 6,906 3,546 3,606 

Operating profits 2,919,283 2,127,461 1,294,344 

Total profits 2,927,873 2,138,968 1,297,395 

Less: income tax expenses 700,293 470,724 295,235 

Net profits 2,227,580 1,668,244 1,002,160 

Hereinto:Net profits attributable 

to shareholders of the Company 

2,227,580 1,668,244 1,002,160 

1. Net interest income 

During the reporting period, the Bank had net interest income of RMB 4.511 

billion, rising by RMB 1.042 billion at the growth rate of 30.05% on a year-on-year 

basis. 

 (Currency Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan) 

Interest Income 2014 2013 Variation 

Loans and advances 4,933,331 4,232,691 17% 

Placements with other banks and 

financial institutions 
352,924 376,481 -6% 

Accounts receivable investment 7,680,774 5,018,270 53% 

Deposits with other banks and 

financial institutions 
191,444 83,505 129% 
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Interest Income 2014 2013 Variation 

Deposits with the Central Bank 400,118 252,036 59% 

Financial assets held under resale 

agreements 
106,443 69,581 53% 

Bond investment 1,972,037 1,717,376 15% 

Others 151 153 -1%  

Subtotal of interest income 15,637,223 11,750,093 33% 

 

Interest expenditure 2014 2013 Variation 

Deposits from other banks and 

financial institutions 
4,583,142 4,321,561 6% 

Customer deposits 5,446,016 3,392,650 61% 

Financial assets sold under 

repurchase agreements 
776,030 520,342 49% 

Placements from other banks and 

financial institutions 
118,834 38,244 211% 

Borrowings from the Central Bank 6,413 - - 

Others 2,109 2,084 1% 

Bonds payable 193,435 6,330 2956%  

Subtotal of interest expenditure 11,125,980 8,281,211 34% 

2. Net non-interest income 

During the reporting period, the Bank’s net non-interest income was RMB 1.093 

billion, up by RMB 90 million at the growth rate of 9.01% on a year-on-year basis. 

单位：人民币千元 

Currency Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan 

Item 2014 2013 2012 

Net income from 

processing fees and 

commission 

568,949 866,033 346,463 

Other net non-interest 524,239 136,778 255,636 
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income 

Total 1,093,189 1,002,811 602,099 

(1) Main components of the income from processing fees and commission 

During the reporting period, due to the influence of external environment and 

polices, the Bank registered the income from processing fees and commission of RMB 

672 million, declining by RMB 255 million at the declining rate of 27% on a 

year-on-year basis. 

Currency Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan 

Item 2014 2013 Growth Rate 

Advisory services and 

consultation fees 

329,082 612,228 -46% 

Settlement processing 

fees and guarantee fees 

139,451 108,755 28% 

Bank card processing 

fees 

59,983 60,294 -1% 

Agency business 

processing fees 

61,366 44,295 39% 

Asset management 

operating income 

74,558 84,092 -11% 

Others 8,015 17,529 -54% 

Subtotal of the income 

from processing fees and 

commission 

672,455 927,193 -27% 

 (2) Other net non-interest income 

Currency Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan 

Item 2014 2013 Growth Rate 

Investment income 403,946 159,544 153% 

Profit/(loss) from fair value 

variation 

16,534 -726 -2377% 

Exchange income 94,446 -29,287 -422% 
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Other operating income 9,313 7,248 28% 

Total 524,239 136,778 283% 

3. Operating and administration expenses 

Current Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan 

Item 2014 2013 Growth Rate 

Employee 

expenses 

1,124,334 882,148 27% 

Operating and 

development 

expenses 

65,981 76,139 -13% 

Office expenses 87,058 67,708 29% 

Others 252,740 215,252 17% 

Total 1,530,113 1,241,247 23% 

4. Asset impairment loss 

Current Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan 

Item 2014 2013 Growth Rate 

Loans and advances 615,238 580,958 6% 

Accounts receivable 

investment and others 

asset impairment loss 

238,944 202,451 18% 

Total 854,182 783,409 9% 

5. Income tax expenses 

Current Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan 

Item 2014 2013 Growth 

Rate 

Pre-tax profits 2,927,873 2,138,968 37% 

Income tax expenses calculated at 

the applicable tax rate 

689,658 504,456 37% 

Tax-exempt income and tax 

preference influences 

-12,493 -14,549 -14% 
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Influences of tax rate difference of 

income tax of overseas subsidiaries 

33,773 -17,924 -288% 

Expenses and losses not to be 

deducted 

19,477 34,886 -44% 

Adjustment to the taxes in previous 

reporting period 

-30,122 -36,145 -17% 

Total 700,293 470,724 49% 

 (III) Asset Quality Analysis 

1. Concentration of borrowing industries 

Current Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan 

Category  

Balance at the 

end of 2014 

Proportion  

Balance at the 

end of 2013 

Proportion 

1. Loans and advances to 

companies 

106,238,098 95.39% 76,909,769 94.46% 

1.1-Leasing and business 

service industries 

18,174,885 16.33% 8,099,173 9.95% 

1.2-Wholesale and retail 

industries 

40,988,558 36.80% 26,008,854 31.94% 

1.3-Manufacturing industry 10,978,549 9.86% 11,850,928 14.55% 

1.4-Real estate industry 11,448,542 10.28% 11,838,250 14.54% 

1.5-Construction industry 7,029,341 6.31% 3,467,050 4.26% 

1.6-Water conservancy, 

environmental and utility 

facility management industry 

5,392,822 4.84% 1,831,456 2.25% 

1.7-Communication and 

transportation, warehousing 

and post industry 

2,726,658 2.45% 2,412,346 2.96% 

1.8-Electric power, heating 

power, fuel gas and water 

production and supply 

industry 

2,019,736 1.81% 1,502,625 1.85% 

1.9-Financial industry 1,709,345 1.53% 935,774 1.15% 

1.10-Accomodation and 

catering industries 

1,835,583 1.65% 1,930,401 2.37% 

1.11-Mining industry 751,016 0.67% 711,539 0.87% 

1.12-Information transition, 532,573 0.48% 197,324 0.24% 
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software and information 

technology service industry 

1.13-Culture, sports and 

entertainment industries 

229,242 0.21% 445,509 0.55% 

1.14-Education 81,000 0.07% 178,000 0.22% 

1.15-Agriculture, forestry, 

husbandry and fishery 

51,666 0.05% 1,128,530 1.39% 

1.16-Neighborhood services, 

repair and other service 

industries 

50,000 0.04% 22,338 0.03% 

1.17-Scientific research and 

technological service 

industries 

15,690 0.01% - 0.00% 

1.18-Discount 1,547,699 1.39% 3,047,121 3.74% 

1.19-Trade and financing 675,194 0.61% 1,302,550 1.60% 

2. Personal loan 5,135,441 4.61% 4,514,453 5.54% 

Total 111,373,540 100% 81,424,222 100.00% 

2. Categories and proportions of loan guarantee ways 

 

Item 
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 

Amount Proportion Amount Proportion 

Loans on credit  6,557,327  5.89% 5,545,011 6.81% 

Loans on guarantee  39,535,056  35.50% 21,077,959 25.89% 

Loans on mortgage  5,194,230  4.66% 6,552,071 8.05% 

Loans on pledge  37,121,202  33.33% 24,967,611 30.66% 

Loans on mortgage and 

guarantee 

 3,006,774  2.70% 4,297,016 5.28% 

Loans on pledge and 

guarantee 

 12,769,819  11.46% 8,587,907 10.54% 

Loans on mortgage and 

pledge 

 4,966,239  4.46% 6,046,976 7.43% 

Discount  1,547,699  1.39%  3,047,121  3.74% 

Documentary credit  120,662  0.11%  521,095  0.64% 

Other credits  554,532  0.50%  781,456  0.96% 
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Total 111,373,540 100.00% 81,424,222 100.00% 

3. Five-level classification of credit assets 

Current Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan 

Item 
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 

Amount Proportion Amount Proportion 

Normal loans 110,864,868 99.54% 81,094,969 99.60% 

Normal 

category 

109,432,552 98.25% 80,828,204 99.27% 

Concerned 

category 

1,432,315 1.29% 266,766 0.33% 

Non-performing 

loans 

508,672 0.46% 329,252 0.40% 

Secondary 

category 

289,332 0.26% 76,170 0.09% 

Suspicious 

category 

177,204 0.16% 229,528 0.28% 

Loss category 42,138 0.04% 23,554 0.03% 

Total 111,373,540 100% 81,424,222 100% 

4. Overdue loans 

Current Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan 

Item 
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 

Amount Proportion Amount Proportion 

Loans overdue for 1 day to 

less than 90 days 

(inclusive) 

4,074,552 92.17% 1,059,090 80.53% 

Loans overdue for 90 days 

to 1 year (inclusive) 
172,569 3.90% 33,689 2.56% 

Loans overdue for 1 year 

to 3 years (inclusive) 
126,644 2.86% 199,809 15.19% 

Loans overdue for more 46,824 1.06% 22,585 1.72% 
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than 3 years 

合计 4,420,589 100.00% 1,315,173 100.00% 

5. Variations of loan impairment provision 

Current Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan 

Item 2014 2013 

Balance at the beginning of the 

year 

 1,499,980   930,947  

Withholding/(reversing) of the 

year 

 615,238   580,958  

Collected and canceled after 

verification of the year 

 937   1,290  

Loans canceled after verification 

in the year 

- -  

Reversing due to appreciation of 

discounted value 

 -1,962   -7,832  

Exchange rate variation and 

other adjustments 

 161   -5,384  

Balance at the end of the year  2,114,353   1,499,980  

6. Non-performing loans and appropriate measures 

In 2014, the Bank controlled credit risks by abiding by regulatory requirements 

strictly in active response to complex and severe external economic and financial 

environment. It made sure that credit risks could be effectively identified before, during 

and after issuing loans by designing reasonable systems and control procedures, and 

took appropriate measures to control credit risks. Besides, XIB also intensified its 

efforts for risk management continuously through enriching management tools, 

strengthening forecast analysis, improving early warning regime and other risk control 

and monitoring means. During the reporting period, the Bank’s credit asset size grew 

steadily, credit structure continued to optimize, non-performing loan ratio maintained a 

sound interbank level, and provision coverage was sufficient and met external 

regulatory requirements. 
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 (IV) Core Competitiveness Analysis 

1. Developing differentiated and characteristic operation and management models 

As the first commercial bank to introduce in foreign strategic investors in China, 

XIB has absorbed and learned the governance concepts and experience from 

international advanced banks, and boasts of many strong points, such as the 

independence of operation and management, the preciseness of risk control and 

reasonability of incentive regime of a foreign-funded bank. After the successful 

restructuring into a Chinese-funded commercial bank in 2013, the Bank has further 

developed a good governance regime featuring well-defined power and duty and 

effective check and balance, and has the sound operation and management systems, 

regimes and style which are distinct from most commercial banks. It has focused on the 

improvement of its soft power in these four aspects, namely, flexible handling of 

emergencies, organization management, employee quality and cultural core. In 2014, 

with its ability to understand the situation and foresight for overall arrangement, the 

Bank achieved significant increase of the proportions of customer deposits and 

customer assets, considerable optimization of business structure and developed a good 

non-procyclical development trend. Through constant strengthening and enhancement, 

XIB has built a strong organizational and cultural core to continuously reinforcing the 

linkage among department, lines and offices and employees’ sense of belonging and 

recognition, thus, making the organizational and cultural soft power into the backbone 

of rapid development of the Bank. In 2014, the Bank was on the leading level in the 

industry in terms of assets per capita, deposits per capita, loans per capita and profits per 

capita. 

2. Adhering to international strategic positioning and strengthening domestic and 

overseas linkage advantages. 

With long-term adherence to its international strategic positioning, XIB is now the 

first among urban commercial banks across China to establish affiliated organizations in 

Hong Kong and Macau, and foreign exchange transactions, international settlement 

business, off-shore business and domestic and overseas linkage business have become 

its traditional business advantages, which are recognized and favored by our clients. The 
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Bank has developed the branch network with presence in Chinese Mainland, Hong 

Kong and Macau, and covering the four developed economic regions in China, i.e. the 

Yangtze River Delta, the Pearl River Delta, Circum-Bohai Sea and West Coast of 

Taiwan Straits, and possessed regional advantages and strategic arrangement advantages 

above and beyond most small and medium-sized urban commercial banks, which has 

laid a solid foundation for the medium and long-term development of the Bank. 

3. Establishing the prudent and sound quality management system which controls 

risks effectively. 

XIB has fostered and developed the prudent and sound risk culture by always 

upholding the strategic thinking of acting with integrity, operating with wisdom, 

controlling risks and managing in a lean way; emphasizing the principle of “three lines”, 

which means taking strict precaution against touching the high-voltage line of 

pursuance to law and compliance, holding fast to the ethic moral bottom line and 

following the Bank’s operational and management standard line. The Bank has 

produced great outcome in terms of strict risk control via many means by keeping 

reforming and improving quality management and internal control systems and regimes, 

and continuously building all-round quality management shield. In 2014, 

non-performing loan ratio continued to stay at low level, below 0.5%. 

 (V) Major Changes to Business Environment and Macro Policies and Regulations 

during the Reporting Period and Their Impact 

In 2014, under the background of the Triple Superposition and the influence of 

such factors as weakened domestic and overseas demand, excess production capacity 

and cyclical adjustment to the real estate industry, China’s economic growth slowed 

down to at the rate of 7.4%. The inflation level stayed low throughout the year and 

employment grew steadily. Macro-control polices took more initiative to get adapted to 

the new normal of economic development and put pattern change and structure 

adjustment in the focal position by upholding the general work keynote of seeking 

improvement in stability and the overall thinking of stable macro-policies and flexible 

micro-policies. The People’s Bank of China continued to implement prudent monetary 

policies, which not only maintained its composure but also demonstrated its initiative 
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acts, by continuously supplementing and improving monetary policy tool sets and 

making pre-emptive and fine adjustment at the right time to the right extent. 

In 2014, as influenced by declined economic growth, strict monetary policies and 

increasingly severe regulation on interbank business, asset and liability growth in the 

banking industry slowed down in China, but asset and liability structure featured trend 

adjustment, where interest-bearing asset size growth declined on the whole, interbank 

asset size reduced significantly, and the income advantages of creditor’s right assets 

became obvious gradually. Furthermore, under the influence of such factors as further 

boost of interest rate liberalization, accelerated development of financial 

disintermediation, intensifying interbank and trans-boundary competition and increasing 

regulatory requirements, commercial banks faced tremendous pressure and challenge in 

terms of operation and management. 

 (VI) Prospect the Future Development of the Bank 

The Bank will inherit and carry forward the strategic thinking of acting with 

integrity, operating with wisdom, controlling risks and managing in a lean way, and 

adhere to the strategic positioning of remedying defects, seizing opportunities, 

achieving in-depth development, creating differentiation and doing business 

internationally. It will deepen the reform of operation and management models, enhance 

organizational and cultural core advantages, strive to accomplish the strategic goal of 

attaining forefront status and creating the benchmark for small and medium-sized banks 

in China. 

In 2015, with external situation remaining complex and changeful, by following 

the working guideline of the year that innovation leads new pattern, channels upgrade 

big platforms, development transformation writes a new chapter and perfect 

accomplishment leads to the future; centering on the improvement of capital efficiency; 

taking in-depth development of corporate business as the cornerstone; and considering 

retail business and quasi-investment banking business as the two main strategic 

directions, XIB will focus on pushing forward the “three transformations,” which means 

that the Company’s business will be transformed towards specialization and refinement 

to go deep and thorough into market segments while achieving the development of both 
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balance sheet assets and managed assets; financial institution business will be 

transformed towards pan-financial institution business and big asset management 

business, which will give full play to the role of financial institution business as a driver 

and realize the favorable movement of assets throughout the Bank; financial market 

business will be transformed towards transaction-based business so that transactional 

price difference will become a main source of income. In 2015, XIB will have the 

following main working measures: 

1. Continuously deepening the reform of operation and management models and 

further driving the implementation of resource allocation, organizational process 

re-engineering, quality management, new technology application and other reform 

matters by inspiring the morale and energy throughout the Bank; improving group 

control model, pushing forward branch rating work, carrying out differentiated 

management of offices to promote the favorable competitive atmosphere in which 

offices compete among themselves; deepening the model of big head office, strong 

branches and refined sub-branches to improve business operation efficiency by 

considering business development needs; researching and designing medium and 

long-term reform and strategic development matters for arranging the Fourth Five-year 

Plan of the Bank in an all-round way and tackling internal and external new situations 

with foresight. 

2. Strengthening basic client building and maintenance and actively expanding 

their current account deposits; doing market segment business in an in-depth and 

thorough way to maintain and expand comparison advantages in market segments; 

innovating retail business development paths and vigorously promoting the 

development of retail business through multi-channel and batch-based expansion client 

strategy and by means of outlet transformation and business process optimization using 

new service channels, such as direct-selling banking, telephone banking and Super IC 

Card; taking initiative to boost the development of quasi-investment banking, asset 

management and other businesses to widen the source of income from intermediate 

business and create new profit growth points. 

3. Innovating new financial institution business models and exploring new 
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businesses, including wealth management for clients, securitization of credit assets, to 

promote the sustainable development of financial institution business; enlarging the 

business transaction scale in the financial market actively to increase the income from 

price difference of financial market business, and further improving profitability 

through creating large volume and high velocity; continuously creating non-interest 

spread income and profit channels to meet the challenge arising from interest rate 

liberalization effectively. 

4. Enhancing the initiative of risk management by introducing policies and 

guidelines related to key business with foresight in a timely manner and guiding the 

healthy and orderly development of business based on continuous optimization and 

improvement of phased focus of business; establishing 2015 as the year of compliance 

management by reinforcing the education and publicity of compliance culture 

throughout the Bank, pushing forward the care prevention and control work in an 

in-depth way and building the long-term regime in which the whole staff is engaged in 

case prevention; strengthening the prevention of and control over credit risks and 

operational risks, and improving the technical contents of the management of market 

risks and liquidity risks to expand the control coverage on all types of risks in a 

comprehensive way. 

5. Intensifying talent hiring and introduction to provide human resource guarantee 

for business development; carrying out cultural themed activities in rich forms centering 

on the 30
th

 anniversary of the Bank to develop good operation and management 

atmosphere; strengthening the efforts for training employees at all levels and carrying 

forward the building of training systems and the XIB Institute steadily to create a 

three-dimension space for employees’ development; increasing investment in brand 

publicity and social charity activities to keep improving the Bank’s social image and 

awareness. 

6. Driving a new round of capital and share increase and other key jobs to further 

improve capital strength; carrying out the work to build the system of process-driven 

group business operation, virtualized service channels and intelligent management 

decision-making, and substantially boosting the building of internet finance 
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technological system to continue to enhance the security system for information 

technology operation safety. 

 

II. Business Review 

 (I) Corporate Business 

In 2014, the Bank realized favorable growth of corporate business. Firstly, the 

liability business rose quickly as client settlement business, and domestic and overseas 

linage business were great stimulus to the development of liability business, and a wide 

range of industrial and commercial enterprises, listed companies and small and 

medium-sized enterprise clients have boosted the growth of deposits effectively. 

Secondly, the income from asset business climbed steadily. The income structure 

became more diversified through actively promoting the adjustment to client structure 

and business category structure. The small and medium-sized enterprise credit business 

was moved forward positively, while a wide variety of credit businesses for traditional 

industry enterprises, equity pledge and operational property were carried out 

continuously. Thirdly, there was business innovations for internationalization and 

differentiation with full use of the cross-border RMB settlement business pushed 

forward and the improvement of RMB internationalization to stimulate the growth of 

income from intermediate business of the cross-border business. 

 (II) Retail Business 

In 2014, XIB actively coped with the changes to market environment by giving 

great impetus to the reform of retail business model. It implemented the guideline of 

attracting individual clients, visiting communities, promoting connections, building 

systems and establishing rules in an all-round and in-depth way, and carried forward the 

jobs of stipulating regulations and rules. Throughout the year, the Bank organized and 

carried out over 500 times of “three visits” community marketing activities in many 

forms and a wide range of competition activities, and it launched several featured 

products, such as “earn every day” wealth management, credit certification, POS 

services for wealth management and second-hand housing transaction capital escrow, 

which improved a series of regulations and systems, including individual credit business, 
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loans on mortgage, consumption loans and operational loans, advanced quick growth of 

the number of individual client and small and micro enterprise clients and solidified the 

client base on which business development relied. 

In 2014, LIB’s retail business kept growing fast and made new breakthroughs in 

many areas. The number of clients who traded stocks online rose quickly and the 

income from processing fees of agency business made new record high consecutively. 

Exploration of customer deposits in Hong Kong made significant breakthrough and 

retail business entered the new path of development through innovation and 

enhancement. 

 (III) Financial Institution and Financial Market Businesses 

In 2014, the Bank carried out financial institution business in a prudent way by 

strengthening communication and cooperation with all kinds of financial institutions 

and keeping enriching product systems, thus achieving steady growth of income level. 

Furthermore, based on changes to external situation, the Bank optimized the financial 

institution business structure with foresight, which effective prevented liquidity risks 

and interest rate risks and ensured the smooth operation of financial institution business. 

XIB gave great impetus to the development of financial market business, and further 

improved the profitability of financial market business while guaranteeing the liquidity 

of the Bank. As at December 2014, the Bank’s bond delivery volume reached RMB 

888.77 billion, enabling it to rank the 110
th

 among financial institutions across China, up 

by 7 compared with 2013. For foreign exchange transactions, the Bank’s main purpose 

was to manage its foreign exchange exposure risks and do hedging for its clients, and its 

main derivative financial instruments included currency forward transactions, currency 

swap transactions, currency options and interest swaps. In 2014, the Bank obtained the 

qualification for interbank gold inquiry business and the qualification for underwriting 

policy financial bonds of the Agricultural Development Bank of China. In addition, it 

also attained the reply on increasing the interbank borrowing limits from Shanghai 

Headquarters of the Peoples’ Bank of China, which was increased from RMB 900 

million originally to RMB 9 billion. Thus, it has further widened its financial market 

business area. 
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III. Capital Management 

 (I) Broadening the Channels to Supplement Capital Actively 

In accordance with the medium and long-term capital management plan, the Bank 

broadened the channels to supplement capital of external sources. On March 25, 2014, it 

issued RMB 3 billion tier 2 capital bonds successfully; in the second half of 2014, the 

Bank introduced in 42 investors for increasing capital or shares successfully with capital 

increase by RMB 1.791 billion, which further improved its capital strength. Moreover, 

the Bank took initiative to research the feasibility of going public and carried out 

preparation work related to listing in an effort to establish a long-term capital 

supplementation regime gradually. 

 (I) Reinforcing Capital Management 

While widening the channels to supplement capital actively, the Bank also drove 

the reform of operation and management models and business transformation, and took 

initiative to optimize risk asset structure in order to improve capital use efficiency. 

The Bank’s capital adequacy ratio as at December 31, 2014 was listed as 

follows: 

Core capital adequacy ratio 8.17% 

Capital adequacy ratio 10.60% 

 

IV. Risk Management 

 (I) Credit Risk Management 

The credit risks confronted by the Bank refer to the risk that the counterparty of a 

transaction fails to fulfill its relevant obligation in accordance with agreed provisions. 

These risks mainly arose from loan portfolio, investment portfolio, trade financing, 

guarantee, derivative financial instruments and other payment commitments. In 2014, 

XIB focused on deepening the adjustment to credit structure, strengthening the risk 

control of key areas, such as governmental financial platforms, real estate industry, and 

the high pollution, high energy consumption and excess production capacity industries, 

reinforcing non-balance sheet, overseas, country, collateral and consolidated-statement 

basic management, optimizing economic capital and industry limit systems, deepening 
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the use of risk measurement techniques and tools, improving monitoring means and 

regimes, optimizing the credit approval management system so that the credit risk 

management level kept rising. 

The Bank attached great importance to credit risks. It enhanced the study and 

judgment of domestic economic and regulatory situation continuously and analyzed the 

regulatory authority’s risk reminder of all kinds of loans, policy regulation directions 

and other contents; it examined and standardized access conditions in good time; 

developed credit access standards and review counterparty’s credit standing strictly; it 

continuously strengthened the management of investment business credit risks, 

controlled the credit qualification of bonds of transaction accounts sternly and 

intensified the checking of credit risks of bond investment portfolio and interbank 

businesses. XIB implemented the multi-level post-loan inspection regime, which 

covered the three levels – daily inspection by account managers, cross inspection inside 

branches and direct on-the-spot visit on key loans by the Risk Management Department 

of the Head Office, and in combination with the problems existing in the post-loan 

inspection work in the previous year, it put forth well-defined working requirements and 

reporting requirements for post-loan inspection at different levels to ensure that 

post-loan inspection work was carried out in an orderly way throughout the year and the 

ability to manage post-loan risks was improved effectively. All-round checking on credit 

risks was carried out in a comprehensive way in order to rectify the problems identified 

in the inspection in a timely manner, exit the loans with hidden risks and prevent and get 

rid of risks in advance to ensure overall asset quality. Risk line management was 

performed actively to prevent all kinds of risks through taking initiative to remove 

potential hidden risks effectively. While achieving rapid growth of business, the Bank's 

asset quality continued to stay stable and sound with sufficient provision withholding. 

As at end of the 2014, the balance of non-performing loans was RMB 509 million at the 

ratio of 0.46%, and the concerned loan ratio was 1.29%. 

 (II) Market Risk Management 

In 2014, XIB took all sorts of means to prevent and control market risks vigorously 

by establishing the limit structure system which included regulatory limit, position limit 
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and risk limit and performing identification, monitoring and control of market risks so 

that all market risk indicators met regulatory requirements, thus providing a good 

development environment for business expansion. 

As at the end of December 2014, the Bank’s general market risks calculated by 

using the standard method was RMB 189.1255 million, including interest rate risk in the 

amount of RMB 14.3817 million, foreign exchange risk amounting to RMB 174.7438 

million and specific risk reaching RMB 41.5329 million. The total market risk capital 

requirements was RMB 230.6584 million, and the total risk weighted assets of market 

risks was RMB 2,883.2304 billion. 

Currency Unit: RMB Thousand Yuan 

Item Amount 

1. General market risks 189,125.50 

1.1 Interest rate risk 14,381.69 

1.2 Stock risk - 

1.3 Foreign exchange risk 174,743.81 

1.4 Commodity risk - 

1.5 Option risk - 

2. Specific risks 41,532.93 

3. New risks - 

4. Specific risks exposed by the transaction account 

asset securitization risk 
- 

 

5. Total market risk capital requirements 
230,658.44 

6. Total risk weighted assets of market risks 2,883,230.44 

 

1. Bond investment 

For bond investment business, the Bank adhered to the principles of safety, 

profitability and liquidity. Based on its asset and liability management and its own 

business development needs, the Bank was engaged in bond investment business 

prudently, and the nature of the business basically accommodated its operational scale 

and risk tolerance level. As at the end of 2014, bond investment portfolios throughout 

the Bank were robust. 
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2. Interest rate and exchange rate risks 

The Bank assessed the interest rate and exchange rate risks that it took via 

sensitivity analysis, which meant regular calculation of the difference (gap) between the 

interest-bearing assets which would be due in a certain period or need to be re-priced 

and interest-paying liabilities, and it conducted sensitivity analysis under the 

circumstance of any change to the benchmark interest rate, market interest rate and 

exchange rate by using the gap data, which provided guidance for the Bank to adjust the 

re-pricing period structure of interest-bearing assets and interest-paying liabilities. The 

Bank established the forecast, monitoring and reporting system to summarize sensitivity 

analysis results on a regular basis and notify relevant departments in a timely manner, 

such as the Risk Management Committee, Assets and Liabilities Management 

Committee, Investment Management Committee, etc. Based on sensitivity analysis, 

XIB controlled its interest rate risks by means of controlling the distribution of due 

dates of loans and deposits, re-pricing dates and the conditions of gap between assets 

and liabilities on the re-pricing date. 

3. Interest rate risk sensitivity gap analysis 

The Bank’s interest rate risks arose from the gap between the agreed due dates and 

re-pricing dates of interest-bearing financial assets and interest-paying liabilities. As at 

the end of December 2014, the Bank’s domestic offices had the interest rate risk 

sensitivity of -1.30% while LIB’s interest rate risk sensitivity was 9.0%, both below the 

20% alert level, indicating that current interest rate risks were controllable on the whole. 

4. Exchange rate risk 

For domestic offices, the Bank was mainly engaged in RMB business, and it used 

RMB as its standard money. The overall foreign exchange open position was only RMB 

17.6289 million with low exchange rate risk. 

For LIB, it uses Macau Pataca (MOP) as its standard money. At present, its deposit 

structure is dominated by HKD and MOP, and loans and investment are mainly 

denominated in HKD, MOP and USD while other foreign currencies take a small 

proportion. Its overall foreign exchange exposure was MOP 2.167 billion (mostly USD 

swap), rising slightly compared with RMB 1.233 billion at the end of last year. In the 



The Annual Report 2014 Xiamen International Bank Co. Ltd.   [English translation for reference only] 

95 

pegged exchange rate system, LIB’s foreign exchange rate risk was low. With RMB 

internationalization and increasing off-shore RMB deposits of Macau citizens, LIB will 

participate in the boost of RMB business, which will become one of the main currency 

for assets and liabilities of LIB. In current stage, LIB’s principle of RMB liability and 

asset business is the match between RMB liabilities and assets to reduce direct 

exchange rate risks. 

 (III) Operational Risk Management 

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss caused by defective or problematic 

internal processes, people and systems or external events. The Bank focuses on 

operational risk management from these aspects, i.e. organizational structure and risk 

culture security, internal and external institutions and norms, computer system support 

and human resource incentive and restriction regime. 

1. XIB upheld the principle of “institution first” consistently. It continued to 

enhance the implementation of the Operational Risk Management Policy and 

operational risk event reporting system. In pursuance of relevant state regulations, in 

combination of actual work, it developed and kept improving basic systems and 

standards of operation of all kinds of business to improve business processes 

continuously with normalized and standardized requirements in addition to guaranteeing 

the effective implementation of all regulations and systems through internal audit and 

all-round compliance inspection. 

2. The Bank carried out the risk management framework with well-defined 

authority and duty and implemented the check and balance regime featuring separation 

among foreground, middle-ground and background of each business. It attached great 

importance to the development of healthy risk culture in daily work and emphasized 

that everyone was responsible for risk management. The Bank established correct 

values and professional ethic values through constant trainings and publicity to 

strengthen all people’s awareness of compliance risk management and professional 

integrity. It defined the boundaries of their own responsibilities and established 

horizontal and vertical supervision and restriction regime to reinforce internal control 

through setting up eight monitoring “lines of defence.” 
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3. The Bank issued a series of management policies related to operational risks, 

which provided for the principles of operational risk management, organizational 

structure and responsibilities for operational risk management, identification of 

operational risks, information collection and reporting of operational risk events, 

operational risk control and other contents, and divided the Bank’s operational risks 

from the perspective of eight business lines
4
 and seven risk sources

5
. Moreover, the 

Bank further intensified its work in terms of operational risk emergency management 

and operational risk indicator quantitive research with view to establish effective 

operational risk quantitive indicator monitoring systems. 

4. The Bank has gradually built the system with both human control and machine 

control to strengthen multi-dimension and multi-angle monitoring management in 

addition to the formation of a wide variety of regular and irregular operational risk 

monitoring process management systems. In 2014, the Bank’s new core and periphery 

supporting systems was finished and put into operation officially, which significantly 

enhanced the operational risk management of daily business. In 2014, XIB used the 

safety auditing system to provide multi-dimension operation and maintenance control so 

that system administrators could have centralized account management and fine-granule 

authority management and access auditing on all kinds of resources (e.g. servers, safety 

devices, database, etc.) in an all-round way, which helped the Bank to improve its 

internal risk control level and reduce the occurrence of operational risk events through 

machine control. By following regulatory requirements, the Bank prevented counter 

operational risks via video monitoring. In accordance with the Administrative Measures 

on Non-spot Business Inspection of the Monitoring System, the Planning and Finance 

Department of the Head Office conducted non-spot inspection on counter business 

using the monitoring system to pay attention to the compliance of counter business 

operations and guarantee no blind angle of treasury monitoring, giving full play to 

machine control. 

 (IV) Liquidity Risk Management 

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that funds cannot be obtained at reasonable cost to 

repay debts or investment asset portfolio. XIB’s liquidity risk management goal is to 
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make sure that there is sufficient fund source available at any time to meet the needs of 

repaying due deposits and liabilities while satisfying client’s needs and taking new 

investment opportunities in a timely manner. 

The Bank’s liquidity risk was managed and controlled by the Head Office in a 

centralized way. Based on the established and sound liquidity risk management system, 

XIB comprehensively used tools and means, such as static gap limit, dynamic gap 

smooth planning, duration gap management and liquidity management dynamic model, 

to effectively identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity risk and maintain 

sufficient liquidity level to satisfy all kinds of fund needs and deal with adverse market 

conditions, thus controlling liquidity risk level within the Bank’s bearable range to 

promote its sustainable and healthy development. 

At the end of 2014, the Bank registered 33.92% domestic liquidity ratio, 48.15% 

group caliber loan-to-deposit ratio, 36.27% domestic office caliber loan-to-deposit ratio 

and 2.18% domestic office excess reserves rate, all of which met regulatory 

requirements. 

1. The Board of Directors of the Bank approved the setting of a wide range of 

liquidity limit indicators and ratio indicators, including loan-to-deposit ratio, liquidity 

ratio, excess reserve rate, liquidity gap ratio, core liability dependence, net accumulated 

cash flow mismatch, deposit concentration limit, maturity gap limit, duration gap limit, 

etc.. The Asset and Liability Management Committee provided suggestions on specific 

indicator values in accordance with regulations and bank liquidity management 

requirements, which were reported to the Office Meeting of the Administration of the 

Group for approval before implementation and monitored by the Asset and Liability 

Management Committee on a regular basis. 

2. The liquidity management department established the forecast analysis regime 

for daily liquidity needs, which reckoned the future cash flow which would possibly 

arise from balance sheet and non-balance sheet businesses into the cash inflow and 

outflow in the set period, obtained the net mismatch during the cash flow period by cash 

inflow less cash outflow and calculated the net cash flow mismatch during a certain 

period in the way of accumulation. The future cash flow of the net cash flow mismatch 
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was divided into the cash flow with confirmed maturity date and the cash flow with 

unconfirmed maturity date. Research and analysis of characteristics of the cash flow 

were conducted to determine anticipated cash flow based on historical experience data, 

which were reviewed and adjusted on a regular basis. 

3. Management of concentration limit. In order to maintain the diversity and 

stability of fund source and avoid excessive concentration of fund sources in individual 

competitors, products or markets, the Asset and Liability Management Committee 

managed concentration limit for the varieties, currencies, periods, transaction 

counterparties, risk mitigation tools, industries, markets and regions of the balance sheet 

and non-balance sheet liabilities to prevent liquidity risk as a result of excessive 

concentration of assets and liabilities. 

4. The Bank allocated the liquidity structure of assets reasonably, made maturity 

gap size effectively, determined liquidity and income smoothness plans and reinforced 

response plan management to improve the initiative and foresight of liquidity risk 

management. The Bank strived to analyze and manage liquidity risks with foresight in 

an all-round and systematic way by effectively using multiple management tools, such 

as accumulated gap limit, maturity concentration gap limit, duration gap and beforehand 

dynamic scenario simulation planning and management. 

5. In adherence to the principle of prudence, the Bank prudently assessed the 

influence of credit risks, market risks, operational risks, country risks, compliance risks 

and reputation risks on the liquidity of asset and liability businesses and paid close 

attention to the conversion and transmission among different risks. 

 (V) Compliance Risk and Country Risk Management 

Compliance risk means the risk that a commercial bank may incur legal sanction, 

regulatory punishment, major financial loss and reputation loss as a result of its failure 

to comply with laws, rules and norms. The Board of Directors of the Bank is ultimately 

responsible for the compliance of the Bank’s business activities and it authorizes its 

Risk Management Committee to supervise compliance risk management. 

1. The Bank continuously deepened compliance risk management and compliance 

inspection by promoting and implementing the Compliance Risk Management Policy 
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and Compliance Management Work Book to improve employee’s compliance awareness. 

It took initiative to compare and organize compliance regulatory indicators and prudent 

indicators to make sure the compliance met standards and the prudent and regulatory 

indicators were optimized constantly. 

2. By following relevant requirements of the regulatory authority, the Bank 

deployed and carried out special governance activities featuring “seven prohibitions and 

four disclosures,” finished the standardization and reporting of service charge items and 

passed the CBRC’s on-the-spot inspection successfully; it organized the whole bank to 

carry out publicity and education activities to prevent and crack down illegal fund 

raising in an in-depth way. 

3. Based on regulatory requirements and in consideration of actual conditions, the 

Bank included country risk into the all-round risk management system, defined country 

risk management framework and assignment of responsibilities, and organized business 

process to monitor and control country risk exposure and provision conditions. 

 (VI) Information Technology Risk Management 

XIB attaches great importance to the risk prevention of the information technology 

system and included it into its internal control management system. The Bank 

established the information technology governance organizational structure framework 

with clear structure and well-defined responsibilities to strengthen management and 

leadership of information technology risks, thus effectively preventing, controlling and 

mitigating information technology risks. It built and improved information technology 

management measures and standards of operation from such links as safety 

management, need management, development management, testing management, 

project management and operation and maintenance management in consideration of the 

Bank’s actual conditions by referring to state laws and regulations and technical 

standards related to information technology. 

 (VII) Reputation Risk Management 

 The Bank improved its reputation risk management level by continuously 

strengthening reputation risk management awareness, improving the early warning 

regime for reputation risk and case prevention risk, perfecting the reputation risk 
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management emergency response regime and actively maintaining communication 

channels. It upheld the philosophy of strict adherence to integrity and developed the 

mindset that credit was the foundation of doing business, reputation was the basis of 

survival and reputation management creates value, which enabled all employees to have 

correct understanding of the relationship between business development and reputation 

risk, to guide employees to take imitative to safeguard the Bank’s reputation. The Bank 

included reputation risks into the all-round quality management framework, and 

established and improved the early warning regime for reputation crisis, which 

prevented and controlled reputation risks effectively. 

 (VIII) Anti-money Laundering Management 

XIB established the risk-foremost anti-money laundering management work model 

and built a comprehensive risk prevention and control system. It enhanced the 

assessment and guidance of anti-money laundering work of branches, kept improving 

administrative measures on anti-money laundering lists, updated the anti-money 

laundering risk rating indicator system, optimized and modified the client anti-money 

laundering risk rating and classification management system, organized internal 

organizational management framework, and focused on the close combination between 

anti-money laundering theories and actual anti-money laundering work based on 

institution building and by relying on organizational initiation. The Bank paid attention 

to the development of business skills of frontline people and organized internal and 

external exchanges and learning. It attempted to realize innovative combination among 

anti-money laundering paring exchanges, external publicity, internal trainings, work 

summarization and experience sharing, organized and carried out anti-money laundering 

themed publicity activities and further deepened the results of internal and external 

anti-money laundering work through the linkage between the Head Offices and 

branches and the interaction between domestic and overseas offices. 

 

V. Internal Control Compliance and Case Prevention and Control 

The Bank has always highly valued the building of internal control regimes and 

case prevention and control, and considered them as important contents of the building 
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of all-round quality management. 

 (I) Strengthening the Internal Control Compliance Mindset Education on 

Employees Continuously 

The Bank enhanced employees’ institutional concept and internal control concept 

of dealing with each transaction in strict compliance with institutions and procedures to 

improve employees’ consciousness to implement the internal control system carefully so 

that each employee became a node to carry out internal control in the business operation 

process. 

 (II) Improving the Effective and Systematic Internal Control Regime 

XIB managed its internal control system in a dynamic way, which was improved 

and perfected continuously based on the development needs in different times and of 

different businesses so that the Bank’s businesses were under the supervision and 

control of the internal control system. It perfected role setting and the design of business 

standards of operation, defined the responsibilities and extent of authority of each role 

and their corresponding restriction and control measures so that each employee and the 

handling of each transaction were under the supervision and control of the internal 

control system. In particular, each transaction shall be done through two or more control 

links which had restrictive relationship in order to prevent any absence of control. 

Different extents of authority were established between the superior and subordinates, 

departments and roles based on different types of business, responsibilities and extent of 

authority for mutual restriction and balance to reinforce the overall control ability. 

 (III) Improving the Internal Control Supervision and Inspection Regime 

In 2014, the Bank’s Internal Audit Department carried out 51 auditing projects in 

total as scheduled in a risk-oriented way. It organized comprehensive inspection and 

risk assessment on all domestic branches and branch-level offices, and this work 

covered many aspects, such as credit business, financial institution business, financial 

accounting, information technology, self-supported fixed-interest bond investment, 

anti-money laundering and departure auditing, which basically achieved the inspection 

coverage of credit risks, operational risks, market risks, information technology risks 

and compliance risks. Thus, the department accomplished its working plan in 2014 well. 
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In addition, the Bank’s Internal Audit Department researched the building and 

implementation of the Bank’s internal control evaluation system in active response to 

bank management needs in consideration of external regulatory requirements; it 

intensified the learning of case prevention and control requirements and conducted 

special inspection on the internal control and case prevention and control work of the 

Bank since 2014; it reviewed the regulations and systems to be promulgated by the 

Bank on a continuous basis. 

 (IV) Enhancing the Risk Early Warning and Monitoring Regime 

The Bank established different scientific risk early warning and monitoring 

indicators based on the nature, characteristics and requirements of different businesses; 

comprehensively analyzed and judged the financial risk conditions in business operation 

by collecting true, complete, accurate and comprehensive data of business departments 

and adopting the way of combining non-spot supervision and monitoring and qualitative 

and quantitative analysis, and reported to the Board of Directors the problems and 

hidden risks identified in capital liquidity, safety, internal control and operation and 

management. 

 (V) Deepening the Case Prevention Organization Work 

Based on relevant requirements of the regulatory authority, XIB established the 

case prevention and control leading group, which organized and deployed case 

prevention and control work throughout the Bank, and signed the Statement of 

Responsibilities for Case Prevention and Control with all departments of the Head 

Office and branches, so that the working requirements for case prevention and control 

were imposed on all employees practically; it enhanced the risk control in key areas by 

organizing the inspection throughout the bank on the implementation of job rotation of 

important roles and imperative vacations, accounting and counter business of grass-root 

outlets and forefront counters, and note business and credit business; carrying out 

checking of misconducts of employees and rolling checking of deposits, to put into 

effect the regulatory authority’s requirements for inspection on “compulsory exercise” 

and “optional exercise” one by one, thus accomplishing the goal of care prevention of 

“zero case” of the year. In the regulatory authority’s regulatory rating of the Bank’s case 
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prevention in 2014, it was rated with the “Green Card” (the highest rank). 

 

VI. Consolidation Management 

The Bank’s consolidated financial statements refer to the financial statements 

which reflect the overall financial conditions, business results and cash flow of the 

group consisting of the Bank and all its subsidiaries, including consolidated balance 

sheets, consolidated income statement, consolidated cash flow statements, consolidated 

statement of changes to owners' equities and notes to the financial statements. 

 (I) Consolidation Management Work 

In 2014, the Bank continued to abide by the requirements of the Bank Guidelines 

on Consolidation Supervision (Tentative) and carried out consolidation supervision 

properly. The group-level specialized committees of the Bank, financial directors and 

relevant functional departments performed effective consolidation management of 

capital adequacy ratio, large risk exposure, liquidity risks, market risks, operational 

risks, legal risks and reputation risks, mainly including: 

1. XIB established consummate consolidation management organizational structure. 

As provided for by the Articles of Association of the Bank, “The Bank has unified 

leadership and management of all policies, basic regulations and systems, 

comprehensive plans and appointment and dismissal of senior management members of 

its wholly-owned affiliates.” The “affiliates” referred to in the Articles of Association 

mean the domestic and overseas subsidiary banks, non-bank financial institutions and 

non-financial institutions which are controlled by the Bank as well as other institutions 

which should be within the consolidation scope according to laws and regulations. For a 

long time, the Bank has included its affiliates in Hong Kong and Macau into the scope 

of group overall development strategies, and had consolidation management of their 

assets, finance and risk by making a series of management policies and strategies in the 

aspects of management systems, capital adequacy ratio, large risk exposure, internal 

transactions and other risk management. 

2. The Board of Directors of the Bank assumed ultimate responsibilities for the 

operation and management of the whole bank. It was responsible for developing the 
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general strategies and guidelines of the Bank’s group consolidation management and 

supervising their implementation in the group and its affiliates. The senior management 

made business systems and procedures in accordance with the strategic guidelines and 

decisions determined by the Board of Directors, and monitored and assessed the 

sufficiency and effectiveness of consolidation management. 

3. The Bank was committed to establish and continuously improve the all-round 

quality management system and built the identification, measurement, monitoring and 

control system covering a wide range of risks in the domestic and overseas affiliated 

companies and throughout the Bank, such as credit risks, market risks and liquidity 

risks. 

4. For consolidation information management and disclosure, the Bank’s domestic 

offices (parent company) prepared domestic and overseas consolidated financial 

statements in accordance with accounting norms and relevant regulations each month, 

and processed the accounting information which reflected the financial conditions, 

business results, changes to shareholders’ equities and risk conditions in a consolidated 

way. XIB prepared domestic and overseas consolidated capital adequacy statement in 

pursuance of the CBRC’s non-spot regulatory statement caliber every half a year. It 

monitored the capital adequacy conditions of the parent company and its affiliates 

within the scope of capital consolidation to ensure that the group’s capital adequacy 

ratio met regulatory requirements. 

For a long time, XIB has engaged the Big Four international accounting firms to 

conduct external audit and present auditor’s reports for the parent company and its 

affiliates. The Bank has established the internal audit regime matching its scale, nature 

and scope of business, and one of the internal audit’s job duties was to examine and 

verify consolidation management information. Over the years, the Bank has provided 

consolidation management information in a timely, accurate and complete way to the 

supervision and management authority of the banking industry in compliance with 

regulatory provisions. 

 (II) Transactions between XIB and Its Affiliated Companies in 2014 

The transactions between XIB and its subsidiaries mainly included the business 
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transactions with LIB and Xiamen International Investment Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong). 

Balances and outstanding transaction amounts between the Bank and its 

subsidiaries at the end of the period were as follows: 

 Currency Unit: RMB Yuan 

Item December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 

 

Deposits with LIB 
7,356,078,767  2,759,175,089  

Receivables from Xiamen International 

Investment Co., Ltd. 
211,196,089  210,489,309  

Deposits by LIB 1,851,954,318  3,050,143,105  

Balance of certificate of deposits 

underwritten by LIB 
4,895,200,000  5,853,024,000 

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries included in the income 

statement of the period were listed as follows: 

Currency Unit: RMB Yuan 

Item 2014 2013 

Interest income from deposits with LIB 57,856,733 38,478,523 

Interest income from receivables from Xiamen 

International Investment Co., Ltd. 

2,046 110,739 

Interest expenditure for deposits by LIB 190,263,795 40,827,622 

Financing arrangement fees for certificates of deposit 

paid to LIB 

12,180,873   7,313,232  

Interest expenditure for certificates of deposit paid to 

LIB 

174,869,255 118,061,370 

Interest expenditure for the payments made by LIB as 

agency 

- 30,590,062 

 (III) Business Overview of LIB as at the End of 2014 

In 2014, LIB realized sound and high-quality development with great growth 

momentum of businesses and profits by further deepening the reform of operation and 

management models, enriching marketing means continuously and intensifying business 
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expansion. At the end of 2014, LIB recorded total assets equivalent to RMB 56.311 

billion, liabilities equivalent to RMB 54.569 billion, owners’ equities equivalent to 

RMB 1.742 billion, the balance of deposits equivalent to RMB 39.645 billion, the 

balance of loans equivalent to RMB 39.428, net book profits throughout the year 

equivalent to RMB 283 million (calculated in accordance with Chinese Accounting 

Standards); its capital adequacy ratio was 10.50% with 6.98% core capital adequacy 

ratio; non-performing loan ratio was 0.35% with good asset quality level; provision 

coverage ratio was 484.38% with sufficient provision withholding. 

 

VII. Human Resources Management 

In 2014, XIB established and improved its human resource management system in 

a continuous way in the aspects of system building, talent selection and hiring, 

employee trainings, performance management, remunerations and incentives, 

organizational structure and corporate culture development by giving full play to its 

flexible and efficient organizational advantages, and innovative and pioneering cultural 

advantages. Main aspects were as follows: 

 (I) System Building 

The Bank amended many systems based on existing systems, including the 

Administrative Measures on Risk Prevention of Departing Personnel and the 

Administrative Measures on Working Disciplines for Managers. Existing systems 

covered such aspects as talent hiring, employee trainings, performance management, 

remunerations and benefits and employees’ behaviors and further improved the system 

of human resource management regimes, promoting the Bank’s human resource 

management to be more reasonable and standardized. 

 (II) Talent Selection and Hiring 

Based on its development needs, the Bank kept enriching its hiring channels in 

accordance with the strategy of quality in the lead, while it intensified investment in 

hiring work and resource support under the guidance of marketing philosophies in 

addition to the optimization of hiring management regime and process with focus on the 

introduction of high-end talents. Furthermore, guided by the risk management concept, 
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the Bank further intensified its hiring and selection to hire talents in a virtue-oriented 

way and paid more attention to candidates’ mindset and moral quality. As at the end of 

2014, there were 2,378 employees in various categories, rising by 41% compared with 

2013. With continuous reinforcement of mining, development and management of 

managers, the Bank was bold to employ passionate young employees who dared to fight, 

and it promoted 331 grass-root and middle and high-level managers in total throughout 

the year to fill in management positions at all levels in a quick and timely manner, 

which laid a solid management foundation for the rapid development of the Bank’s 

business. 

 (III) Employee Trainings 

Facing the needs of rapid development of banking business in 2014, especially 

under the circumstance of introducing a large number of new hires through both social 

recruitment and campus recruitment as well as the promotion of new managers, the 

Bank’s Human Resources Department further divide the training needs of different 

types of personnel aiming to improve substantial results. It continuously optimized the 

organization and implementation plans of a wide variety of special training programs 

and deepened the building of such training brands as “Excellent Eagle Flies,” “Eya 

Growth Training Camp” and “Gold Seeds.” Accumulatively, throughout the Bank, there 

were 416 sessions of internal lectures and special internal trainings of all kinds and 111 

sessions of overseas internal trainings with 16,460 training person-time and 7 training 

person-time on average, making a new record high again in terms of training 

person-time, which gave full play to the supporting role of talent development in 

business development. Besides, the Bank kept innovating and optimizing training 

methods and organization and implementation processes, and it was committed to the 

development and construction of e-learning platforms and XIB Institute, which laid a 

good foundation for building a learning organization with all its strength. 

 (IV) Performance Management and Remunerations and Incentives 

In order to further improve the timeliness of incentives and assessment, XIB issued 

the assessment results of the previous year and a series of assessment measures for 2014 

at the beginning of the year in a timely manner. Moreover, it optimized incentive and 
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assessment means on a continuous basis by making special incentive plans and 

designing differentiated incentive rules, which enhanced employees' morale and lifted 

passion effectively. The Bank adhered to use the comprehensive performance ranking 

list for marketing teams and staff. It persisted in adopting the attention regime for the 

teams and people falling behind, and followed and paid attention to the performance 

improvement of these teams and people to inspire those advancing and stimulate those 

falling behind. This gave play to the baton role of performance assessment and 

improved the remuneration and incentive system ceaselessly. 

 (V) Organizational Structure Management 

Based on its development needs after restructuring, XIB carried out management 

structure reform and the adjustment and allocation of organizational structure and 

managers of its branches in a comprehensive way throughout the Bank. In the structure 

of group management model of “three places and one head office
6
”, the Bank kept 

pushing forward the change to lines of the Head Office and the organization of branches 

and sub-branches as well as team fission; in particular, the continual fission of 

marketing teams provided a spacious development platform for the Bank’s excellent 

talents. The organizational fission and establishment of new offices led to a large 

number of management roles, so the Human Resources Department organized and 

promoted a large group of managers quickly at the beginning of the year, and it was 

especially bold to appoint excellent young employees. The newly promoted managers 

had high comprehensive quality and they got into the groove after reporting to duty. 

They made extraordinary contributions to the Bank’s performance guided by the 

concept of gaining forefront status. 

 (VI) Corporate Culture Development 

Centering on the theme of making quick changes and rapid progress of 2014 and 

following the steps of planning, fighting, accumulating and going all out for the four 

quarters, the Bank organized many times of culture boosting activities successively to 

meet the needs of business development of the Bank, and it also organized the tour 

lecture throughout the Bank – “Winning in XIB: Employee Growth Sharing Session”, 

the themed cultural joint performance participated by about 1000 people – “Love in 



The Annual Report 2014 Xiamen International Bank Co. Ltd.   [English translation for reference only] 

109 

XIB • Love Creates Glory” and other cultural activities, which enhanced employees’ 

sense of pride and cohesion. The Head Office and branches made timely publicity and 

coverage of the opening of new offices, advanced people, excellent teams and other 

examples through the internal cultural publicity platform, enabling employees 

throughout the Bank to witness benchmarking of excellence, which delivered positive 

energy and inspired the confidence of all people, thus giving ceaseless spiritual impetus 

to the Bank’s successful accomplishment of the entire year’s performance goal. 

 

VIII. Profit Distribution 

 (I) Development of the Profit Distribution Policy 

The Bank sets forth the profit distribution policy in its Articles of Association 

explicitly: the Bank can distribute dividend using cash or shares. In the case of 

distributing dividend with shares, the Shareholders’ Meeting shall adopt a resolution, 

which shall be submitted to the supervision and management authority for the banking 

industry of the State Council for approval. XIB implements a sustainable and sound 

dividend policy. Dividend must meet regulatory requirements and the after-tax profits 

after covering losses and withholding the statutory accumulation fund, general provision 

and discretionary accumulation fund shall be distributed by shareholding proportion of 

the shareholders. 

 (II) Implementation of Profit Distribution Policy 

XIB implements sustainable and sound dividend policy. The profit distribution 

plan of 2013 was made in strict accordance with the provisions of the Articles of 

Association and implemented in 2014 after being considered and adopted in the 

Shareholders’ Meeting. The profit distribution plan of 2013 was as follows: this profit 

distribution used this group’s total capital stock amounting to RMB 2,004,300,000 as 

the cardinal number and cash dividend was issued to registered shareholders. With cash 

dividend RMB 2.494637 (including taxes) per 10 shares, the cash dividend totaling 

RMB 500 million was distributed. 
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IX. Information Technology 

XIB set the technology development goal featuring flexible structure, product 

innovation and intelligent services, virtual customer service channels, lean technological 

management and process-based business operation by upholding the strategic guiding 

thought of business led by technology, following the principle of combining medium 

and long-term goals and adaptability development, independent development and 

outsourcing cooperation, and technological research and development and technological 

management, and using for reference advanced technologies and management 

experience of foreign banking industry. The Bank took example by the best practice of 

domestic and foreign banking industries and reference models of international 

mainstream banking industry information technology systems, made full use of and 

gave full play to the late-mover advantages of technology, and put the technology 

development goal into the building of specific technological system to create an 

advanced information technology system, helping the Bank’s business to develop fast. 

2014 was a good harvest year of building the information technology system of the 

Bank, when it successfully established the new core system and its supporting systems 

which supported the Bank’s reform of operation and management models aiming at 

supporting the intensification, standardization, process orientation and automation of the 

Bank’s business operation system, and it realized the re-engineering of information 

technology system and business operation process in the shortest time, leading to a leap 

of information technology as a milestone. The building of the Bank’s new core system 

and its supporting systems involved 22 new systems and 10 reconstructed systems, 

covering the building and reconstruction of many heavy-weight information technology 

systems of the Bank, such as the core business system, enterprise service bus, data 

service bus, enterprise-level general ledger, comprehensive counter system, business 

process platform, intermediate business platform, payment and clearing platform and 

position management system. 

In August 2014, the Bank’s new core system and its supporting systems were 

launched successfully. Since the launch, they operated safely, stably and smoothly on 

the whole with correct functions and accurate data; all problems in the run-in period 
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were fixed in a timely manner and relevant business processes were optimized on a 

continuous basis, achieving stable transition of transaction processing. The completion 

of the new core system and its supporting systems enabled the Bank to realize the 

reform of business process conditionally and created a new situation of intensive 

operation: the concept of process-based banking was practiced preliminarily and sharing 

service center was created preliminarily through the intensive processing of all kinds of 

businesses, such as loan and note processing, documents and trade financing, capital 

liquidation, standard and foreign currency settlement, financial expenses and counter 

business; the in-depth implementation in the system and in-depth imbedding in process 

and transaction of all-round risk management was realized; system building promoted 

foreground transformation and released foreground productivity; centralized business 

processing gathered originally scattered risk nodes into background, which promoted 

the performance of business in a standardized and normalized way, thus creating 

conditions for the Bank to establish the ISO certification systems in a comprehensive 

way; the integration of domestic and overseas businesses was boosted to create the 

collective effect; the traits of the core system was made full use of to promote the 

building of a flexible structure with high scalability which could support the sustainable 

development of the Bank’s business; key nodes of the Bank’s business evolution were 

created to lay a solid foundation for building the internet financial system of the Bank. 

The Bank vigorously promoted the building of electronic channel system by 

launching channel integration platform, online banking and telephone banking projects 

and financial IC project, aiming to create an advanced and unified e-banking system and 

internet financial service platform. Integrated and unified management of electronic 

channels were realized through building channel integration platforms, creating 

e-banking system framework and form the foundation of e-banking unified operation 

platform. Furthermore, the exploration into the building and models of internet finance 

system was intensified in an all-round way to strive to take a place in the grand tide of 

internet finance. 
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 Chapter VII Social Responsibilities 

 

I. XIB’s Philosophy of Social Responsibilities 

Guided by the standard system of social responsibility rating, XIB followed the 

strategic guidance of its Articles of Association, created the strategic framework system 

of social responsibilities and established the concept of sustainable development of the 

Bank led by social responsibilities. It created the socially responsible image of healthy 

and sustainable development and strived to practice the Equator Principles
7
 through 

continuous expansion and improvement of these four aspects, namely, value increase, 

client satisfaction, employee growth and social harmony. 

 

II. XIB’s Social Responsibility Work Management Regime 

 (I) Social Responsibility Strategy 

XIB supports social and economic development and participates in social activities 

of public good while maintaining sustainable, stable and health development to realize 

shareholders’ maximum interests. It takes initiative to practice relevant contents of the 

Equator Principles which are applicable to China’s economic and financial development, 

and develops and implements resource conservation and environmental protection plans 

to support our clients to protect and improve natural ecological environment and 

support social sustainable development through providing financial services. 

 (II) Organizational Structure of Social Responsibility Work 

The Bank’s Quality Management Committee is the management organ of corporate 

social responsibility work, and it is responsible for examining and approving the 

guidelines and policies and implementation plans of corporate social responsibility 

work; the Trade Union Committee is responsible for and leads all departments and 

organs of the Bank in the specific implementation of corporate social responsibility 

work, including the organization of donation, consolation and other activities of public 

good, and the implementation of employee care plans, etc.; the Research and 

Development Department of the Bank is responsible for researching the business ideas 

and financial services related to social responsibilities, putting forth relevant opinions 
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and suggestions, participating in research activities related to social responsibilities 

organized externally, etc. 

 (III) All-round Social Responsibility Management 

XIB incorporates its social responsibilities into its development strategies, 

governance structure, corporate culture and business processes, and it is committed to 

build a long-term regime of performing corporate social responsibilities; it sets up 

corresponding decision-making and implementation organs at the organization level, 

drafts social responsibility strategies and policies, supervises, inspects and assess the 

Company’s performance of its social responsibilities. 

 (VI) Corporate Culture which is Mutually Integrated with Social Responsibilities 

The Bank integrates corporate culture and corporate social responsibilities by 

establishing the cultural system consisting of mission, vision, core values and corporate 

spirits, creating correct values internally, developing the moral standards which 

regularize employees’ behaviors and delivering the concept of corporate social 

responsibilities, thus creating a good corporate image. 

 

III. XIB’s Main Activities of Public Good 

XIB considers paying back society as its duty. It has sponsored and established 

Mindu Small and Medium-sized Bank Education Development Foundation together 

with Xiamen University, which is the first small and medium-sized bank education 

development foundation in China, aiming to fund poverty-stricken students to finish 

their education and teachers in institutions of higher education to carry out academic 

researches, and to promote the development of causes of public good, including 

education scientific researches. 

In 2014, XIB took initiative to participate in causes of public good, and it strongly 

supported Mindu Small and Medium-sized Bank Education Development Foundation in 

carrying out activities of public good with direct and indirect charity donations 

exceeding RMB 5 million throughout the year. Its main activities of public good 

included: donations to earthquake-stricken areas in Yunnan; financially aiding 

institutions of higher education to conduct academic research projects and hold 
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academic seminars; financially aiding the primary schools in the poverty-stricken areas 

in Fujian Province to build “love libraries” and “love playground;” financially aiding 

poverty-stricken students and left-behind children in grass-root villages in Fujian 

Province by donating the “package of science, education, culture and sports;” 

financially aiding poverty-stricken children in Quanzhou to improve teaching facilities; 

financially aiding the development of high-level talents of postdoctoral workstation to 

drive the value transformation of academic researches. In addition, XIB also organized 

employees to carry out financial knowledge publicity, Tree Planting Festival and other 

activities. The entire Bank participated in causes of public good passionately to carry 

forward the Bank’s corporate culture which was incorporated with social 

responsibilities, and the awareness of social responsibilities was further enhanced. Thus, 

the Bank was universally recognized by all walks of the society. 
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 Chapter VIII Major Events 
 

I. Major Litigation, Arbitrations and Material Cases 

There were no major litigation, arbitrations and material cases of the Bank during 

the reporting period. 

 

II. Significant Acquisition, Merger and Sale of Assets 

There were no significant acquisition, merger and sale of assets of the Bank during 

the reporting period. 

 

III. Disciplinary Actions Imposed on the Company and Its Directors, 

Supervisors and Senior Officers 

No disciplinary actions were imposed on the Company and its directors, 

supervisors and senior officers by the regulatory authority during the reporting period. 

 

IV. Major Events in 2014 

1. On January 24, Hengqin (Zhuhai) Representative Office of LIB was officially 

inaugurated. More than 100 guests, including Mr. He Ningka, Mayor of Zhuhai 

Municipal People’s Government, Mr. Lou Ming, Deputy Director of the Economic 

Department of the Liaison Office of the Central People’s Government in Macau Special 

Administrative Region, Mr. Francis Tam Pak Yuen, Secretary of the Secretariat for 

Economy and Finance of Macau Special Administrative Region, Mr. He Xiaojun, 

Deputy Director of CBRC Guangdong Office, Mr. Teng Lin Seng, Chairman, Monetary 

Authority of Macau, and Mr. Lyu Yao Ming, President of the Bank, Mr. Ip Kai Ming, 

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of the Bank, Mr. Zhang Dechun, Vice President 

of the Bank and General Manager in China and Mr. Jiao Yundi, Vice President and 

General Manager of LIB of the Bank, were present in the inauguration ceremony. 

2. On February 21, XIB’s Longyan Branch was inaugurated and opened officially. 

3. On February 26, the fourth meeting of the first session of the Board of Directors 

of XIB was held in the Head Office of XIB. 
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4. On February 27, the fourth meeting of the first session of the Board of 

Supervisors of XIB was held in the Head Office of XIB. 

5. On March 7, the first interim shareholders’ meeting in 2014 of XIB was held in 

Xiamen Millennium Hotels. 

6. On March 25, XIB successfully issued RMB 3 billion tier 2 capital bonds in 

domestic interbank market through bidding. 

7. On April 14, the fifth meeting of the first session of the Board of Directors of 

XIB was held in the Head Office of XIB. 

8. On April 15, the fifth meeting of the first session of the Board of Supervisors of 

XIB was held in the Head Office of XIB. 

9. April 18, XIB’s shareholders’ meeting in 2013 was held in Xiamen Millennium 

Hotels and Resorts. 

10. On April 28, the foundation stone laying ceremony of the Scientific Research 

Center of XIB was grandly held on the site of the project in Beichen Hill, Tong’an, 

Xiamen, in which more than 100 people were present, including Mr. Lyu Yao Ming, 

President of the Bank, Mr. Ip Kai Ming, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of the 

Bank, Mr. Zhang Dechun, Vice President, Mr. Zheng Wei, Vice President, Ms. Lyu 

Xiaoting, Vice President and Mr. Huang Daqing, Assistant President, as well as Mr. Qiu 

Xiao, Director of the Financial Office of Xiamen Municipal People's Government, Mr. 

Zhu Yonghui, Deputy Head of Tong’an District, Mr. Wang Kun, Director of the Trade 

Union, the People’s Bank of China Xiamen Branch and other leaders, and the Bank’s 

managers and employees, and they earthed up and laid the foundation stone. 

11. On May 27, the sixth meeting of the first session of Board of Directors of XIB 

was held in the Head Office of XIB. 

12. On May 30, the second interim shareholders’ meeting in 2014 of XIB was held 

in Swiss International Hotel Xiamen. 

13. On June 16, the seventh meeting of the first session of the Board of Directors 

of XIB was held in the Head Office of XIB. 

14. On June 24, the eighth meeting of the first session of the Board of Directors of 

XIB was held in the Head Office of XIB. 
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15. On July 30, XIB’s request for instruction regarding the approval of 

shareholders’ qualifications was approved by the CBRC Xiamen and it finished its work 

of increasing capital and shares in the first half of 2014. 

16. During August 8-11, the Bank’s new core system and its supporting systems 

were switched and launched successfully. 

17. On August 26, the CBRC Xiamen replied and consented to the Bank’s increase 

of its registered capital from RMB 2,004,300,000 to RMB 2,293,130,000. 

18. On September 3, Mr. Zhang Anshun, Director of CBRC Xiamen, conducted 

researches and panel discussion in the Bank; he discussed major issues related to the 

operation and development of the Bank with the Chairman of the Board of Directors the 

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors and management of the Bank, and debriefed the 

Bank’s report on its business operation and the matters for which the Bank would like to 

obtain support from CBRC Xiamen; Mr. Weng Ruo Tong, Chairman of the Board of 

Directors of the Bank, Mr. Lyu Yao Ming, President of the Bank, Mr. Ip Kai Ming, 

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of the Bank and Mr. Zhang Dechun, Vice 

President and General Manager in China presided over the reception. 

19. On September 24, the ninth meeting of the first session of the Board of 

Directors and the sixth meeting of the first session of the Board of Supervisors of XIB 

were held in LIB. 

20. On November 3, the celebration for the 40th anniversary of LIB was held 

grandly in MGM Macau, in which over 400 people were present, including Mr. 

Fernando Chui Sai On, the Chief Executive of Macau Special Administrative Region, 

Mr. Edmund Ho Hau-wah, Vice President of the CPPCC, Mr. Teng Lin Seng, Chairman, 

Monetary Authority of Macau and other important members of the government and 

people from all walks of life of Macau, as well as Mr. Weng Ruo Tong, Chairman of the 

Board of Directors of the Bank, Mr. Lyu Yao Ming, President of the Bank and Mr. 

Zhang Dechun, Vice President of the Bank. 

21. On November 6, XIB’s Quanzhou Branch was inaugurated and opened 

officially. 

22. On November 8, the “Love in XIB • Love Creates Glory” themed cultural 
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event of 2014, the Excellence Recognition Award Ceremony of 2013 and the final of the 

“Most Beautiful XIB Person” ambassador contest were grandly held in Xiamen. 

23. On November 23, the first meeting of the third session of Employee 

Representative Meeting of XIB was held in Xiamen. 

24. On November 28, the seventh meeting of the first session of the Board of 

Supervisors of XIB was held in Fuzhou Branch. 

25. On December 4, XIB’s Zhangzhou Branch was approved to make preparations 

by CBRC Fujian Office 

26. On December 29, the commencement ceremony of the Scientific Research 

Center of XIB was successfully held on the site of the project in Beichen Hill, Tong’an, 

Xiamen, in which Mr. Zhang Dechun, Vice President of the Bank, Ms. Lyu Xiaoting, 

Vice President of the Bank as well as relevant managers and employee representatives 

of the Head Office were present. 
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Chapter IX List of Documents for Reference 
 

I. Annual report text with the signature of the legal representative of the Company; 

II. Financial statements with the signatures and seals of the legal representative and 

financial officer of the Company; 

III. The original of the auditor’s report with the seal of the CPA firm and the 

signatures and seals of CPAs; 

IV. The Company’s Social Responsibility Report 2014. 
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Chapter X Financial Report 

 

Please refer to 2014 Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report of 

Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. (PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Shen Zi 

(2015) No. 21712) 
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Auditor‘s Report

PwC ZT Shen Zi (2015) No. 22712
(Page 1 of 2)

To the shareholders of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd,

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in owners’ equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows of Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting polices and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and for such internal control as the management
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.
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PwC ZT Shen Zi (2015) No. 21712
(Page 2 of 2)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Xiamen International
Bank Co., Ltd as at 31 December 2014, and its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China

04 March 2015
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Assets Note7 31 December 2014 31 December 2013 1 January 2013

(Restated) (Restated)

Cash on hand and deposits with
central bank 1 34,616,956,980 21,884,237,691 16,710,021,997

Deposits with supervisory authority
outside Mainland China 2 685,309,300 577,415,805 495,497,671

Deposits with banks and other
financial institutions 3 12,188,915,713 22,192,109,293 1,959,066,867

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions 4 2,687,340,746 2,714,858,234 15,217,118,817

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 5 735,133,721 904,217,632 19,582,963,860

Derivative financial assets 6 55,227,959 38,777,276 56,535,127
Financial assets held under resale

agreements 7 7,219,000,000 4,521,100,000 100,000,000

Interest receivable 8 1,559,927,031 1,254,222,159 1,073,975,489
Loans and advances to customers,

net 9 109,259,186,316 79,924,241,975 65,210,583,287

Investment securities

-Available-for-sale 10 32,527,353,594 27,369,537,015 15,369,834,261

-Held-to-maturity 11 1,031,621,914 784,261,053 1,035,838,108

Accounts receivable investments 12 145,072,873,086 97,742,159,077 67,185,446,004

Fixed assets 13 182,557,455 150,045,831 132,026,332

Construction in process 3,723,044 - -

Intangible assets 14 34,086,000 - -

Long-term prepaid expenses 15 29,621,454 20,013,745 15,913,869

Deferred tax assets 16 272,822,607 471,304,746 -

Other assets 17 779,236,990 584,619,624 2,726,067,357

Total assets 348,940,893,910 261,133,121,156 206,870,889,046
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Liabilities and equity Note7 31 December 2014 31 December 2013 1 January 2013

(Restated) (Restated)

Liabilities

Borrowings from central bank 18 430,000,000 - -
Deposits from banks and other financial

institutions 19 76,688,391,057 89,871,382,742 80,878,861,112
Placements from banks and other

financial institutions 20 7,421,763,176 3,519,651,819 2,653,418,278
Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss 21 5,665,406 14,922,554 5,360,505

Derivative financial liabilities 6 76,273,066 28,534,953 119,382,606
Financial assets sold under repurchase

agreements 22 15,148,688,927 14,428,678,937 14,690,036,907

Customer deposits 23 224,185,215,704 136,383,565,262 96,285,972,813

Payroll payable 24 941,390,819 744,895,149 417,885,123

Tax payable 25 464,011,355 605,883,467 276,057,331

Interest payable 26 3,874,231,239 2,420,961,379 1,660,168,541

Dividend payable 21,600,000 99,733,333 -

Bond payable 27 3,601,802,898 608,128,741 -

Deferred tax liabilities 16 - - 37,321,314

Other liabilities 28 635,768,091 1,444,077,872 373,855,279

Total liabilities 333,494,801,738 250,170,416,208 197,398,319,809

Equity

Capital 29 2,293,130,000 2,004,300,000 1,807,800,240

Capital reserve 30 7,445,951,059 5,944,035,059 4,961,536,259

Other comprehensive income 42 (48,287,225) (1,013,348,428) (56,242,045)

Surplus reserve 31 166,824,353 - -

General risk reserve 32 2,419,780,000 1,530,000,000 1,300,000,000

Retained earnings 33 3,168,693,985 2,497,718,317 1,459,474,783

Total equity 15,446,092,172 10,962,704,948 9,472,569,237

Total liabilities and equity 348,940,893,910 261,133,121,156 206,870,889,046

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

President: Financial Controller:
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

President: Financial Controller:

Items Note 7 2014 2013

Operating income 5,604,431,440 4,471,692,893

Interest income 34 15,637,222,627 11,750,092,619

Interest expense 34 (11,125,979,722) (8,281,211,107)

Net interest income 4,511,242,905 3,468,881,512

Fee and commission income 35 672,455,096 927,193,289

Fee and commission expense (103,505,839) (61,160,064)

Net fee and commission income 568,949,257 866,033,225

Investment income 36 403,946,037 159,543,634
Profit or loss arising from changes in

fair value 37 16,534,323 (726,292)

Exchange gains 94,446,231 (29,287,139)

Other operating income 9,312,687 7,247,953

Operating expense (2,685,148,243) (2,344,232,165)

Business tax and surcharges 38 (293,947,805) (316,031,189)
Operating and administrative

expenses 39 (1,530,112,697) (1,241,246,540)

Assets impairment losses 40 (854,182,170) (783,408,859)

Other operating expenses (6,905,571) (3,545,577)

Operating profit 2,919,283,197 2,127,460,728

Add: Non-operating income 9,626,870 12,419,295

Less: Non-operating expenses (1,036,612) (912,144)

Total profit 2,927,873,455 2,138,967,879

Less: Income tax expenses 41 (700,293,434) (470,724,345)

Net profit 2,227,580,021 1,668,243,534

Other comprehensive income 965,061,203 (957,106,383)

Other comprehensive income that

may be subsequently reclassified to

profit or loss

Change in fair value of available-for

-sale financial assets 42 975,755,074 (928,239,384)

Currency translation differences 42 (10,693,871) (28,866,999)

Total comprehensive income 3,192,641,224 711,137,151



XIAMEN INTERNATIONAL BANK Co., LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts are stated in Rmb Yuan unless otherwise stated)
[English Translation For Reference Only]

- 6 -

Item
Capital

Capital
reserve

Other
comprehensive

income
Surplus

reserves
General

risk reserve
Retained
earnings Total

Balance at 1 January 2014 2,004,300,000 5,944,035,059 (1,013,348,428) - 1,530,000,000 2,497,718,317 10,962,704,948

Changes of current year

(1) Net profit - - - - - 2,227,580,021 2,227,580,021
(2) Other comprehensive income (Note

7, (42)) - - 965,061,203 - - - 965,061,203

Total comprehensive income - - 965,061,203 - - 2,227,580,021 3,192,641,224
(3) Capital received from new

shareholders(Note 7 (29)) 288,830,000 1,501,916,000 - - - - 1,790,746,000

(4) Appropriation of profit - - - 166,824,353 889,780,000 (1,556,604,353) (500,000,000)
- Appropriation of surplus

reserves(Note 7 (31)) - - - 166,824,353 - (166,824,353) -
- Appropriation for general risk

reserve(Note7 (32)) - - - - 889,780,000 (889,780,000) -
- Dividend(Note7 (33)) - - - - - (500,000,000) (500,000,000)

Balance at 31 December 2014 2,293,130,000 7,445,951,059 (48,287,225) 166,824,353 2,419,780,000 3,168,693,985 15,446,092,172
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Item
Capital

Capital
reserve

Other
comprehensive

income
General

risk reserve
Retained
earnings

Currency translation
differences Total

Balance at 31 December 2012 1,807,800,240 4,871,534,040 - 1,300,000,000 1,459,474,783 (235,240,601) 9,203,568,462

Changes in accounting policies - 90,002,219 (56,242,045) - - 235,240,601 269,000,775

Balance at 1 January 2013 1,807,800,240 4,961,536,259 (56,242,045) 1,300,000,000 1,459,474,783 - 9,472,569,237

Changes of current year

(1) Net profit - - - - 1,668,243,534 - 1,668,243,534
(2) Other comprehensive income

(Note 7, (42)) - - (957,106,383) - - - (957,106,383)

Total comprehensive income - - (957,106,383) - 1,668,243,534 - 711,137,151
(3) Capital received from new

shareholders 196,499,760 982,498,800 - - - - 1,178,998,560

(4) Appropriation of profit - - - 230,000,000 (630,000,000) - (400,000,000)
- Appropriation for general risk

reserve(Note 7 (32)) - - - 230,000,000 (230,000,000) - -
- Dividend(Note 7 (33)) - - - - (400,000,000) - (400,000,000)

Balance at 31 December 2013 2,004,300,000 5,944,035,059 (1,013,348,428) 1,530,000,000 2,497,718,317 - 10,962,704,948

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

President: Financial Controller:
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Item Note 7 2014 2013

1. Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in deposits with Central Bank, other

banks and financial institutions, net 430,000,000 -
Increase in deposits from other banks and

financial institutions, net - 8,992,521,630
Increase in placements from other banks and

financial institutions, net 3,902,111,357 866,233,541
Decrease in placements with other banks and

financial institutions, net 1,709,363,165 12,669,864,058
Increase in financial assets sold under

repurchase agreements, net 720,009,990 -

Increase in customer deposits, net 87,801,650,442 40,097,592,449

Interest received in cash 15,099,132,497 11,702,825,292

Fees and commission received in cash 654,905,943 908,050,478
Cash received relating to other operating

activities 82,729,493 186,464,603

Sub-total of cash inflows 110,399,902,887 75,423,552,051

Increase in loans and advances, net (29,948,219,835) (13,201,938,203)
Increase in deposits with Central Bank, with

other banks and financial institutions, net (13,919,312,062) (10,223,462,799)
Decrease in deposits with other banks and

financial institutions, net (13,182,991,685) -
Decrease in financial assets sold under

repurchase agreements, net - (261,357,970)

Interest paid in cash (9,479,296,002) (7,520,418,269)

Fees and commission paid in cash (103,505,839) (61,160,064)

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees (927,838,039) (555,138,261)

Payments of taxes and surcharges (1,274,131,161) (666,676,285)

Cash paid relating to other operating activities (359,741,090) (292,530,635)

Sub-total of cash outflows (69,195,035,713) (32,782,682,486)

Net cash flows from operating activities 43 41,204,867,174 42,640,869,565
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Item Note 7 2014 2013

2. Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from returns from investments 403,946,037 159,543,634

Cash received from disposal of investments 147,591,575,667 110,015,645,008

Cash received from disposal of fixed assets 898,339 411,464

Sub-total of cash inflows 147,996,420,043 110,175,600,106

Cash paid to acquire investments (199,729,694,808) (134,096,233,596)
Cash paid to acquire fixed assets and other

long-term assets (121,833,468) (55,201,900)

Sub-total of cash outflows (199,851,528,276) (134,151,435,496)

Net cash flows from investment activities (51,855,108,233) (23,975,835,390)

3. Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from capital injection 1,790,746,000 1,178,998,560

Cash received from bond issued 2,993,674,157 608,128,741

Sub-total of cash inflows 4,784,420,157 1,787,127,301

Cash payments for dividends (578,133,333) (300,266,667)

Cash payments for bond interests (193,413,860) -

Sub-total of cash outflows (771,547,193) (300,266,667)

Net cash flows from financing activities 4,012,872,964 1,486,860,634

4. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents (10,290,091) (152,751,171)

5. Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents 43 (6,647,658,186) 19,999,143,638

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year 43 30,779,136,548 10,779,992,910

6. Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 43 24,131,478,362 30,779,136,548

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

President: Financial Controller:
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE GROUP

Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd (the “Bank”), formerly known as Xiamen International Bank,
was established pursuant to the approval of the PBOC ((85) No.260) and the Bank was licensed as
a financial institution by the China Banking Regulatory Commission (the “CBRC”) (No.00000229)
on 13 June 2007. The Bank obtained its business license N0.000244 granted by the State
Administration of Industry and Commerce of the PRC on 31 August 1985.

Pursuant to the document “Approval for Xiamen International Bank’s new shareholders and
additional capital injection” ([2012] No.627) approved by the CBRC on 30 October 2012, together
with the agreement signed by its founders and the shareholders resolution, the Bank was
converted into a joint stock company. The Bank obtained its new business license
(No.3500000400002013) granted by the State Administration of Industry and Commerce of the
PRC.

The branches of the Bank in Mainland China as at 31 Dec 2014 are as follows:

Name of branch
Date of approval by

the Regulatory
Body

Date of business
license granted

Operating period

Fuzhou Branch 28 September 1992 22 Oct 1992 From 22 Oct 1992 to 30 Aug 2020
Zhuhai Branch 23 November 1995 18 Jan 1996 From 18 Jan 1996 to 30 Aug 2020
Shanghai Branch 13 May 2005 9 Jun 2005 From 9 Jun 2005 to 8 Sep 2020
Beijing Branch 13 June 2007 18 Jun 2007 From 18 Jun 2007 to 30 Aug 2020
Ningde Branch 17 December 2013 19 Dec 2013 From 19 Dec 2013
Longyan Branch 23 January 2014 27 Jan 2014 From 27 Jan 2014
Quanzhou Branch 30 October 2014 31 Oct 2014 From 31 Oct 2014

Names of subsidiaries of the Bank in Hong Kong, Macau and overseas, their places of registration,
percentage of interest held by the Bank and principal activities as at 31 Dec 2014 are as follows:

Name
Place of

registration
Principal place of

business Principal activities

Percentage of
interest held by

the Bank
Xiamen International

Investment Ltd.
Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment holding 100%

Luso International Banking
Ltd. (“LIB”)*

Macau Macau Commercial
banking services

100%

XIB Properties Limited * Liberia Hong Kong Real estate
investment

100%

Fast Rise Investments Ltd. * Hong Kong Hong Kong Dormant 100%
Silver Win Development

Ltd.*
Hong Kong Hong Kong Real estate

investment
100%

Rich Capital Development
Ltd. *

Hong Kong Hong Kong Dormant 100%

XIB (Nominees) Ltd. * Hong Kong Hong Kong Nominees 100%
Fuxing Park Development

Ltd. *
Hong Kong Hong Kong Nominees 100%

Pretty Won Company Ltd. * Hong Kong Hong Kong Nominees 100%

*The Bank indirectly holds the interests of these companies through Xiamen International
Investment Ltd.
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE GROUP (Continued)

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) include corporate
banking business, personal banking business, treasury business and other financial services.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been approved for issue by the board of
directors on 04 March 2015.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Basic Standard,
specific standards of the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and other relevant
regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance on 15 February 2006 and thereafter. (hereafter
referred to as the “Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises” or “CAS”).

3 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 truly and completely
present the financial position as at 31 December 2014 and the operating results, cash flows and
other information for the year then ended of the Group in compliance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

A Principal accounting policies

(1) Accounting period

The Group’s accounting period starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

(2) Recording currency

The recording currency is Renminbi (“RMB”).

The functional currency of entities operating in Mainland China is Renminbi (“RMB”). Items
included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s operations in Hong Kong, Macau, and
other countries and regions are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The presentation currency of the Group is
RMB.

(3) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statement

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and Liberia.

A subsidiary is an entity which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control and are de-
consolidated from the date that such control ceases. For a subsidiary acquired in a business
combination involving enterprises under common control, it is included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date when it, together with the Company, came under common control of the
ultimate controlling party. The portion of the net profits realized before the combination date is
presented separately in the consolidated income statement.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(3) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statement (Continued)

The financial statements of subsidiaries are adjusted in accordance with the accounting policies of
the Bank during the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, where the accounting
policies are inconsistent between the Bank and subsidiaries.

All significant inter-group balances, transactions and unrealized profits are eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements.

(4) Foreign currency translation

(a) Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition, translated into RMB at the spot exchange
rate ruling at the dates of transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the financial reporting date are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes in the
amortised cost are recognised in the income statement, and other changes in the carrying amount
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Translation differences on all other monetary
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost in foreign currencies are
translated using the foreign exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using the foreign
exchange rates at the date the fair value is determined. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets classified as available for sale are recognized in other comprehensive income.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognized as “exchange gains” in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
income statement separately.

(b) Translation of foreign currency financial statements

The asset and liability items in the balance sheets for overseas businesses are translated at the
spot exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Among the owners’ equity items, the items other
than “retained earnings” are translated at the spot exchange rate of the transaction date. The
income and expense items in the income statements of overseas businesses are translated at the
spot exchange rate of the transaction date. The differences arising from the above translation are
presented separately in other comprehensive income. The cash flows of overseas businesses are
translated at the spot exchange rate on the date of the cash flows. The effect of exchange rate
changes on cash is presented separately in the cash flow statement.

(5) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with bank and short-term
and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(6) Financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories:

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, including financial assets held for trading, and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception;

• Held to maturity investments;
• Loans and receivables; and
• Available for sale investments.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired and
whether the Group is able to hold until its maturity.

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories:
• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, including financial liabilities held for trading,
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception; and
• Other financial liabilities.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

(i) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss have two subcategories:
financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading, and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset or financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

• Acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term; or

• Part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making; or

• Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are financial guarantee contracts
or designated and effective as hedging instruments.

A financial asset or financial liability is classified at fair value through profit or loss at inception if it
meets either of the following criteria and is designated as such by management on initial
recognition:

• The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or financial liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

• A group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information is provided internally on that basis to key management personnel; or

• Financial assets and financial liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives which
significantly modify the cash flows and for which separation of the embedded derivative is not
prohibited on initial consideration.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(6) Financial assets (Continued)

(a) Classification (Continued)

(ii) Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity and that do not meet the definition of loans and receivables nor are designated
at fair value through profit or loss or as available for sale.

The Group shall not classify any financial assets as held to maturity if the entity has, during the
current financial year or during the two preceding financial years, sold or reclassified more than an
insignificant amount of held to maturity investments before maturity other than restricted
circumstances such as sales or reclassifications due to a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness or industry’s regulatory requirements.

(iii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables mainly comprise deposits with central
banks, deposits and placements with banks and non-bank financial institutions, financial assets
held under resale agreements, loans and advances to customers, accounts receivable investments
and other receivables. The Group shall not classify any of the following non-derivative financial
assets as a loan or receivable:

• Those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held
for trading; and

• Those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss; and

• Those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as available for sale; and

• Those for which the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than
because of credit deterioration.

(iv) Available for sale investments

Available for sale investments contain non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of the other categories.

(v) Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are non-derivative financial liabilities that are not classified or designated
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Initial recognition

A financial asset or financial liability is recognised on trade-date, the date when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(6) Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Initial recognition (Continued)

For all financial assets and financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets are initially recognised at fair value together with transaction costs and financial
liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs. Financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.

(c) Subsequent measurement

The Group subsequently measures its financial assets at fair value, and the transaction expenses
which may occur upon its disposal in the future are not considered. However, below are the
exceptions:

 Investments held to their maturity, and loans and receivables are measured at amortised costs
using effective interest method; and

 Equity instrument investments, for which there is no quotation in the active market and whose fair

value cannot be reliably measured, as well as derivative financial assets, which are linked to the

equity instrument and must be settled by physical delivery of the equity instrument, are measured

as costs.

Profits or losses arising from the change in fair value of a financial asset or financial liability are
dealt with in accordance with the following principles:

 Profits or losses arising from change in the fair value of financial asset or financial liability
measured at fair value, are recognized in “profit or loss arising from changes in fair value” in the
income statement; Interests gained during the period in which the financial assets are held are
recognized in “interest income”; Cash dividends received during the period in which such
financial assets are held, as well as the gains or losses arising from disposal of these assets are
recognized in “investment income”.

 Profits or losses arising from change in fair value of an available for sales financial asset are
recognized directly in equity item of other comprehensive income, with the exception of
impairment losses and exchange differences arising from amortized cost of foreign monetary
financial assets. When the financial asset is derecognized or impaired and is transferred out, the
previously recognized amount is transferred to and recognized in “interest income”; Interest on
available-for-sale debt instruments calculated using the effective interest method as well as
dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments where the Group’s right to receive such
payments is established are recognized as “interest income” or “investment income”, respectively,
in the income statement for the current period.

(d) Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(6) Financial assets (Continued)

(d) Determination of fair value (Continued)

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted market prices. This includes listed equity
securities and quoted debt instruments on major exchanges.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
If the above criteria are not met, the market is regarded as being inactive. Indications that a market
is inactive are when there is a wide bid-offer spread or significant increase in the bid-offer spread
or there are few recent transactions.

For financial instruments not traded in active markets, fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include the use of recent transaction prices, discounted
cash flow analysis, option pricing models and others commonly used by market participants. These
valuation techniques include the use of observable and/or unobservable inputs.

(e) De-recognition of financial instruments

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired, or when the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership,
or when the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all risks or rewards of ownership of
the financial asset but has not retained control of the financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in equity through other comprehensive income is recognised in the income statement.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when they are extinguished — that is, when the obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
de-recognised and the consideration paid is recognised in the income statement.

(f) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets excluding those fair valued through profit or loss is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(6) Financial assets (Continued)

(f) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about the following loss events:

 Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

 A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

 The Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

 It becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

 The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties;

 Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group, an
increase in the unemployment rate in the geographical area of the borrowers, a decrease
in property price for the mortgages in the relevant area or national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the group;

 Any significant change with an adverse effect that has taken place in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates and indicates that the
cost of investments in equity instruments may not be recovered;

 A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of equity instrument investments; or

 Other objective evidence indicating impairment of the financial asset.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant. If there is objective evidence of impairment, the impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement. The Group performs a collective assessment for all
other financial assets that are not individually significant or for which impairment has not yet been
identified by including the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(6) Financial assets (Continued)

(f) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

Impairment loss for financial assets carried at amortised cost is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The original effective interest rate is computed at initial recognition.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. For financial assets with variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial
asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling
the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the
basis of similar and relevant credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability
to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are
estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss
experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
currently exist.

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for impairment
after all the necessary procedures have been completed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are recognised in the income statement.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect and be directionally
consistent with changes in related observable data from period to period. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce
any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
by adjusting the allowance account and recognised in the income statement. The reversal shall not
result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(6) Financial assets (Continued)

(f) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Assets classified as available for sale

If objective evidence of impairment exists for available for sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
recognised in “other comprehensive income” is reclassified from equity to the income statement
and is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in the income statement, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through the income statement. However, if, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an
equity instrument classified as available for sale increases, the increases for fair value is
recognised in equity directly.

(g) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Therefore, the changes in the fair value of these
derivatives are recognised in “profit or loss arising from changes in fair value” in the income
statement. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when
fair value is negative.

(h) Embedded derivatives

For certain derivatives which are embedded into non-derivative hybrid instruments (the host
contracts), the embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for as a
separate derivative when (a) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to the host contract;(b) a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and (c) the hybrid (combined)
instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. For
the derivatives not separated from the host contract, the hybrid instruments, at its entirety, are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

(i) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities should report as assets and liabilities separately and cannot be
offset under normal circumstance. However, financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position when:
(a) The Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and the legal right

is currently enforceable;
(b) The Group intend to settle transactions on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(7) Financial assets held under resale agreements and financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are transactions where the Group acquires
financial assets which will be resold at a predetermined price at a future date under resale
agreements. Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements are transactions where the
Group sells financial assets which will be repurchased at a predetermined price at a future date
under repurchase agreements.

The cash advanced or received is recognized as amounts held under resale or sold under
repurchase agreements in the statement of financial position. Assets held under resale
agreements are not recognized. Assets sold under repurchase agreements continue to be
recognized in the statement of financial position.

The difference between the purchase and resale consideration, or that between the sale and
repurchase consideration, is amortized over the period of the respective transaction using the
effective interest method and is recognized as interest income and interest expenses respectively.

(8) Fixed assets

Fixed assets include buildings, renovations, office equipment and furniture, computer equipment
and vehicles. Buildings mainly include properties of branches and office buildings. Fixed assets
purchased or constructed by the Group are initially recorded at cost.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset are included in the cost of the fixed asset when
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the fixed asset will flow to the Group and
its cost can be reliably measured. The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is
derecognized and all the other subsequent expenditures are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of each
asset to their residual value over their estimated useful lives. For the fixed assets being provided
for impairment loss, the related depreciation charge is prospectively determined based upon the
adjusted carrying amounts over their remaining useful lives.

The estimated useful life, estimated residual values expressed as a percentage of cost and yearly
depreciation rates are as follows:

Useful life Residual value Annual
depreciation rate

Buildings 20 years 10% 4.5%
Office equipment and furniture 5 years 10% 18%
Computer equipment 5 years 10% 18%
Vehicles 5 years 10% 18%

The useful life, residual value and depreciation method of an item of property and equipment are
reassessed and adjusted annually at the end of each financial year.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(8) Fixed assets (Continued)

Where a fixed asset meets either of the following conditions, the Group derecognizes the fixed
asset:

a. It is in a state of disposal; or
b. It is estimated that it is unable to generate any economic benefits through use or disposal.

Gains or losses are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the fixed asset, after deduction of relevant taxes and expenses when fixed
assets are sold, disposed of or destroyed.

(9) Construction in progress

Construction in progress is measured at actual cost, which comprises construction costs,
installation costs, borrowing costs that are eligible for capitalization and other costs necessary to
bring the fixed assets ready for their intended use. Construction in progress is transferred to fixed
assets when the assets are ready for their intended use, and depreciation begins from the
following month.

(10) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance owned or
controlled by the Group, which contain computer software, etc.

Intangible assets are initially carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment loss. Amortization for intangible assets is recognized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated lives and the amortization expenses are charged to “operating and administrative
expenses” of income statement.

(11) Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include the expenditure for improvements to fixed assets held under
operating leases, and other expenditures that have been incurred but should be recognized as
expenses over more than one year in the current and subsequent periods. Long-term prepaid
expenses are amortised on the straight-line basis over the expected beneficial period and are
presented at actual expenditure net of accumulated amortisation.

(12) Impairment for non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, impairment tests would be carried out if any indication exists that the
Group’s fixed assets, construction in progress and intangible assets are impaired. If the result of
the impairment test indicates that the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
amount, a provision for impairment and an impairment loss are recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flows expected to
be derived from the asset. A provision for asset impairment is determined and recognized on an
individual asset basis. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the recoverable amount of the group of assets to which the asset belongs is determined. A group
of assets is the smallest group of assets that is able to generate independent cash inflows.

The impairment loss in respect of above non-financial assets is not allowed to be reversed in the
subsequent periods.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(13) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and other relevant expenditures incurred by
the Group in exchange for services rendered by employees or end of the employment contracts.
These benefits contain short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and staff incentive
plan, etc.

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits mainly include salaries, bonuses, allowances and subsidies, staff
welfare expenses, basic medical insurance, work injury insurance, maternity insurance, housing
funds, labor union fees, staff education expenses and payment in lieu of leave, etc. In the reporting
period in which an employee has rendered services, the Group recognizes the short-term
employee benefits payable for those services as a liability with a corresponding increase the
expenses or costs in the consolidated income statement. Specifically, the non-monetary benefits
including in short-term employee benefits are measured in fair value.

(b) Post-employment benefits

The group operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined contribution and
defined benefit plans. A defined contribution plan is a kind of plan under which the group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan refers to the
post-employment schemes other than defined contribution plan stated above. The group offers
defined contribution plan during the report period which include payments related to government
mandated defined contribution retirement schemes and unemployment insurance, annuity scheme
by the group, etc.

Government mandated defined contribution retirement schemes

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group has joined defined
contribution retirement schemes for the employees arranged by local government labor and
security authorities. The Group makes contributions to the retirement schemes at the applicable
rates based on the amounts stipulated by the local government organizations each month. When
employees retire, the local government labor and security authorities are responsible for the
payment of the basic retirement benefits to the retired employees. In the reporting period in which
an employee has rendered services, the Group recognizes the defined contribution retirement
schemes payable for those services as a liability with a corresponding increase the expenses or
costs in the consolidated income statement.

(c) Staff incentive plan

The payable obligation of the Group for its staff incentive plan, measured with reference to the net
asset value per share of the Group, is recorded as “welfare payable” with the changes in value
recorded in the income statement. The liability of the Group resulting from the staff incentive plan is
only crystallized when the required performance targets are achieved and upon the completion of
the service during vesting period. At each balance sheet date during the vesting period, the Group
has applied best estimate to determine the payable obligation for its staff incentive plan with the
changes in estimate between two periods recognized as “operating and administrative expenses”.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(14) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims or onerous contracts are recognized when the Group has a present
obligation, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of expenditure required to settle the related
present obligation. Factors surrounding a contingency such as risks, uncertainties and time value
of money are taken into account as a whole in reaching the best estimate. Where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the best estimate is determined by discounting the related future
cash outflow. The increase in the discounted amount of the provision arising from passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

The carrying amount of provisions is reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate.

(15) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are calculated and recognized based on the
differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount
(temporary differences). Deferred tax asset is recognized for the deductible losses that can be
carried forward to subsequent years for deduction of the taxable profit in accordance with the tax
law. No deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recognized for the temporary differences
resulting from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities due to a transaction other than a
business combination, which affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or deductible loss)
At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognized for deductible temporary differences, deductible losses
and tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available in the future
against which the deductible temporary differences, deductible losses and tax credits can be
utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference, and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
When it is probable that the temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries will be
reversed in the foreseeable future and that the taxable profit will be available in the future against
which the temporary differences can be utilized, the corresponding deferred tax assets are
recognized.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(15) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when:
 The deferred taxes are relate to the same tax payer within the group and same fiscal authority,

and;
 That tax payer has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax

liabilities.

(16) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments, except derivatives, are
recognized as “interest income” and “interest expense” in the income statement using the effective
interest method. Interest income and expense for derivatives is recognized in “net trading gains” in
the income statement.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts paid or
received by the Group that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, including transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

(17) Fee and commission income and expense

The Group earns fee and commission income from a range of diversified services provided to its
customers. Fee and commission income are earned over the servicing period when the relevant
service has to be rendered over a specified period of time. Fee and commission income for other
services are recognized when the transactions are completed.

(18) Governmental grants

Government grants refer to monetary assets and non-monetary assets that the Group obtains from
the government free of charge. Government grants are recognized where the grants can be
received and the Bank is able to comply with all attached condition.

Government grants of monetary asset in nature are measured at the amounts received or
receivable while for those with the non-monetary asset in nature, they are measured at fair value. If
fair value of which could not be reliably measured, they are recognized at notional amounts.

Government grants relating to assets refer to grants that are provided for the purposes of purchase
or construction of the long-term assets. The government grants relating to costs refer to the
government grants other than those relating to assets.

Government grants relating to assets are recognized as non-current liabilities-deferred income,
and are credited to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(18) Governmental Grants (Continued)

Government grants relating to costs are recognized as deferred income to the extent that such
grants are used for compensation of related costs to be incurred in the subsequent period; the
grants are directly recognized to the profit or loss for the current period where they are used for
compensation of related costs which have already been incurred.

(19) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.
Revenue and expense under operating leases are recognized in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

(20) Contingent liabilities and acceptance

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognized but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognized as a provision.

Acceptances comprise undertakings by the Group to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers.
The Group expects most acceptances to be settled simultaneously with the reimbursements from
the customers. Acceptances are accounted for as off-balance sheet transactions and are disclosed
as contingent liabilities and commitments in Note 10.

(21) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group as the guarantor (the “issuer”) to make
specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the
holder incurs when a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. The fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees received) is
initially recognized as deferred income in “other liabilities”. The deferred income is amortized in
profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the carrying amount of the deferred income.

(22) Entrusted loans

The Group provides custody and trustee services to customers (as the principals) who provide
funds and bear the risks. In accordance with the conditions decided by the principals with regard to
the borrower, purpose of use, amounts, tenors and interest rates, the Group (as the trustee) acts
as an agent in lending, supervising and collecting the loans while the principal bears the risks. The
Group does not make advance or bear credit risk and thus the entrusted loans are recorded off-
balance sheet. The Group only charges commission, which is recognized as income according to
the revenue recognition policy.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

A Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(23) Profit distributions

Profits distributed are recognized as liabilities in the period approved by the shareholders meeting.

(24) Segment information

The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal organization structure,
management requirement and internal reporting and discloses segment information of reportable
segment determined on the basis of operating segment.

An operating segment is the component of the Group that all of the following conditions are
satisfied: (a) that component can earn revenues and incur expenses from ordinary activities; (b)
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s management to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and (c) for which the
information of financial position, operating results and cash flows is available to the Group. If two or
more operating segments have similar economic characteristics, and satisfy certain conditions,
they are aggregated into a single operating segment.

According to geographic regions, the Group’s operating segments mainly include Xiamen, Fuzhou,
Zhuhai, Shanghai, Beijing, Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Macau Special
Administrative Region and others (including Ningde, Longyan and Quanzhou).

B Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical accounting estimates and key judgments applied
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions that are probable of causing significant risks of material adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined below:

(1) Impairment of assets

(a) Impairment allowances on loans and advances and accounts receivable investments

The Group reviews its loans and advances and accounts receivable investments to assess
impairment on a periodic basis, unless known circumstances indicate that impairment may have
occurred as of an interim date.

In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgments and assumptions when calculating impairment allowances related to loans and
advances accounts receivable investments. These allowances, which reflect the difference
between the carrying amount of loans and accounts receivable investments, or a portfolio of similar
loans and accounts receivable investments, and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
are assessed individually, for significant loans and accounts receivable investments, and
collectively, for smaller portfolios of similar loans.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

B Significant accounting estimates and judgments (Continued)

(1) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(a) Impairment allowances on loans and advances and accounts receivable investments

(Continued)

The estimate of future cash flows is most significantly related to impaired loans and accounts
receivable investments for which the impairment loss is assessed individually. Factors affecting
this estimate include, among other things, the details of financial information related to specific
borrowers, the availability of meaningful information related to industry competitors, the relevance
of sector trends to the future performance of individual borrowers, valuation of collaterals and its
realisability and the ability of guarantor. China continues to experience economic growth and these
facts are not as well established as those in more developed markets. The effect of these factors
requires significant judgment to be applied in the estimation of future cash flows. This is especially
true in loans and accounts receivable investments for emerging sectors.

Significant judgment is also applied to the calculation of collectively assessed impairment
allowances. The Group makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans and
advances and accounts receivable investments before the decrease can be identified with an
individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has
been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group (e.g. payment delinquency
or default), or national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
Group. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio
when estimating expected future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience. The Group has considered the
impact of the changes and uncertainty in the macro-economic environments in which the Group
operates when assessing the methodology and assumptions used for loss estimates and made
adjustments where appropriate.

(b) Impairment for available-for-sale financial assets

In accordance with CAS2006 No.22, the group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired or the impairment of bond
investment should be reversed. Specifically, the determination of whether an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired relies highly on management’s judgment. In making this judgment, the
Group considers the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its
cost; or whether other objective evidence of impairment exists based on the financial health of and
near-term business outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry and sector
performance, credit ratings, delinquency rates and counterparty risk.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

B Significant accounting estimates and judgments (Continued)

(2) Fair value of financial instruments

The Group uses valuation techniques to estimate the fair value of financial instruments which are
not quoted in an active market. These valuation techniques include the use of recent transaction
prices of the same or similar instruments, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.
To the extent practical market observable inputs and data, such as interest rate yield curves,
foreign currency rates and implied option volatilities, are used when estimating fair value through a
valuation technique. Where market observable inputs are not available, they are estimated using
assumptions that are calibrated as closely as possible to market observable data. However, areas
such as the credit risk of the Group and the counterparty, volatilities and correlations require
management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
estimated fair value of financial instruments.

An unlisted equity investment held by the Group is measured at fair value in accordance with the
PRC Accounting Standards. Therefore, the Group has appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair value of that equity investment. The fair value of that equity investment
has been estimated using a market comparison approach by an independent professional valuer.
Based on the market ratio (e.g., price/earnings and price/book ratios) of a number of listed
companies engaged in similar industries as the investee and the investee’s historical financial
information, management of the Group makes estimates and judgment on the appropriate
adjustments required to reflect the circumstances of the investee, including the liquidity discount
applicable to the paid-up capital of the investee as compared to those of the shares of a listed
company, for fair value estimation purposes. The Group’s share of fair value changes is accounted
for in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in equity.

(3) Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity as held-to-maturity investment. This classification requires significant judgment. In making
this judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity.

(4) Income taxes

There are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination exists
uncertainty during the ordinary course of business. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. The Group recognizes tax liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period during which such a
determination is made. Management believes that the Group is likely to have sufficient taxable
income that could be used for offsetting the deductible temporary differences.

(5) Measurement of liability resulting from staff incentive plan

The Group has set up a staff incentive plan. At each balance sheet date, the Group re-measures
the liability relating to the staff incentive plan, with changes recognized in profit or loss.
Management makes estimates to assess the related liability, including the number of expected
staff incentive rights that would fulfil the vesting conditions, the probabilities of each vesting
condition with various net assets per share and the duration of vesting period.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

B Significant accounting estimates and judgments (Continued)

(6) Control over structured entity

Where the Group acts as asset manager of structure entities, the Group makes judgment on
whether it is the principal or an agent to assess whether the Group controls the structured entities
and should consolidate them. When performing this assessment, the Group considers several
factors including, among other things, the scope of its decision-making authority over the
structured entities, the rights held by other parties, the remuneration to which it is entitled in
accordance with the related agreements for the assets management services, the Group’s
exposure to variability of returns from other interests that it holds in the structured entities. The
Group performs re-assessment periodically.

5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Ministry of Finance of PRC issued several accounting standards in 2014 which effect from 1 July
2014, including CAS No 39, CAS No 40, CAS No 41, Amended CAS No.2, CAS No.9, CAS No. 30
and CAS No. 33. Moreover, Ministry of Finance of PRC issued CAS No. 37 in 2014 which effect
from the disclosure for financial period 2014.

The changing content and reasons
for accounting policies

Financial statement listed items which are
affected

The amount
effected

The disclosure of the Group’s equity
investments is prepared in
accordance with amended CAS No.2
and the financial statements for
comparative period have been
adjusted correspondingly.

Long-term equity investments
Investment securities-Available-for-sale
Capital reserve
Other comprehensive income
Deferred tax assets

Refer to the
table below

Several FSLI have been restated
according to the amended CAS No.2
and financial information for
comparative period has been
adjusted correspondingly.

Financial assets held for trading
Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss
Long-term equity investments
Investment securities-Available-for-sale
Capital reserve
Other comprehensive income
Deferred tax assets
Currency translation differences

Refer to the
table below

The disclosure related to fair value is
prepared in accordance with new
CAS No. 39, while the disclosures
for comparative period are not
required to be adjusted according to
new CAS No. 39.

Not Applicable Not
Applicable

The disclosure related to equity in
other entities is prepared in
accordance with CAS No.41 and the
financial information for comparative
period has been adjusted
correspondingly, except for the
disclosures of unconsolidated
structure entities.

Not Applicable Not
Applicable

`
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5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position for the first two accounting
policies changes as a result of the adoption of new standards and amendments to standards is as
follows:

Items 31 December 2013 1 January 2013

Financial assets held for trading (904,217,632) (19,582,963,860)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 904,217,632 19,582,963,860

Long-term equity investments (3,652,300) (3,652,300)

Investment securities-Available-for-sale 397,310,000 362,320,000

Deferred tax assets (98,414,425) (89,666,925)

Capital reserve (1,044,484,103) (90,002,219)

Other comprehensive income 1,013,348,428 56,242,045

Currency translation differences (264,107,600) (235,240,601)

6 TAXATION

Major taxes and related tax rates applicable to the Group are as follows：

Tax Basis of tax assessment Tax rate

2014 2013

Mainland China

Corporate Income Tax Amount of taxable profit 25% 25%
Business Tax Amount of taxable business income 5% 5%
City Maintenance and

Construction Tax Amount of business tax paid 7% 7%

Education surcharge Amount of business tax paid 3% 3%

Hong Kong

Profits Tax Assessable profit 16.5% 16.5%

Macau

Supplementary Income Tax Assessable profit 12% 12%

7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Cash on hand and deposits with Central Bank

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Cash on hand 342,947,269 333,642,331
Mandatory deposits reserve in Central Bank 30,586,152,258 18,046,840,192
Balances with Central Bank other than

mandatory deposits reserve 3,687,857,453 3,503,755,168
Total 34,616,956,980 21,884,237,691

The Bank and its PRC branches have placed deposit reserves with the PBOC, which shall not be
used for daily business operation. As at 31 December 2014, the RMB deposit reserve ratio was 18%
(31 December 2013: 18%); and the foreign currency deposit reserve ratio was 5% (31 December
2013: 5%).
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Deposits with supervisory authority outside Mainland China

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Deposit reserves placed with Autoridade
Monetaria de Macau
(the Monetary Authority of Macau) 685,309,300 577,415,805

The amount comprises deposit reserves placed with Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (the
Monetary Authority of Macau) by LIB in accordance with the statutory requirements, which shall not
be used for daily business operation.

In accordance with statutory requirements, LIB is required to maintain a minimum deposit balance
with the Monetary Authority of Macau. The required weekly average of the Pataca current deposit
balance should not be less than 70% of the aggregate of the following amounts:

(a) 3% of all the liabilities which are repayable on demand;

(b) 2% of all the liabilities which are repayable within 3 months (3 months inclusive) excluding those
already included in (a) above;

(c) 1% of all the liabilities, which are not repayable within 3 months.

(3) Deposits with other banks and financial institutions

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Current deposits with domestic banks 1,240,082,110 772,767,416
Current deposits with overseas banks 3,413,073,603 931,347,377
Time deposits with domestic banks

-original maturities within three months 5,005,760,000 19,337,994,500
-original maturities more than three months 2,530,000,000 1,150,000,000

Total 12,188,915,713 22,192,109,293

As at 31 December 2014, no impairment provision for the above balances was considered
necessary by the Group (31 December 2013: Nil).

(4) Placements with other banks and financial institutions

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Placement with domestic banks 288,493,760 444,130,000
Placement with domestic non-bank financial

institutions 183,000,000 1,736,726,925
Placement with overseas banks 2,215,846,986 534,001,309
Total 2,687,340,746 2,714,858,234

As at 31 December 2014, no impairment provision for the above balance was considered
necessary by the Group (31 December 2013: Nil).
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(5) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Corporate bonds 75,456,915 392,060,160
Financial institution bonds 608,128,600 499,231,109
Interbank deposits 48,779,300 -
Structured bills 2,768,906 12,926,363
Total 735,133,721 904,217,632

There was no significant limitation on the ability of the Group and the Bank to dispose of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(6) Derivative financial assets and liabilities

The Group has the following derivative instruments held for trading purpose:

(a) Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase/sell foreign exchanges including unsettled
spot transactions.

(b) Currency swaps are commitments to exchange the principal in one currency for the same in another
currency in a given period of time.

(c) Currency options represent the right entitled by the Group to purchase/sell foreign currency within a
given period of time.

(d) Interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another. The result of
swaps is an economic exchange of interest rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate), instead
of exchange of principal.

The contractual/notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments on balance sheet date
only provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognized on the balance sheet but do not
necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The
derivative instruments become favorable (assets) or unfavorable (liabilities) as a result of
fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates and the price of stocks or futures
relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can
fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets are determined by
using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include discounted cash flows analysis and
models. To the extent practical, models use only observable data such as interest rates and
exchange rates. However, areas such as credit risks (both own and those of the counterparties),
volatilities and correlations still require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect reported fair value of financial instruments.



XIAMEN INTERNATIONAL BANK Co., LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts are stated in Rmb Yuan unless otherwise stated)
[English Translation For Reference Only]

- 33 -

7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(6) Derivative financial assets and liabilities

The amounts and fair values of unsettle derivative instruments held by the Group are set out in the
following tables.

Nominal/Contract Fair value
31 December 2014 Amount Assets Liabilities

Exchange rate derivatives
-Forward 568,322,463 15,193,685 (3,676,161)
-Swaps 23,512,668,794 39,387,474 (71,599,228)
-Option 2,894,373 - (12,524)

Interest rate derivatives
-Swaps 252,985,253 646,800 (985,153)

Total 24,336,870,883 55,227,959 (76,273,066)

Nominal/Contract Fair value
31 December 2013 Amount Assets Liabilities

Exchange rate derivatives
-Forward 934,249,034 29,434,929 (6,505,233)
-Swaps 15,558,634,145 8,712,347 (20,088,648)
-Option 1,981,948 - (13,194)

Interest rate derivatives
-Swaps 270,703,815 630,000 (1,927,878)

Total 16,765,568,942 38,777,276 (28,534,953)

(7) Financial assets held under resale agreements

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Government bonds 2,610,000,000 820,000,000
Financial institution bonds 4,609,000,000 3,701,100,000
Total 7,219,000,000 4,521,100,000

As at 31 December 2014, no impairment provision for financial assets held under resale

agreement was considered necessary by the Group (31 December 2013: Nil).

(8) Interest receivable

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Interest receivable from bond investments 688,372,562 593,449,648
Interest receivable from account receivable

investments 347,506,607 319,122,214
Interest receivable from loans and advances 407,017,613 278,358,175
Interest receivable from deposits with other

banks and financial institutions 85,725,531 37,808,593
Interest receivable from deposits with Central

Bank 15,792,382 4,601,079
Interest receivable from placements with other

banks and financial institutions 11,960,049 18,331,395
Interest receivable from financial assets held

under resale agreements 1,224,616 2,125,420
Others 2,327,671 425,635

Total 1,559,927,031 1,254,222,159
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(9) Loans and advances, net

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Corporate loans and advances
-Loans 104,015,205,475 72,560,097,969
-Discounted bills 1,547,699,478 3,047,120,605
-Trade bills 120,661,726 521,094,789
-Others 554,531,787 781,455,565

106,238,098,466 76,909,768,928

Individual loans and advances
-Residential mortgage loans 3,873,733,959 4,425,362,369
-Credit cards 52,057,264 45,602,235
-Vehicle mortgage loans 176,202,487 2,118,854
-Others 1,033,447,619 41,369,375

5,135,441,329 4,514,452,833

Loans and advances, total 111,373,539,795 81,424,221,761

Less: Allowance for impaired loans
-Individual assessment (316,003,145) (244,803,416)
-Collective assessment (1,798,350,334) (1,255,176,370)

(2,114,353,479) (1,499,979,786)

Loans and advances, net 109,259,186,316 79,924,241,975

(a) Loans and advances categorized by guarantee type:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Carrying

values
Percentage

(%)
Carrying

values
Percentage

(%)

Unsecured loans 6,557,327,446 5.89% 5,545,011,120 6.81%
Guaranteed loans 39,535,055,582 35.50% 21,077,959,214 25.89%
Collateralized loans 5,194,229,630 4.66% 6,552,071,430 8.05%
Pledged loans 37,121,201,749 33.33% 24,967,611,005 30.66%
Both collateralized and

guaranteed loans 3,006,774,231 2.70% 4,297,015,627 5.28%
Both pledged and

guaranteed loans 12,769,819,288 11.46% 8,587,906,632 10.54%
Both collateralized and

pledged loans 4,966,238,878 4.46% 6,046,975,774 7.43%
Discounted bills 1,547,699,478 1.39% 3,047,120,605 3.74%
Trade bills 120,661,726 0.11% 521,094,789 0.64%
Other credit commitments 554,531,787 0.50% 781,455,565 0.96%
Total 111,373,539,795 100% 81,424,221,761 100%
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(9) Loans and advances, net (Continued)

(b) Loans and advances categorized by geographical distribution:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Carrying

values
Percentage

(%)
Carrying

Values
Percentage

(%)

Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan 36,507,008,800 32.78% 20,450,219,908 25.12%
Jiangzhe regions 17,665,507,520 15.86% 10,698,258,185 13.14%
Jingjinji regions 16,970,089,405 15.24% 13,659,413,821 16.77%
Fujian regions 10,338,094,479 9.28% 9,885,945,533 12.14%
Guangdong regions 6,029,836,863 5.41% 8,521,985,570 10.47%
Chuanyu regions 4,569,050,332 4.10% 2,341,650,000 2.88%
Dianguiqian regions 3,826,762,783 3.44% 3,247,918,400 3.98%
Northeast regions 2,372,328,800 2.13% 2,482,556,453 3.05%
Other regions 13,094,860,813 11.76% 10,136,273,891 12.45%
Total 111,373,539,795 100% 81,424,221,761 100%

(c) Overdue loans categorised by guarantee type and overdue periods:

31 December 2014
Overdue not more

than 90
days(inclusive of

90 days)

Overdue from
90 days to 1

year(inclusive of
1 year)

Overdue from 1
year to 3

years(inclusive of
3 years)

Overdue more
than 3 years Total

Trade bills - 8,307,766 - - 8,307,766
Unsecured loans 117,842,519 7,758,678 - 835,692 126,436,889
Guarantee loans 3,595,339,861 95,591,508 34,343,740 21,715,071 3,746,990,180
Collateralized loans 104,200,603 655,549 65,140,172 1,723,075 171,719,399
Pledged loans 85,249,524 55,075,180 - - 140,324,704
Both collateralized and

guaranteed loans - 5,180,264 13,324,664 22,550,056 41,054,984
Both pledged and guaranteed

loans 171,919,059 - 13,835,726 - 185,754,785
Total 4,074,551,566 172,568,945 126,644,302 46,823,894 4,420,588,707

31 December 2013
Overdue not more

than 90
days(inclusive of

90 days)

Overdue from
90 days to 1

year(inclusive of
1 year)

Overdue from 1
year to 3

years(inclusive of
3 years)

Overdue more
than 3 years Total

Unsecured loans 16,373,117 215,747 1,581,584 528,424 18,698,872
Guarantee loans 1,017,933,270 28,439,126 25,945,590 - 1,072,317,986
Collateralized loans 20,253,870 5,033,687 148,401,064 148,057 173,836,678
Both collateralized and

guaranteed loans 600,000 - 13,973,742 21,908,401 36,482,143
Both pledged and guaranteed

loans 3,930,000 - 9,907,164 - 13,837,164
Total 1,059,090,257 33,688,560 199,809,144 22,584,882 1,315,172,843

(d) For the total amount of the loans and advances categorized by industry sectors, please refer to
Note 13(2)-(i).
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(9) Loans and advances, net (Continued)

(e) Allowance for impaired loans

Corporate loans Individual loans Total
Individually

assessed
Collectively

assessed
Individually

assessed
Collectively

assessed

31 December 2013 243,463,570 1,230,667,071 1,339,846 24,509,299 1,499,979,786

Provision/reversal for
the year 73,033,577 542,370,985 (824,242) 657,624 615,237,944

Recovery after write-off 936,827 - - - 936,827

Unwinding of discount
on allowance (1,962,450) - - - (1,962,450)

Translation differences 16,017 6,329,586 - (6,184,231) 161,372

31 December 2014 315,487,541 1,779,367,642 515,604 18,982,692 2,114,353,479

Corporate loans Individual loans Total
Individually

assessed
Collectively

assessed
Individually

assessed
Collectively

assessed

31 December 2012 198,715,343 722,528,466 696,151 9,007,052 930,947,012

Provision/reversal for
the year 51,894,796 510,658,796 859,797 17,544,941 580,958,330

Recovery after write-off 1,290,350 - - - 1,290,350

Unwinding of discount
on allowance (7,615,717) - (216,102) - (7,831,819)

Translation differences (821,202) (2,520,191) - (2,042,694) (5,384,087)

31 December 2013 243,463,570 1,230,667,071 1,339,846 24,509,299 1,499,979,786

(10) Available-for-sale financial assets

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Investment securities at fair value
Financial institution bonds 13,313,906,413 11,203,845,892
Corporate bonds 18,896,528,246 15,821,385,867
Equity instruments 376,192,100 403,578,421
Total 32,586,626,759 27,428,810,180

Allowance for impairment
(59,273,165) (59,273,165)

Net book value 32,527,353,594 27,369,537,015

The equity instrument represents 10% equity interest in ABB Xiamen Switchgear Co., Ltd. with an
initial investment of USD 500,000 and the equity instrument has been accounted for using fair
value. Dividend received from ABB Xiamen Switchgear Co., Ltd. in 2014 was RMB 49,971,047
(2013: RMB 58,112,101).
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The available-for-sale financial institution bonds consist of a bond investment with principal value
of RMB 73,162,800. An impairment provision of RMB 59,273,165 as of 31 December 2014 (31
December 2013: RMB 59,273,165) was made against this investment with a provision rate of
81.02%.

(11) Held-to-maturity investments

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Bills issued by Autoridade Monetaria
de Macau 956,679,264 709,569,203

Financial institution bonds 74,942,650 74,691,850

Total 1,031,621,914 784,261,053

As at 31 December 2014, no impairment provision for the above balances was considered
necessary by the Group (31 December 2013: Nil).

(12) Accounts receivable investments

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Investment products issued by financial
institutions 44,010,908,758 65,031,816,413

Specific asset management plan 101,469,698,296 31,785,342,664
Investment trusts - 1,000,000,000
Total 145,480,607,054 97,817,159,077

Less: Provision (407,733,968) (75,000,000)

Net 145,072,873,086 97,742,159,077

Movement for provision

31 December 2013 75,000,000 -
Provision for the year

-Individual assessment 37,500,000 75,000,000
-Collective assessment 295,233,968 -

31 December 2014 407,733,968 75,000,000

As at 31 December 2014, the Group made an impairment allowance of RMB 112,500,000 against
one specific asset management plan, the principal value of which is RMB 150,000,000 (31
December 2013:RMB 75,000,000).

(13) Fixed assets

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Fixed assets, cost 457,975,251 401,537,800
Accumulated depreciation (275,417,796) (251,491,969)
Fixed assets – net book value 182,557,455 150,045,831
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(13) Fixed assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, no impairment provision for the above balance was considered
necessary by the Group (31 December 2013: Nil).

Fixed assets movement: Buildings
Office equipment

and furniture
Computer
equipment Vehicles Total

Cost

31 December 2013 254,937,238 15,273,436 106,018,145 25,308,981 401,537,800

Additions 4,771,977 1,742,847 48,327,595 6,223,514 61,065,933

Disposals (42,707) (224,818) (2,671,586) (2,372,835) (5,311,946)

Translation differences 524,640 36,165 111,107 11,552 683,464

31 December 2014 260,191,148 16,827,630 151,785,261 29,171,212 457,975,251

Accumulated depreciation

31 December 2013 (173,303,546) (9,385,038) (51,801,337) (17,002,048) (251,491,969)

Additions (10,446,778) (1,384,965) (13,778,035) (2,295,048) (27,904,826)

Disposals 38,436 177,243 2,122,705 2,135,551 4,473,935

Translation differences (391,326) (19,931) (75,648) (8,031) (494,936)

31 December 2014 (184,103,214) (10,612,691) (63,532,315) (17,169,576) (275,417,796)

Net book value

31 December 2014 76,087,934 6,214,939 88,252,946 12,001,636 182,557,455

31 December 2013 81,633,692 5,888,398 54,216,808 8,306,933 150,045,831

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant fixed assets under financial
leasing arrangement (31 December 2013: Nil)

In 2014, depreciation expense of RMB 27,904,826 was recognized in operating and administrative
expenses (2013: RMB 22,445,415).

(14) Intangible assets

Computer software

Cost Amortization Net carrying value

As at 31 December 2014 35,568,000 (1,482,000) 34,086,000

(15) Long-term prepaid expenses

Golf club
membership

Computer
system

maintenance
cost

Leasehold
improvement Total

31 December 2013 1,404,669 9,768,940 8,840,136 20,013,745

Additions - 8,773,924 12,702,567 21,476,491

Amortization (33,380) (5,864,796) (5,976,234) (11,874,410)

Translation differences 3,960 1,668 - 5,628

31 December 2014 1,375,249 12,679,736 15,566,469 29,621,454
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(16) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

(a) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances are as follows:

(i) Deferred tax assets
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Deferred tax
assets

Deductible
temporary
difference

Deferred tax
assets

Deductible
temporary
difference

Provision for asset impairment 332,236,952 1,444,625,472 212,380,250 884,593,636
Unrealized loss for

available-for-sale financial
assets - - 250,042,644 999,670,170

Losses arising from fair value
changes of derivative
financial instruments 17,072,827 76,273,066 4,594,610 28,526,740

Losses arising from fair value
changes of financial assets
at fair value through profit or
loss - - 9,604,288 38,547,759

Write-off loans 16,093,830 64,375,321 16,273,037 65,092,148
Accelerated depreciation of

fixed assets 3,689,671 30,747,250 3,316,356 27,636,300
Payroll payable - share

appreciation rights 94,716,904 378,867,619 47,917,500 191,670,000
Total 463,810,184 1,994,888,728 544,128,685 2,235,736,753

(ii) Deferred tax liabilities
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Deferred tax
liabilities

Taxable
temporary
difference

Deferred tax
liabilities

Taxable temporary
difference

Unrealized gains for
available-for-sale financial
assets (76,525,885) (302,653,433) - -

Gains arising from fair value
changes of derivative
financial instruments (11,017,340) (55,227,959) (4,939,695) (28,754,545)

Gains arising from fair value
changes of financial assets
at fair value through profit or
loss (1,787,089) (7,190,283) - -

Impact of income tax rate
difference of overseas
subsidiaries (211,874,027) (1,712,492,200) (178,101,008) (1,452,640,309)

Reversal of deferred tax due
to capitalization of retained
earnings in oversea
subsidiary 110,216,764 847,821,262 110,216,764 847,821,262

Total (190,987,577) (1,229,742,613) (72,823,939) (633,573,592)

(b)Def The net balance of deferred tax assets/ liabilities after offsetting is as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities, net 272,822,607 471,304,746
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(16) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c)Def Movement of deferred tax is as follows:

2014 2013

Beginning of the year 471,304,746 (37,321,314)
Impact of income tax recognized in other comprehensive

income
Unrealized profit or loss for available-for-sale financial
assets (326,568,529) 307,887,092

Deferred tax charged to profit and loss account 128,086,390 200,738,968
End of the year 272,822,607 471,304,746

(d) Deferred tax income/expenses charged in income statements comprise the following temporary
differences:

2014 2013

Provision for asset impairment 119,856,702 131,519,600
Gains and losses arising from fair value changes of

derivative financial instruments 6,400,572 (18,752,320)
Gains and losses arising from fair value changes of

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (11,391,377) 55,758,832
Loans written off (179,207) (272,568)
Payroll payable 46,799,404 14,500,000
Impact of income tax rate differential

of overseas subsidiaries (33,773,019) (24,158,392)
Reversal of deferred tax due to capitalization of retained

earnings in overseas subsidiary - 42,082,882
Accelerated depreciation of fixed assets 373,315 60,934
Total 128,086,390 200,738,968

(17) Other assets

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Prepayments for land use rights 299,437,241 299,243,775
Temporary payments and receivables 394,370,016 339,704,965
Prepaid expenses 95,526,925 50,457,156
Others 23,563,595 22,664,257
Provision for refinancing banks in potential high

risk countries and regions (9,606,759) (3,863,339)
Provision of off-balance-sheet asset (24,054,028) (123,587,190)
Total 779,236,990 584,619,624

(18) Borrowings from central bank

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Borrowings from central bank 430,000,000 -
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(18) Borrowings from central bank (Continued)

The borrowings from central bank in Xiamen are obtained for the purpose of supporting the funding
needs of small enterprises. Certain bonds held by the Group have been pledged as collaterals for
the borrowings from central bank, the book value of these collaterals has been disclosed in Note
10(4).

(19) Deposits from other banks and financial institutions

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Domestic banks
-Current deposits from other domestic banks 800,050,983 10,203,362,040
-Time deposits from other domestic banks 75,888,146,578 68,310,825,000
Other domestic non-bank financial institutions
-Current deposits from other domestic non-bank
financial institutions - 8,816,865
-Time deposits from other domestic non-bank
financial institutions - 11,248,338,342
Overseas banks
-Current deposits from other overseas banks 193,496 40,495
- Time deposits from other overseas banks - 100,000,000
Total 76,688,391,057 89,871,382,742

(20) Placements from other banks and financial institutions

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Placements from other domestic banks 1,106,791,937 1,142,927,807
Placements from other overseas banks 6,314,971,239 2,376,724,012

7,421,763,176 3,519,651,819

(21) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Equity-linked deposits 2,773,484 12,948,768
Currency-linked deposits 2,891,922 1,973,786
Total 5,665,406 14,922,554

(22) Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Financial institution bonds 7,946,200,000 10,301,660,000
Corporate bonds 6,934,300,000 3,827,126,000
Bank acceptances 268,188,927 299,892,937
Total 15,148,688,927 14,428,678,937

Book values of the relevant collaterals for financial assets stated above are disclosed in Note 10
(4).
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(23) Customer deposits

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Short-term deposits 37,814,739,041 33,617,236,951
Fixed-term deposits 185,822,700,690 101,574,033,633
Certificate of deposits 351,842,500 1,164,507,900
Others 195,933,473 27,786,778
Total 224,185,215,704 136,383,565,262

Deposits from customers include:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
(1) Pledged deposits

- Short-term 167,706,293 231,455,624
- Fixed-term 19,903,441,381 4,041,848,097
Total 20,071,147,674 4,273,303,721

(2) Other
-Outward remittance and remittance payables 179,217,457 26,893,030
-Temporary deposits 639,140 893,748
-Other 16,076,876 -
Total 195,933,473 27,786,778

(24) Payroll payable

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Short-term employee benefits payable (a) 621,399,699 467,865,434

Post-employment benefits payable (b) 200,769 85,359,715

Staff incentive plan payable (c) 319,790,351 191,670,000

Total 941,390,819 744,895,149

(a) Short-term employee benefits payable

31 December

2013 Accruals Paid

31 December

2014

Salaries and bonuses 467,717,371 822,176,808 (668,494,480) 621,399,699

Staff welfare - 5,242,953 (5,242,953) -

Social insurance 83,514 17,174,662 (17,258,176) -

Including:

Medical insurance 70,705 15,116,206 (15,186,911) -

Work injury insurance 7,185 737,172 (744,357) -

Maternity insurance 5,624 1,321,284 (1,326,908) -

Housing funds 64,549 14,328,094 (14,392,643) -

Other short-term

employee benefits - 1,636,542 (1,636,542) -

467,865,434 860,559,059 (707,024,794) 621,399,699
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(24) Payroll payable (Continued)

(b) Post-employment benefits payable

2014 2013

Accruals Balance Accruals Balance

Defined contribution

retirement schemes 26,127,094 194,945 18,936,393 141,293

Unemployment insurance 2,567,903 5,802 1,859,964 1,593

Annuity scheme 26,687,658 22 21,243,278 -

Supplementary retirement

schemes 9,556,001 - 7,344,453 7,344,453

Supplementary medical

insurance 12,367,146 - 9,932,381 9,932,381

Supplementary housing

funds 29,138,463 - 22,903,510 42,443,863

Other housing funds 29,210,034 - 26,158,872 25,496,132

135,654,299 200,769 108,378,851 85,359,715

(c) Staff incentive plan payable

31 December

2013 Accruals Paid

31 December

2014

Staff incentive plan 191,670,000 128,120,351 - 319,790,351

The Group has applied the best estimate to determine the payable obligation for its staff incentive
plan and recognized in expenses ( Note 4 B(5)).

(25) Taxes payable

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Enterprise income tax payable 378,025,678 518,277,240
Business tax payable 75,263,391 77,491,480
Others 10,722,286 10,114,747
Total 464,011,355 605,883,467

(26) Interest payable

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Deposits from other banks and financial institutions 1,849,488,496 1,096,917,013
Customer deposits 1,728,007,231 1,250,402,339
Bond payables 163,881,492 6,310,304
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 91,992,577 56,414,116
Placements from other banks and financial

institutions 38,369,220 10,917,607
Borrowings from central bank 525,556 -
Others 1,966,667 -
Total 3,874,231,239 2,420,961,379
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(27) Bond payable

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Subordinated bonds 2,991,509,791 -
Subordinated fixed rate bond 610,293,107 608,128,741
Total 3,601,802,898 608,128,741

Pursuant to the approval by relevant regulatory authorities of PRC, the subordinated bonds issued
by the Bank in 2014 are set out as below:

On 25 March 2014, the bank issued subordinated bonds amounting to RMB 3 billion with a 10
years’ maturity. The bonds have a fixed coupon rate of 6.90% during the first 5-years’ period with
interest paid annually. The bank has an option to redeem all the bonds at its face value on 27
March 2019 either partially or in entirely. If the bank does not exercise this redemption option, the
coupon rate of the bonds for the remaining period shall be still at 6.90% which remains fixed until
the maturity date.

The subordinated bonds rank senior in right of payments to equity holders as return of capital but
junior in right of payment to other indebtedness and other liabilities. Moreover, bond holders are
not allowed to request for accelerated repayment of bond principal and interest unless the bank is
in bankruptcy, closure or liquidation. The bonds are regarded as the second level of capital in the
calculation of capital adequacy ratio.

The subordinated fixed rate bonds were issued by Luso International Banking Ltd, which is a
subsidiary of the Group, under the permission of Autoridade Monetaria de Macau. Details of the
subordinated bonds are as shown below:

On 30 October 2013, Luso International Banking Ltd. issued subordinated bonds amounting to
HKD775million with a 10 years’ maturity. The bonds have a fixed coupon rate of 6% during the first
5-years’ period with interest paid semi-annually. The bank has an option to redeem all the bonds at
its face value on 30 October 2018 or on the last day of any interest-bearing period since 30
October 2018. If the bank does not exercise this redemption option, the coupon rate of the bonds
for the remaining period shall be at 6% which remains fixed until the maturity date.

Subordinated fixed rate bonds are subordinated to all other claims of the Group, but have
liquidation preference to the equity holders. The bond holders are not entitled to request for any
accelerated payment of the principal and interest of bonds unless in the event of bankruptcy,
closure or liquidation of Luso International Banking Ltd. In the calculation of the Group’s capital
adequacy ratio, these bonds are qualified for inclusion as supplementary capital.

There was no violation of contracts relating to subordinated bonds as at 31 December 2013 (2013:
Nil). The subordinated bonds do not involve any guarantees.

(28) Other liabilities

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Temporary receipts and payables 576,037,977 1,183,842,255
Advances received 11,740,104 54,478,473
Expenses payable 13,834,956 7,611,901
Promissory notes 25,525,561 189,728,477
Deferred gain 7,806,600 7,806,600
Others 822,893 610,166
Total 635,768,091 1,444,077,872
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29) Paid-in capital

Domestic Investors Foreign Investors Total
Paid-in Capital % Paid-in Capital %

31 December 2013 1,504,561,200 75.07% 499,738,800 24.93% 2,004,300,000

Capital contribution
by investors * 288,830,000 100% - - 288,830,000

31 December 2014 1,793,391,200 78.21% 499,738,800 21.79% 2,293,130,000

* In accordance with the resolution passed at the third extraordinary general meeting of the Bank
on 27 June 2014, the Bank received capital contributions from 42 investors totaling RMB
1,790,746,000 up to 31 July 2014, including increase in registered and paid-in capital of RMB
288,830,000 and increase in capital reserve of RMB 1,501,916,000. The registered capital was
revised to RMB 2,293,130,000. This capital contribution has been verified by
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP, Guangzhou branch and a capital verification report
No.004 [2014] was issued on 31 July 2014.

(30) Capital reserve

2014 2013

As at 1 January 5,944,035,059 4,961,536,259

Additions 1,501,916,000 982,498,800

As at 31 December 7,445,951,059 5,944,035,059

(31) Surplus reserve

General surplus reserve

Additions for the year 2014 166,824,353

Under PRC Law and the articles of association, the Group is required to transfer 10% of its net
profit to non-distributable statutory surplus reserves. Appropriation to the statutory surplus reserve
may cease when the balance of this reserve has reached 50% of share capital. Subject to the
approval of the equity holders, the statutory surplus reserves can be used for replenishing the
accumulated losses or increasing the Bank’s share capital. An appropriation of 10% of the profit for
year 2013 is transferred to the statutory surplus reserve, in the amount of RMB166,824,353
(2013:Nil) .

(32) General risk reserve

2014 2013

As at 1 January 1,530,000,000 1,300,000,000
Additions 889,780,000 230,000,000
As at 31 December 2,419,780,000 1,530,000,000
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(32) General risk reserve (Continued)

Pursuant to the regulations and implementation guide of Administrative Measures on Provision for

Loan Losses of Financial Institutions (No. [2012]20) issued by PRC Ministry of Finance, the Group

is required to set up general risk reserve to cover the unidentified potential loss from risk assets in

addition to asset impairment provision. The general risk reserve is regarded as a profit

appropriation which constitutes a component of equity. In principle, the balance should not be less

than 1.5% of the ending risk asset, otherwise, transitional arrangement for increasing the balance

up to 1.5% of the ending risk asset over a 5 years’ period from 1 July 2012 should be adopted. The

Group appropriated 1.2% of the closing balance of risk assets to the general reserve for the year

ended 31 December 2014 and is expected to meet the requirement of 1.5% prior to 30 June 2017.

(33) Retained earnings

2014 2013
As at 1 January 2,497,718,317 1,459,474,783
Net profit 2,227,580,021 1,668,243,534
Appropriation of profit

-Appropriation for surplus reserve (166,824,353) -
-Dividend (500,000,000) (400,000,000)
-Appropriation for general risk reserve (889,780,000) (230,000,000)

At the end of the year 3,168,693,985 2,497,718,317

(a) Dividend payment in respect of profit for 2013 was approved by shareholders of the Bank at

Annual General Meeting held on 18 April 2014. It is resolved hat a dividend of RMB2.494637

(including tax) per 10 shares, amounting to a total dividend of RMB500,000,000 (2013:

RMB400,000,000) was declared and paid to shareholders based on the total capital of RMB

2,004,300,000.

(b) In 2014, by Luso International Banking Unconsolidated structured entities invested by the
Group, which is a subsidiary of the Group appropriated RMB 45,772,411 and RMB 183,089,642 for
statutory reserve and general reserve from profit available for distribution, respectively (2013:
statutory reserve: RMB 23,309,076, general reserve: RMB 93,234,723).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the movement of reserves of the Group (including

reserves of subsidiary) is as follows:

Statutory

reserves(i)

General

reserves(ii)

Capital

reserves(iii) Total

1 January 2014 273,100,044 137,264,617 1,008,733,988 1,419,098,649
Addition 45,772,411 183,089,642 - 228,862,053
31 December 2014 318,872,455 320,354,259 1,008,733,988 1,647,960,702

(i). The statutory reserves were appropriated by Luso International Banking Ltd. in accordance

with the regulations by Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (AMCM). Under the regulations by

AMCM, the subsidiaries in Macau are required to appropriate at least 20% of its net profit to

statutory reserves. The appropriation can be reduced to 10% when the accumulated statutory

reserves reached 50% of share capital and upon the accumulated statutory reserves reached

the total share capital balance, no further appropriation is required.
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(33) Retained earnings (Continued)

(ii). The general reserves were appropriated from the net profit after tax by Luso International
Banking Ltd. according to the resolution of the Board of Directors.

(34) Interest income /Interest expense

2014 2013
Interest income
-Accounts receivable investments 7,680,774,409 5,018,270,273
-Loans and advances 4,933,330,896 4,232,690,653
-Bond investments 1,972,037,371 1,717,376,349
-Deposits with Central Bank 400,117,983 252,035,580
-Placements with other banks and

financial institutions 352,923,734 376,480,621
-Deposits with other banks and

financial institutions 191,443,557 83,505,233
-Financial assets held under resale agreements 106,443,397 69,580,504
-Others 151,280 153,406
Total 15,637,222,627 11,750,092,619

2014 2013
Interest expense
-Customer deposits (5,446,016,460) (3,392,650,222)
-Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (4,583,141,979) (4,321,561,008)
-Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (776,030,281) (520,341,582)
-Bonds payable (193,435,048) (6,330,185)
-Placements from other banks and financial

institutions (118,833,991) (38,243,978)
-Borrowings from central bank (6,413,333) -
-Others (2,108,630) (2,084,132)
Total (11,125,979,722) (8,281,211,107)

(35) Fee and commission income

2014 2013

Consultation service and advisory fees 329,081,924 612,227,829
Settlement and guarantee fees 139,451,380 108,754,581
Income from asset management plan 74,557,929 84,092,036
Agency fees 61,366,343 44,294,937
Credit card fees 59,982,534 60,294,425
Others 8,014,986 17,529,481
Total 672,455,096 927,193,289
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(36) Investment income

2014 2013

Investment income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 86,805,794 89,860,106

Investment income from available-for-sale investment
securities 316,217,846 69,632,139

Investment income from derivative financial assets 922,397 51,389
Total 403,946,037 159,543,634

(37) Profit or loss arising from changes in fair values

2014 2013

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 45,515,077 (1,467,507)

Interbank deposits (73,350) -
Derivative instruments (28,907,404) 741,215
Total 16,534,323 (726,292)

(38) Business tax and surcharges

2014 2013

Business tax 263,072,601 282,063,053
Others 30,875,204 33,968,136
Total 293,947,805 316,031,189

(39) Operating and administrative expenses

2014 2013

Staff costs 1,124,333,709 882,148,287
Office rentals 87,057,675 67,707,673
Travelling expenses 36,894,352 28,526,770
Promotion expenses 35,805,818 47,930,703
Consultation fees 30,175,301 28,208,107
Depreciation and amortization 27,904,826 22,445,415
Security fees 3,890,872 2,740,389
Others 184,050,144 161,539,196
Total 1,530,112,697 1,241,246,540

(40) Impairment losses on assets

2014 2013

Provision for impairment of loans and advances 615,237,944 580,958,330
Provision for impairment of accounts receivable

investment 238,944,226 202,450,529
Total 854,182,170 783,408,859
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(41) Income tax expenses

2014 2013

Current income tax 828,379,824 671,463,313
Deferred tax (Note 7 (16)) (128,086,390) (200,738,968)
Total 700,293,434 470,724,345

The actual income tax is adjusted from the theoretical tax calculated using the statutory tax rate.
The major reconciliation items are set out below:

2014 2013

Total Profit 2,927,873,455 2,138,967,879

Tax calculated at applicable statutory tax rate 689,658,038 504,456,413
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (12,492,762) (14,548,635)
Tax effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions 33,773,019 (17,924,490)
Tax effect of items such as expenses and impairment

not deductible for tax purpose 19,477,402 34,886,138
Tax adjustments for prior years (30,122,263) (36,145,081)
Total 700,293,434 470,724,345
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(42) Other comprehensive income

(a) Tax impact and reclassification of other comprehensive income

2014 2013
Before tax

amount Tax
Net of tax

amount
Before tax

amount Tax
Net of tax

amount

Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss

Change in value of available-for-sale
financial assets 1,162,155,858 (291,401,254) 870,754,604 (1,240,391,806) 308,940,426 (931,451,380)

Less: items reclassified to profit or loss
from other comprehensive income 140,167,745 (35,167,275) 105,000,470 4,265,330 (1,053,334) 3,211,996

1,302,323,603 (326,568,529) 975,755,074 (1,236,126,476) 307,887,092 (928,239,384)

Currency translation differences (10,693,871) - (10,693,871) (28,866,999) - (28,866,999)
Total 1,291,629,732 (326,568,529) 965,061,203 (1,264,993,475) 307,887,092 (957,106,383)

(b) The adjustment for other comprehensive income

Balance at 31
December 2012

Movement of
year 2013

Balance at 31
December 2013

Movement of
year 2014

Balance at 31
December 2014

Change in value of available-for-sale
financial assets 178,998,556 (928,239,384) (749,240,828) 975,755,074 226,514,246

Currency translation differences (235,240,601) (28,866,999) (264,107,600) (10,693,871) (274,801,471)
Total (56,242,045) (957,106,383) (1,013,348,428) 965,061,203 (48,287,225)



XIAMEN INTERNATIONAL BANK Co., LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts are stated in Rmb Yuan unless otherwise stated)
[English Translation For Reference Only]

- 51 -

7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(43) Notes of cash flow statement

2014 2013
(a) Adjust net profit to cash flows from operating

activities
Net profit 2,227,580,021 1,668,243,534

Add: Provision for assets impairment 854,182,170 783,408,859
Depreciation of fixed assets and investment

properties 27,904,826 22,445,415
Amortization of intangible assets 1,482,000 -
Amortization of long-term prepaid expenses 11,874,410 8,397,980
Gains on disposal of fixed assets and long-term

assets (60,328) 112,711
Gains or losses arising from fair value changes (16,534,323) 726,292

Investment income (403,946,037) (159,543,634)

Deferred tax charged to profit or loss account (128,086,390) (200,738,968)

Increase in operating receivables (42,782,785,297) (10,879,751,048)

Increase in operating payable 81,413,256,122 51,397,568,424

Net cash flows from operating activities 41,204,867,174 42,640,869,565

(b) Significant non-cash transactions involving investing
activities and financing activities - -

(c) Changes in cash and cash equivalents

Cash at the end of year (Note 7 (1)) 342,947,269 333,642,331
Less: Cash at the beginning of year (333,642,331) (301,878,445)
Add: Cash equivalents at the end of year 23,788,531,093 30,445,494,217
Less: Cash equivalents at the beginning of year (30,445,494,217) (10,478,114,465)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (6,647,658,186) 19,999,143,638

(d) Cash and cash equivalents include:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Cash 342,947,269 333,642,331
Cash equivalents with original maturities less than 3

months：

Surplus deposits reserves with Central Bank 3,687,857,453 3,503,755,168
Deposits with supervisory authority outside Mainland
China 685,309,300 577,415,805

Deposits with other banks and financial institutions 9,658,915,717 21,042,109,293
Placements with other banks and financial

institutions 2,215,846,986 534,001,309
Held-to-maturity investment 321,601,637 267,112,642
Financial assets held under resale agreements 7,219,000,000 4,521,100,000

Subtotal 23,788,531,093 30,445,494,217

Total 24,131,478,362 30,779,136,548
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(44) Segment information

Segment information as at and for the year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows:

2014 Xiamen Fuzhou Zhuhai Shanghai Beijing Hong Kong Macau Others Elimination Total

Interest income 7,372,666,328 1,124,268,236 1,590,441,740 2,897,100,056 4,781,336,254 4,517,289 1,558,233,477 86,495,850 (3,777,836,603) 15,637,222,627

Interest expense (5,773,031,635) (827,089,048) (1,136,386,904) (2,592,633,934) (3,598,117,968) (4,599) (912,112,655) (64,439,582) 3,777,836,603 (11,125,979,722)

Interest net income 1,599,634,693 297,179,188 454,054,836 304,466,122 1,183,218,286 4,512,690 646,120,822 22,056,268 - 4,511,242,905

Net interest income
among segments (582,806,602) 68,559,033 142,532,166 145,810,804 247,334,874 - - (21,430,275) - -

Fees and commission
income 156,126,852 45,278,038 87,344,613 101,444,477 100,352,700 - 184,600,935 8,777,541 (11,470,060) 672,455,096

Fee and commission
expense (29,868,524) (6,957,572) (7,552,803) (4,097,847) (14,759,351) - (51,708,674) (31,128) 11,470,060 (103,505,839)

Net fees and
commission income 126,258,328 38,320,466 79,791,810 97,346,630 85,593,349 - 132,892,261 8,746,413 - 568,949,257

Net fees and
commission income
among segments - - - - - - - - - -

Investment income 312,322,577 - - - - - 91,623,460 - - 403,946,037

Profit or loss from fair
value changes

15,807,618 - - - - - 726,705 - - 16,534,323

Exchange gains or
losses

60,957,353 2,722,978 1,504,681 1,790,537 6,336,892 - 21,133,790 - - 94,446,231

Other income 1,450,932 468,803 373,320 1,128,672 410,361 13,325,919 5,712,462 5,614 (13,563,396) 9,312,687

Business tax and
surcharges (105,472,818) (19,346,433) (34,225,534) (50,945,001) (66,822,401) - (12,593,863) (4,541,755) - (293,947,805)

Asset impairment
losses (352,593,638) (3,845,253) (17,614,414) (139,523,634) 40,159,682 - (338,397,221) (42,367,692) - (854,182,170)

Depreciation and
amortization (23,949,709) (1,378,828) (681,007) (1,470,207) (3,850,066) (7,625) (10,063,411) (251,190) 390,807 (41,261,236)

Operating expense (695,004,581) (75,076,964) (85,397,930) (178,638,562) (221,274,629) (17,659,282) (206,510,194) (22,852,715) 13,563,396 (1,488,851,461)

Other expense - - - - - - (6,905,571) - - (6,905,571)

Non-operating net
profit 6,039,986 207,747 188,346 62,149 431,042 - 860,988 800,000 - 8,590,258
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(44) Segment information (Continued)

31 Dec 2014 (Continued) Xiamen Fuzhou Zhuhai Shanghai Beijing Hong Kong Macau Others Elimination Total

Income before tax 945,450,741 239,251,704 397,994,108 34,216,706 1,024,202,516 171,702 324,600,228 (38,405,057) 390,807 2,927,873,455

Income tax expense (700,293,434)

Net income 2,227,580,021

31 December 2014

Total assets 149,720,315,937 26,482,220,710 26,550,588,097 71,715,932,512 108,969,129,385 368,584,391 56,310,743,332 3,892,675,901 (95,069,296,355) 348,940,893,910

Total liabilities (137,999,268,417) (26,103,745,287) (26,051,412,190) (71,592,286,915) (108,090,955,321) (217,737,911) (54,569,075,711) (3,632,071,617) 94,761,751,631 (333,494,801,738)
Capital expenditure

commitment 13,274,733 - - - - - 5,076,855 - - 18,351,588



XIAMEN INTERNATIONAL BANK Co., LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts are stated in Rmb Yuan unless otherwise stated)
[English Translation For Reference Only]

- 54 -

7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(44) Segment information (Continued)

Segment information as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:

2013 Xiamen Fuzhou Zhuhai Shanghai Beijing Hong Kong Macau Elimination Total

Interest income 4,226,930,822 908,420,237 1,451,504,118 2,474,552,396 2,784,436,273 3,666,276 945,540,769 (1,044,958,272) 11,750,092,619

Interest expense (2,896,845,605) (669,869,276) (1,098,709,809) (2,042,340,704) (2,131,684,310) (157,650) (493,425,797) 1,051,822,044 (8,281,211,107)

Interest net income 1,330,085,217 238,550,961 352,794,309 432,211,692 652,751,963 3,508,626 452,114,972 6,863,772 3,468,881,512

Net interest income
among segments (691,975,448) 29,652,189 11,885,901 243,883,468 276,417,091 3,536,399 119,736,628 - (6,863,772)

Fees and commission
income 278,770,658 73,320,171 90,184,957 157,796,142 185,011,544 - 156,286,821 (14,177,004) 927,193,289

Fee and commission
expense (14,528,776) (2,074,924) (600,812) (201,546) (3,762,264) - (47,304,974) 7,313,232 (61,160,064)

Net fees and commission
income 264,241,882 71,245,247 89,584,145 157,594,596 181,249,280 - 108,981,847 (6,863,772) 866,033,225

Net fees and commission
income among
segments (7,313,232) - - - - - 14,177,004 - 6,863,772

Investment income 135,523,779 - - - - - 24,019,855 - 159,543,634

Profit or loss from fair
value changes 10,722,544 - - - - - (11,448,836) - (726,292)

Exchange gains or
losses (73,284,956) 4,656,195 2,399,240 1,573,415 4,156,267 - 31,212,700 - (29,287,139)

Other income 1,468,174 548,936 421,723 754,229 320,496 8,202,972 3,350,780 (7,819,357) 7,247,953

Business tax and
surcharges (134,489,440) (23,154,912) (34,351,819) (52,552,999) (62,480,799) - (9,001,220) - (316,031,189)

Asset impairment losses (470,419,336) 3,215,052 (20,573,235) (28,892,338) (65,840,025) - (200,898,977) - (783,408,859)

Depreciation and
amortization (14,407,640) (2,143,673) (590,308) (1,872,483) (1,936,513) - (10,286,324) 393,546 (30,843,395)

Operating expense (600,116,881) (63,008,472) (75,143,639) (159,059,525) (156,766,437) (11,202,442) (152,925,106) 7,819,357 (1,210,403,145)

Other expense - - - - - - (3,545,577) - (3,545,577)

Non-operating net profit 11,065,261 25,986 22,753 20,194 70,978 - 301,979 - 11,507,151



XIAMEN INTERNATIONAL BANK Co., LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts are stated in Rmb Yuan unless otherwise stated)
[English Translation For Reference Only]

- 55 -

7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(44) Segment information (Continued)

31 Dec 2013
(Continued) Xiamen Fuzhou Zhuhai Shanghai Beijing Hong Kong Macau Elimination Total

Income before tax 460,388,604 229,935,320 314,563,169 349,776,781 551,525,210 509,156 231,876,093 393,546 2,138,967,879
Income tax expense (470,724,345)
Net income 1,668,243,534

Total assets 117,554,704,274 23,708,651,044 30,305,174,098 46,799,205,057 74,008,979,210 363,565,283 35,915,944,464 (67,523,102,274) 261,133,121,156

Total liabilities (109,591,221,273) (23,335,201,955) (29,873,527,939) (46,450,781,652) (73,516,450,497) (213,293,196) (34,453,350,593) 67,263,410,897 (250,170,416,208)
Capital expenditure

commitment 25,553,864 - - - - - 2,350,800 - 27,904,664
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7 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(44) Segment information (Continued)

The Group did not have any loan to an individual borrower exceeding 10% of net capital balance.

The Group’s revenue from external customers located domestically and in other countries or areas
for the year 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Revenue from external customers 2014 2013

Mainland China 4,649,130,999 3,931,395,174
Hong Kong/Macau/Taiwan 922,986,128 509,415,917
Other countries/areas 32,314,313 30,881,802
Total 5,604,431,440 4,471,692,893

The total non-current assets other than financial assets and deferred tax assets located
domestically and in other countries or areas for the year 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Total non-current assets 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Mainland China 503,015,240 420,276,610
Hong Kong 895,079 857,844
Macau 45,514,875 48,168,897
Total 549,425,194 469,303,351

8 RELATED PARTY AND SIGNIFICANT TRANSCTIONS

(1) Related party

If one party can control another party directly, indirectly or jointly, or to exercise significant
influence to govern the financial and operating policies of another party; or the Group and another
party or parties are subject to control or joint control, these parties are considered as related
parties of the Group.

Related parties of the Group mainly include investors of the Group holding more than 5% equity
interest in the Bank:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Number of shares % Number of shares %

Min Xin Holdings Limited 339,394,800 14.80% 339,394,800 16.93%

ICBC 200,430,000 8.74% 200,430,000 10.00%

Fujian Investment Group 194,016,240 8.46% 194,016,240 9.68%

Xiamen C&D Group 180,387,000 7.87% 180,387,000 9.00%

(2) Significant related party transactions

The Group has transactions with its investors holding more than 5% equity interest in the Bank in
ordinary operations, which include loans and deposits, customer deposits, deposits and
placements with other banks and financial institutions, deposits and placements from other banks
and financial institutions.
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8 RELATED PARTY AND SIGNIFICANT TRANSCTIONS (Continued)

(2) Significant related party transactions (continued)

In 2014 and 2013, transactions and outstanding balances at year end between the Group and its
other investors holding more than 5% equity interest in the Bank are as below:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Deposits with other banks and financial institutions 324,882,368 567,155,370

Placements with other banks and financial institutions 63,109,600 -

Loans and advances 80,000,000 90,000,000

Deposits from other banks and financial institutions 5,320,000,000 1,072,532,795

Placements from other banks and financial institutions 119,328,497 -

Customer deposits 1,948,010,558 1,524,248,935

Credit or charge recognized in the income statement resulting from transactions between the
Group and its other investors holding more than 5% equity interest in the Bank are as below:

2014 2013

Interest income from deposits with other banks and
financial institutions 9,311,721 7,737,185

Interest income from placements with other banks
and financial institutions 824,880 475,267

Interest income from loans and advances 15,247,790 14,889,887
Interest expenses to deposits from other banks and
financial institutions (250,450,903) (18,127,633)

Interest expenses to placements from other banks
and financial institutions (128,094) (304,922)

Interest expenses to customer deposits (7753,578) (1,790,734)

Range of interest rate 2014 2013

Deposits with other banks and financial institutions 0.0001%-1.62% 0.0001%-0.72%

Placements with other banks and financial institutions 0%-6.5% -

Loans and advances 6.15% 6.15%

Deposits from other banks and financial institutions 4.7%-5.6% 0.72%-5.7%

Placements from other banks and financial institutions 0.12%-0.6% -

Customer deposits 0.01%-2.85% 0.01%-3.85%
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9 STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(1) Unconsolidated structured entities invested by the Group

In order to make good use of the capital for revenue, the Group invested in part of the
unconsolidated structured entities issued or managed by other institutions. Gains or losses of the
transactions and interest revenue are recorded by the Group. As at 31 December 2014, the
amounts of maximum loss risk exposure resulting from theses unconsolidated structured entities
invested by the Group are shown below:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Wealth management products issued by other
institutions 44,010,908,758 65,031,816,413

Asset management plans issued by other
institutions 101,469,698,296 31,785,342,664

Investment trusts issued by other institutions - 1,000,000,000
Total 145,480,607,054 97,817,159,077

There is no public and available market information relating to the total operating scale of the
unconsolidated structured entities invested by the Group.

(2) Consolidated structured entities

Consolidated structured entities invested by the Group mainly include principal-guaranteed wealth
management products. In 2014, no financial support is given by the Group to these wealth
management products.

10 CONTINGENCY AND COMMITMENTS

(1) Credit commitments

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Letters of guarantee 6,185,678,821 6,830,646,674
Acceptance 1,200,376,806 721,765,916

Letters of credit 363,549,259 661,205,104

Shipping guarantees 242,908 556,611

Total 7,749,847,794 8,214,174,305

(2) Capital commitments

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Contracted but unpaid 12,912,733 18,591,211
Approved but not contracted 5,438,855 9,313,453

Total 18,351,588 27,904,664
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10 CONTINGENCY AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(3) Operating lease commitments

The Group’s future aggregate minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Up to 1 year 103,504,126 60,862,247

1 to 2 years 95,497,964 54,288,750

2 to 3 years 89,213,063 47,730,600

Above 3 years 746,343,307 107,644,056

Total 1,034,558,460 270,525,653

(4) Assets pledged

Some of the Group’s assets are pledged as collaterals for borrowings from central bank and under
the repurchase agreements with other financial institutions. As at 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2013, bills or bonds accepted by other banks and financial institutions as pledge under
the borrowings or repurchase agreements cannot be sold or re-pledged.

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Financial bonds 8,180,560,570 10,740,000,000
Corporate bonds 7,565,795,594 4,064,800,000
Bills 268,188,927 299,892,937

Total 16,014,545,091 15,104,692,937

Beside the assets pledged above, the Group’s mandatory deposits with supervisory authorities are
not available for the Group’s day-to-day operations (Note 7(1)). In addition, the pledged assets
obtained under the purchases of resale agreements are prohibited for resale or re-pledge.

11 ENTRUSTED LOANS

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Entrusted loans 4,047,893,412 2,785,976,500

Under the entrusted arrangement, the Group only acts in a fiduciary capacity such as nominee,
trustee, custodian or agent and therefore, the assets and income arising thereon together with
related undertakings to return such assets to customers are excluded from the financial statements.

12 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As at 31 December 2014, there are a number of legal proceedings arisen from the ordinary
business of the Group. Management of the Group concluded those legal proceedings would not
have any significant impact on the financial position of the Group.
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13 FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

(1) Overview

The operating activities expose the Group to a variety of financial risks. The Group continuously
identifies, evaluates and monitors the risks. The most important financial risks are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk. Market risk includes exchange rate risk, interest rate and other price
risk. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return, as
well as minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Board of Directors provides strategy for overall risk management. The senior management
established related risk management policies and procedures under the strategy approved by the
Board, including written policies covering specific areas, such as exchange rate risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments.
Such risk management policies and procedures are enforced by related departments after Board’s
approval. In addition, internal auditing division is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment.

(2) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the potential loss that may arise from the failure of counterparty to meet its
contractual obligations or commitments to the Group. Credit risk is one of the main risks that the
Group faces in operation. Management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk.
Credit risk mainly arises from loans, investment, trade finance, guarantees, and other payment
acceptance.

The Group sets up the multi-levels organizations for credit risk management as below: overall
credit risk is controlled by the Board of Directors, Credit Management Committee, which co-
ordinates with Risk Management Department, Risk Evaluation Department and Legal Affairs and
Compliance Department to implement measures for credit risk management. The Group has set
up the hierarchy of “Approval Officers with different authorization limits” taking the responsibilities
of approval of loans and investments within authorization limits, the Approval Officers comprising
management personnel from different business departments. The Approval Officers at different
hierarchies have the different authorization limit and each loan should be approved by two
Approval Officers and the approval is confirmed by Chief or Vice Approval Officer. For loan and
investment proposals that require higher level of authorization other than that from the Approval
Officers, or high risk investment proposals beyond the authorization of the President Office the
proposals are submitted to Authorized Approval after review by Credit Committee or Investment
Management Committee. Besides, the Group has set up Risk Control Department in branches to
implement credit risk management under its own jurisdictions.

The Group’s credit approval policies and procedures are standardized. Risk Management
Department together with other relevant departments review and update the policies and
procedures periodically. Credit rating, credit measurement, economic capital, various post-lending
management, indicator control, collective assessment, risk warning and risk reporting are
measures for managing credit risks.
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Credit Risk (Continued)

(a) Measurements of credit risks

(i) Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances, the Group take into account (i) probability of
default by the customer or counterparty to honor its contractual obligations; (ii) the current
exposures to the counterparty and its likely future development, from which the Group derive the
‘exposure at default’; and (iii) the likely recovery ratio on the defaulted obligations (the ‘loss given
default’).

The Group has developed its standardized loan classification system to measure and manage the
credit quality of loans and advances of the Group in accordance with the “Guiding Principles on
the Classification of Loan Risk” issued by the CBRC.

“Guiding Principles on the Classification of Loan Risk” requires China commercial banks to
classify their credit assets into five categories: pass, special mentioned, substandard, doubtful and
loss, among which loans classified in the substandard, doubtful and loss categories are regarded
as non-performing. The five categories are defined as follows:

Pass: Borrowers can honor the terms of their loans. There is no reason to doubt their ability to
repay principal and interest in full on a timely basis.

Special mention: Borrowers are able to service their loans currently, although repayment may be
adversely affected by specific factors.

Substandard: Borrowers’ abilities to service their loans are in question and they cannot rely
entirely on normal business revenues to repay principal and interest. Losses may be resulted
even when collateral or guarantees are invoked.

Doubtful: Borrowers cannot repay principal and interest in full and significant losses will need to be
recognized even when collateral or guarantees are invoked.

Loss: Principal and interest of loans cannot be recovered or only a small portion, of which can be
recovered after taking all possible measures or resorting to all necessary legal procedures.

The standardized credit assets classification system internally developed by the Group classifies
the loans into ten categories: Pass I, Pass II, Pass III, Special mentioned I, Special mentioned II,
Special mentioned III, Substandard I, Substandard II, Doubtful and Loss. The loan classification is
assessed based on comprehensive analysis of credit risk evaluation, including, the competence of
borrower’s management, loan structure and the first source of funding for repayment of loans. In
addition, the evaluation also takes into consideration of the market share and position of the
borrower, products, financial position, solvency, liquidity, ability of going concern, profitability,
capital structure as well as the types and value of collaterals.
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Credit Risk (Continued)

(a) Measurements of credit risks (Continued)

(ii) Debt securities and derivative financial instruments

For debt securities, other than those issued by PRC Ministry of Finance, PBOC and state policy
banks, external ratings (such as Standard and Poor’s) and non-credit asset classification are used
by the Group for managing credit risk exposures.

The Group referred to “the Guiding Principles on the Classification of Loan Risk” issued by PBOC
and developed its non-credit asset management policy which is used to evaluate and manage
credit exposure relating to non-credit asset. The Group classifies its non-credit assets into ten
categories: pass I, pass II, pass III, special mention I, special mention II, special mention III,
substandard I and substandard II, doubtful and loss. The classification of bonds and derivative
financial instruments are assessed based on the repayment ability of issuers of bonds and the fair
value fluctuation of derivative financial instruments.

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative positions based on notional
amount and term. The derivative credit risk exposure is managed as part of the overall lending
limits set for borrowers.

(b) Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

In order to manage and monitor the exposure to credit risk, the Group adopts three major types of
control, including pre-lending approval, post-lending reporting and regular inspection. The pre-
lending approval system includes the loan application, approval of the validity of legal documents
and credit limit approval; The post-lending reporting system includes post-lending management
report, credit data report, loan collection report, as well as report of other unusualness and issues
related to the local regulation; inspection system focuses on post-lending inspection, unscheduled
inspection on the branches and the site visit to customers by the head office, etc. Approved credit
limits are input into the "compact" module of the minicomputer system, which are connected with
the centralized systems, through which, the Group can get access to the credit limit and monitor
the granting and utilization of the line of credit. Meanwhile, the taking of collateral, pledge and
other valid security are also effective measure for the Group to mitigate the credit risk.

The Group has developed guidance on control procedures over credit limit specifying the limit on
the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, or to
geographical and industry segments, and identified the departments responsible for monitoring
and management.

The Risk Management Department of the Group assesses the implementation of the credit limits
control with reference to the regulating indicator and credit policies on concentrations of credit risk
on regular basis, reports to senior management, Risk Management Committee and regulatory
authority on monthly and quarterly basis. Besides, the Risk Management Department discloses
the relevant information to the public in accordance with the information disclosure requirements
of the Group and the regulatory authorities.

Bond investments and derivative financial instruments

The Group has established the structural limit such as limit for bond portfolio, limit for issuers and
limit for each issuance to manage the credit risk of bond investments.

Risk mitigation measures include:
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Credit Risk (Continued)

(b) Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

(i) Collateral and guarantees

The Group deploys a range of policies and measures to mitigate credit risk. The most common
practice is to require collaterals, pledges and guarantees from borrowers. The collaterals and
pledges accepted by the Group generally include deposits, securities, equities, real estate, land
use rights, machinery & equipment and transport facilities.

The Group appoints professional valuation agencies to appraise the collaterals. After having been
assessed and approved by the Risk Evaluation Department, the valuation report is regarded as
one of the decision-making reference in the credit assessment process. The approver will make
final decision on the collateral or pledge rate.

For loans guaranteed by a third party guarantor, the Group will assess the guarantor’s credit
rating, considering financial condition, credit history and ability to carry out obligations.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is determined by the
nature of the instrument. Debt securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured,
with the exception of certain asset-backed securities and similar instruments, which are secured
by portfolios of financial instruments.

(ii) Netting arrangements
The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into netting arrangements with
counterparties with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions. Netting arrangements
do not generally result in an offset of assets and liabilities in balance sheet, as transactions are
usually settled on a gross basis. However, the credit risk associated with favorable contracts is
reduced by a netting arrangement to the extent that if a default occurs, all amounts with the
customer are terminated and settled on a net basis. The Group’s overall exposure to credit risk on
derivative instruments subject to netting arrangements can change substantially within a short
period, as it is affected by each transaction subject to the arrangement.

(c) Classification of credit assets and provisioning policy

Risks Control Department at branches classifies the outstanding loans taking into consideration of
the borrower’s repayment ability, guarantee and collaterals obtained as well as the overdue
period. The result is reviewed and approved by Risk Management Department of Head office and
submitted to the Group’s management for final decision on the classification. The Group usually
performs classification quarterly, adjusts the rating monthly and adjusts the provision quarterly.

In accordance with the accounting policies, if there is any objective evidence that the estimated
future cash flows decrease and the amount can be reliably estimated, the Group makes an
impairment provision.
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Credit Risk (Continued)

(c) Classification of credit assets classification and provisioning policy (Continued)

The criteria set out by the Group to determine whether objective evidences of impairment exist
includes:

- A default or delinquency in interest or principal payment;
- Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower (e.g., deterioration of equity ratio and net
profit margin);
- A breach of loan covenants or conditions;
- Probability that the borrower will become bankrupt;
- Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
- Severe disadvantage occurs in the industry of the debtor.

The Group performs the review of individual significant financial assets at least quarterly.
Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the
incurred loss at balance-sheet date on a case-by-case basis using discounted cash flow analysis.
The assessment normally encompasses guarantees and collateral held, as well as the anticipated
future cash flows from that individual account. Collectively assessed impairment allowances are
provided for: (i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below materiality thresholds
and are subject to similar credit risk characteristic; and (ii) losses that have been incurred but have
not yet been specifically identified, by using the available historical experience, professional
judgment and statistical techniques.

The table below shows the percentage of the Group’s loans and advances classified in
accordance with CBRC’s five-category classification system and the associated impairment
provision as at 31 December 2013 and 2014.

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Loans and advances Provision rate Loans and advances Provision rate

Balance Percentage (%) Balance Percentage (%)

Pass 109,432,552,270 98.25% 1.64% 80,828,203,710 99.27% 1.55%
Special

mention 1,432,315,412 1.29% 5.35% 266,765,701 0.33% 1.56%
Substandard 289,331,652 0.26% 28.06% 76,170,261 0.09% 43.87%
Doubtful 177,203,690 0.16% 68.74% 229,528,099 0.28% 81.62%
Loss 42,136,771 0.04% 96.78% 23,553,990 0.03% 96.28%

111,373,539,795 100.00% 1.90% 81,424,221,761 100.00% 1.84%
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Credit Risk (Continued)

(d) Maximum exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk represents a worst scenario of credit risk exposure to the
Group at the balance sheet date, without taking into account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements attached.

The table below set out the Group’s information of maximum exposure to credit risk

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Balance sheet items
Deposits with central bank 34,274,009,711 21,550,595,360
Deposits with supervisory authority

outside Mainland China
685,309,300 577,415,805

Deposits with other banks and financial
Institutions

12,188,915,713 22,192,109,293

Placements with other banks and financial
institutions

2,687,340,746 2,714,858,234

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

735,133,721 904,217,632

Derivative financial assets 55,227,959 38,777,276
Financial assets held under resale

agreements
7,219,000,000 4,521,100,000

Interest receivable 1,559,927,031 1,254,222,159
Loans and advances, net 109,259,186,316 79,924,241,975
Available-for-sale financial assets
(exclude equity investment) 32,151,161,494 26,965,958,594
Held-to-maturity investments 1,031,621,914 784,261,053
Accounts receivable investments 145,072,873,086 97,742,159,077
Other assets 417,933,611 362,369,222
Total 347,337,640,602 259,532,285,680

Off-balance sheet items 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Letters of guarantee 6,185,678,821 6,830,646,674
Acceptances 1,200,376,806 721,765,916
Letters of credit 363,549,259 661,205,104
Shipping guarantee 242,908 556,611
Total 7,749,847,794 8,214,174,305
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Credit Risk (Continued)

(e) Overdue and impairment information

The impairment and overdue information of loans and advances, deposits with other banks and financial institutions, placements with other banks and
financial institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, available-for-sale financial assets, held-to-maturity investments and accounts
receivable investment are set out below:

31 December 2014

Loans and advances

Deposits with
other banks

Placements
with other

banks and
financial

institutions

Financial
assets held

under resale
agreements

Available-for-sale
financial assets

Held-to-
maturity

investments

Accounts
receivable
investmentCorporate loans Individual loans Total

Neither overdue
nor impaired 101,868,711,202 5,000,881,896 106,869,593,098 12,188,915,713 2,687,340,746 7,219,000,000 32,137,006,659 1,031,621,914 145,330,607,054

Overdue but not
impaired 3,869,514,773 125,759,811 3,995,274,584 - - - - - -

Individually
impaired 499,872,491 8,799,622 508,672,113 - - - 73,428,000 - 150,000,000

Gross 106,238,098,466 5,135,441,329 111,373,539,795 12,188,915,713 2,687,340,746 7,219,000,000 32,210,434,659 1,031,621,914 145,480,607,054

Less: Provision (2,094,855,183) (19,498,296) (2,114,353,479) - - - (59,273,165) - (407,733,968)

Net 104,143,243,283 5,115,943,033 109,259,186,316 12,188,915,713 2,687,340,746 7,219,000,000 32,151,161,494 1,031,621,914 145,072,873,086
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Credit Risk (Continued)

(e) Overdue and impairment information (Continued)

31 December 2013

Loans and advances

Deposits with
other banks

Placements with
other banks and

financial
institutions

Financial
assets held

under resale
agreements

Available-for-sale
financial assets

Held-to-
maturity

investments

Accounts
receivable
investmentCorporate loans

Individual
loans Total

Neither overdue
nor impaired 75,564,759,460 4,481,649,693 80,046,409,153 22,192,109,293 2,714,858,234 4,521,100,000 26,952,068,959 784,261,053 97,667,159,077

Overdue but not
impaired 1,027,657,870 20,902,388 1,048,560,258 - - - - - -

Individually
impaired 317,351,598 11,900,752 329,252,350 - - - 73,162,800 - 150,000,000

Gross 76,909,768,928 4,514,452,833 81,424,221,761 22,192,109,293 2,714,858,234 4,521,100,000 27,025,231,759 784,261,053 97,817,159,077

Less: Provision (1,474,130,641) (25,849,145) (1,499,979,786) - - - (59,273,165) - (75,000,000)

Net 75,435,638,287 4,488,603,688 79,924,241,975 22,192,109,293 2,714,858,234 4,521,100,000 26,965,958,594 784,261,053 97,742,159,077
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Credit Risk (Continued)

(e) Overdue and impairment information (Continued)

The credit risk of neither overdue nor impaired loans can be accessed by reference to the loan
five-category classification adopted by the Group. The overdue and impairment information of
loans and advances are showed as follows:

(i) Neither overdue nor impaired

31 December 2014

Loans and advances
Corporate loans Individual loans Total

Pass 100,616,640,383 4,900,398,995 105,517,039,378
Special Mention 1,252,070,819 100,482,901 1,352,553,720

Total 101,868,711,202 5,000,881,896 106,869,593,098

31 December 2013
Loans and advances

Corporate loans Individual loans Total

Pass 75,398,405,223 4,419,124,481 79,817,529,704
Special Mention 166,354,237 62,525,212 228,879,449

Total 75,564,759,460 4,481,649,693 80,046,409,153
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Credit Risk (Continued)

(e) Overdue and impairment information (Continued)

(ii) Overdue but not impaired

At 31 December
2014

Overdue up
to 30 days

Overdue 30
to 60 days

Overdue 60
to 90 days

Overdue more
than 90 days Total

-Corporate loans
and advances 2,542,544,426 1,326,970,347 - - 3,869,514,773

-Individual loans
and advances 119,981,250 3,521,216 193,572 2,063,773 125,759,811

Total 2,662,525,676 1,330,491,563 193,572 2,063,773 3,995,274,584

At 31 December
2013

Overdue up
to 30 days

Overdue 30
to 60 days

Overdue 60
to 90 days

Overdue more
than 90 days Total

-Corporate loans
and advances

634,980,446 19,987,588 372,689,836 - 1,027,657,870

-Individual loans
and advances

4,677,176 16,000,389 224,823 - 20,902,388

Total 639,657,622 35,987,977 372,914,659 - 1,048,560,258

The Group performed individual assessment on the recovery of overdue balances stated above
and considered no impairment exists.

At 31 December 2014, there are no overdue nor impaired deposits with other banks and financial
institutions, placements with other banks and financial institutions, financial assets held under
resale agreements, held-to-maturity investment and available-for-sale financial assets.

The Group appoints valuation agencies to assess the valuation of the collaterals and pledges. In
credit assessment, the Group would refer to the valuation reports prepared by the agencies and
Risk Valuation Department would evaluate its result before using the results for credit risk
assessment. The Group updates the valuations of the collaterals of performing secured loans at
the end of each year. The Group performs revaluation on the collaterals once the significant
deterioration in value of the collaterals or the transfer of control in the collaterals occurs. The fair
value of collaterals held for overdue but not impaired loans as at 31 December 2014 amounted to
RMB 508,741,096 (2013: RMB 53,202,430).

(iii) Impaired financial assets

The breakdown of gross amount of individually impaired loans and advances by security
categories:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Unsecured loans 35,246,387 56,849,334
Guaranteed loans 159,988,008 64,384,716

Secured loans

-Collateralized loans 112,812,262 194,181,136

-Pledged loans 200,625,456 13,837,164

Total 508,672,113 329,252,350
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Credit Risk (Continued)

(e) Overdue and impairment information (Continued)

(iii) Impaired financial assets (Continued)

The breakdown of gross amount of individually impaired loans and advances by loan categories:

At 31 December 2014 Individually impaired

% of total loans and
advances to

customers

Loans and advances

-Corporate loans and advances 499,872,491 98.27%

- Individual loans and advances 8,799,622 1.73%

Total 508,672,113 100.00%

At 31 December 2013 Individually impaired

% of total loans and
advances to

customers
Loans and advances

-Corporate loans and advances 317,351,598 96.39%

-Individual loans and advances 11,900,752 3.61%

Total 329,252,350 100.00%

The Group performed individual assessments on the above corporate loans which were individually
material and made provision of RMB 316,003,145 (2013: RMB 244,803,416) at balance sheet date
after taking into account the values of collaterals. As at 31 December 2013, fair values of collaterals
in respect of the individually impaired loans amounted to RMB 377,225,950 (2013: RMB
290,021,313).

For the impairment of assets held for sale and accounts receivable investment, an impairment
provision has been charged according to the individual assessment results (refer to Notes 7 (10)
and Notes 7 (12)).

(iv) Restructured loans

Restructured loans refer to those that have their contract terms restructured due to the deterioration
of the borrowers’ financial position or their inability to make repayment when due. The balance of
restructured loans was insignificant for both 2013 and 2014.



XIAMEN INTERNATIONAL BANK Co., LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts are stated in Rmb Yuan unless otherwise stated)
[English Translation For Reference Only]

- 71 -

13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Credit Risk (Continued)

(f) Bonds and other bills

The table below represents an analysis of carrying amounts of debt securities by credit rating. The
credit rating is referenced to Bloomberg or the results of domestic appraisal firms.

Rating Financial assets at
fair value through

profit or loss
Available-for-sale

financial assets
Held-to-maturity

investments Total
At 31 December 2014
AAA 10,189,939 7,320,822,621 - 7,331,012,560
AA- to AA+ 608,128,600 10,615,147,616 - 11,223,276,216
A- to A+ 49,844,750 42,814,453 - 92,659,203
Lower than A- - 695,954,196 74,942,650 770,896,846
Unrated
-Bills issued by Central

Bank - - 956,679,264 956,679,264
-PRC policy bank bonds - 13,079,573,540 - 13,079,573,540
-Other financial institution

bonds 2,754,920 14,154,835 - 16,909,755
-Interbank deposit 48,779,300 - - 48,779,300
-Corporate bonds 15,436,212 382,694,233 - 398,130,445

735,133,721 32,151,161,494 1,031,621,914 33,917,917,129

Rating Financial assets
held for trading

Available-for-sale
financial assets

Held-to-maturity
investments Total

At 31 December 2013
AAA 116,502,181 4,268,440,166 - 4,384,942,347
AA- to AA+ 322,716,939 10,471,380,929 - 10,794,097,868
A- to A+ 98,995,940 42,663,151 - 141,659,091
Lower than A- - 709,666,355 - 709,666,355
Unrated
-Bills issued by Central

Bank - - 709,569,203 709,569,203
-PRC policy bank bonds 353,076,209 10,970,864,000 - 11,323,940,209
-Other financial institution

bonds 12,926,363 27,117,312 74,691,850 114,735,525
-Corporate bonds - 475,826,681 - 475,826,681

904,217,632 26,965,958,594 784,261,053 28,654,437,279

(g) Accounts receivable investment

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Account receivables with guarantee of
other financial institutions (i) 60,927,323,516 97,817,159,077

Account receivables without guarantee of
other financial institutions (ii) 84,553,283,538 -

Total: 145,480,607,054 97,817,159,077

(i) This item refers to the account receivable investment held by the Group with full guarantee
provide by other financial institutions. The Group adopts the same credit risk management
measure as deposits and placements with banks and non-bank financial institutions.

(ii)
The Group takes the credit risk exposure for these account receivables without guarantee of other
financial institutions.

(h) Foreclosed assets
There were no foreclosed assets as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Credit Risks (Continued)

(i) Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, financial assets held by the Group mainly consist
of loan and receivables, as well as investment in security (including financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial asset, held-to-maturity investment, account
receivable investment). The following table breaks down the Group’s main credit exposure at their
carrying amount, as categorized by industry sectors of its counterparties.

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Carrying values Percentage% Carrying values Percentage%

Corporate loans and advance

-Leasing and commercial service 18,174,884,631 16.33% 8,099,173,320 9.95%

-Wholesale and retail trade 40,988,557,637 36.80% 26,008,853,577 31.94%

-Manufacturing 10,978,548,984 9.86% 11,850,928,254 14.55%

-Real estate 11,448,542,224 10.28% 11,838,250,215 14.54%

-Construction 7,029,340,743 6.31% 3,467,049,913 4.26%
-Production and supply of electric power,

heat gas and water
5,392,822,344 4.84% 1,831,456,160 2.25%

-Transportation, storage and postal
service

2,726,657,987 2.45% 2,412,345,520 2.96%

-Electricity, heat, gas, and water
production and supply

2,019,736,212 1.81% 1,502,624,526 1.85%

-Financial sector 1,709,345,140 1.53% 935,774,000 1.15%

-Lodging and catering business 1,835,583,045 1.65% 1,930,401,383 2.37%

-Mining 751,016,000 0.67% 711,539,000 0.87%

-Information dissemination, software and
information technology service

532,573,085 0.48% 197,324,298 0.24%

-Culture, sport and entertainment 229,241,862 0.21% 445,509,323 0.55%

-Education 81,000,000 0.07% 178,000,000 0.22%

-Agriculture, forestry, farming , fishing 51,665,581 0.05% 1,128,530,326 1.39%
-Community service, repairing and other

service industry
50,000,000 0.04% 22,338,154 0.03%

-Scientific research and technology
service

15,690,000 0.01% - 0.00%

Discount 1,547,699,478 1.39% 3,047,120,605 3.74%

Trade financing 675,193,513 0.61% 1,302,550,354 1.60%

Corporate loans and advance, subtotal: 106,238,098,466 95.39% 76,909,768,928 94.46%

Individual loans 5,135,441,329 4.61% 4,514,452,833 5.54%

Total: 111,373,539,795 100% 81,424,221,761 100%
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Credit Risk (Continued)

(i) Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the majority of the financial assets held by the Group are located in mainland China. For
concentration of credit risk of loans and advances, refer to the details in Note 7, 9(2). The following table breaks down the Group’s main
credit exposure of securities investments at their carrying amounts, as categorized by geographical locations of the issuers.

PRC North America Total

31 December 2014
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 719,862,427 15,271,294 735,133,721
Available-for-sale financial assets 31,781,109,935 370,051,559 32,151,161,494

Held-to-maturity investments 1,031,621,914 - 1,031,621,914

Total 33,532,594,276 385,322,853 33,917,917,129

PRC North America Total

31 December 2013

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 904,217,632 - 904,217,632

Available-for-sale financial assets 26,422,077,040 543,881,554 26,965,958,594

Held-to-maturity investments 784,261,053 - 784,261,053

Total 28,110,555,725 543,881,554 28,654,437,279
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(3) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to obtain funds at a reasonable cost when required to meet a repayment obligation and fund its asset
portfolio. The Group’s objective in liquidity is to ensure the availability of adequate funding to meet its needs to fund deposit withdrawals and other
liabilities as they fall due, as well as being able to meet its obligations to fund loan originations and commitments and to take advantage of new
investment opportunities.

(a) Liquidity risk management

The Group’s liquidity management process, as monitored by Assets and Liabilities Committee of the Group, includes:
 Daily funding management, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met. These include replenishment of funds

as they mature or are borrowed by customers;
 Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;
 Monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements; and
 Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

The deposits to loan ratio should not exceed the 75% limit according to the financial regulations in PRC. As at 31 December 2014, 18% of the Bank’s
total RMB denominated deposits and 5% of the total foreign currency denominated deposits must be deposited with PBOC as statutory deposit reserve.
As for the subsidiary of the group, Luso International Bank, certain amount of the deposits must be deposited with Monetary Authority of Macao. Refer to
the details in Note 7 (2).

Assets and Liabilities Committee of the Group establishes the strategy and policy of the Group’s liquidity management. The Group’s Financial Controller
is responsible for daily liquidity management monitoring and analyzing the liquidity ratio continuously.

The Group sets up a series of liquidity index to assess and monitor the Group’s liquidity risk. Daily, monthly and quarterly liquidity reporting system has
been set up to ensure the Group’s Assets and Liabilities Committee, senior management and Risk Management Committee can review the liquidity
condition on time. The Group also performs scenario analysis to evaluate the relevant impact on liquidity risk.
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(3) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Non-derivative cash flows

The table below presents the cash flows receivable/payable by the Group under non-derivative financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows:

During the year 2014 and 2013, the maturity profile of the bonds under financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of the Group is mostly due over
one year. However, the Group considers since there is an active market for trading of bonds, the liquidity risk is manageable by adjusting exposure on a
timely basis.

31 December 2014 Up to1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Financial assets
Cash in hand and deposits with Central

Bank 34,621,852,042 - - - - 34,621,852,042
Deposits with supervisory authority outside

Mainland China 685,309,300 - - - - 685,309,300
Deposits with other banks and financial

institutions 10,064,818,588 277,444,297 1,894,160,331 - - 12,236,423,216
Placements with other banks and financial

institutions 2,133,294,905 409,502,243 151,876,275 - - 2,694,673,423
Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss 2,419,458 59,677,383 218,583,404 516,380,232 - 797,060,477
Financial assets held under resale

agreements 7,220,052,771 - - - - 7,220,052,771
Loans and advances, net 5,157,938,634 14,088,327,268 62,683,648,299 22,204,259,004 13,808,409,428 117,942,582,633
Available-for-sale financial assets 560,347,847 280,874,277 2,618,152,317 28,329,900,920 5,283,760,324 37,073,035,685
Held-to-maturity investments 245,615,548 378,525,003 348,132,530 - 95,713,139 1,067,986,220
Accounts receivable investment 6,159,682,050 28,134,652,496 68,593,412,082 49,015,959,228 - 151,903,705,856
Other financial assets 413,318,747 67,813 20,687 - 4,526,364 417,933,611
Total financial assets 67,264,649,890 43,629,070,780 136,507,985,925 100,066,499,384 19,192,409,255 366,660,615,234
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(3) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Non-derivative cash flows (Continued)

31 December 2014 Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years Total

Financial liabilities

Borrowings from Central Bank - - (437,713,125) - - (437,713,125)
Deposits from banks and other financial

institutions (16,561,123,162) (36,059,610,243) (23,651,764,894) (1,126,900,000) - (77,399,398,299)
Placements from banks and other

financial institutions (3,296,733,947) (2,637,481,222) (1,520,241,565) - - (7,454,456,734)
Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss (3,961,676) (1,703,733) - - - (5,665,409)
Financial assets sold under repurchase

agreements (6,745,203,532) (5,719,964,947) (2,757,490,894) - - (15,222,659,373)

Customer deposits (81,150,544,610) (40,795,220,119) (80,812,383,184) (28,357,046,099) (2,253,310,000) (233,368,504,012)

Bonds payable - (207,000,000) (36,559,695) (5,009,238,780) (757,613,030) (6,010,411,505)

Other liabilities (506,293,436) (83,917,828) (521,237) - (6,541,822) (597,274,323)

Financial liabilities (108,263,860,363) (85,504,898,092) (109,216,674,594) (34,493,184,879) (3,017,464,852) (340,496,082,780)

Total interest sensitivity gap (40,999,210,473) (41,875,827,312) 27,291,311,331 65,573,314,505 16,174,944,403 26,164,532,454
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(3) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Non-derivative cash flows (Continued)

31 December 2013 Up to1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Financial assets
Cash in hand and deposits with Central

Bank 21,887,386,540 - - - - 21,887,386,540
Deposits with supervisory authority outside

Mainland China 577,415,805 - - - - 577,415,805
Deposits with other banks and financial

institutions 16,108,140,662 4,969,384,328 1,018,125,000 169,125,000 - 22,264,774,990
Placements with other banks and financial

institutions 629,283,867 281,852,980 1,625,161,707 235,647,500 - 2,771,946,054
Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss 12,926,363 - 110,925,431 617,747,225 290,131,207 1,031,730,226
Financial assets held under resale

agreements 4,521,759,327 - - - - 4,521,759,327
Loans and advances, net 12,863,154,344 7,079,595,821 37,102,057,019 20,996,581,751 8,351,699,773 86,393,088,708
Available-for-sale financial assets 712,771,073 3,377,357,068 3,143,012,220 14,591,641,830 9,476,389,643 31,301,171,834
Held-to-maturity investments 198,765,658 406,982,024 109,340,826 - 89,302,108 804,390,616
Accounts receivable investment 31,782,685,021 29,136,266,228 21,924,257,453 17,385,599,000 - 100,228,807,702
Other financial assets 363,737,642 82,362 202,934 - 3,870,565 367,893,503
Total financial assets 89,658,026,302 45,251,520,811 65,033,082,590 53,996,342,306 18,211,393,296 272,150,365,305
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(3) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Non-derivative cash flows (Continued)

31 December 2013 Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years Total

Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial

institutions (32,532,949,735) (21,931,869,140) (17,968,275,227) (20,134,875,091) - (92,567,969,193)
Placements from banks and other

financial institutions (1,109,074,448) (1,827,892,925) (595,915,830) - - (3,532,883,203)
Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss (14,084,601) (837,955) - - - (14,922,556)
Financial assets sold under repurchase

agreements (11,234,744,161) (2,973,402,086) (239,259,375) - - (14,447,405,622)

Customer deposits (55,411,596,310) (22,344,755,818) (42,631,484,306) (19,002,019,766) - (139,389,856,200)

Bonds payable - - (36,559,695) (146,238,780) (792,126,725) (974,925,200)

Other liabilities (1,313,835,690) (49,202,232) (604,680) - (2,803,689) (1,366,446,291)

Financial liabilities (101,616,284,945) (49,127,960,156) (61,472,099,113) (39,283,133,637) (794,930,414) (252,294,408,265)

Total interest sensitivity gap (11,958,258,643) (3,876,439,345) 3,560,983,477 14,713,208,669 17,416,462,882 19,855,957,040
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(3) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c) Derivative cash flows

(i) Derivatives settled on a net basis

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a net basis include interest rate forward and interest
rate swaps.

The table below analyses the Group’s derivatives held for trading that will be settled on a net
basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.

Interest rate derivative 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

3 months to 1 year - (13,529)

1 to 5 years (338,353) (1,284,349)

Total (338,353) (1,297,878)

(ii) Derivatives settled on a gross basis

Derivatives of the Group settled on gross basis includes: currency forward, currency swaps,
currency option.

The table below analyses the Group’s derivatives held for trading that will be settled on a gross
basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.

Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months Total

31 December 2014
Exchange rate

derivatives

-Inflow 11,928,572,773 10,972,027,378 1,183,285,479 24,083,885,630

-Outflow (11,964,849,079) (11,024,342,749) (1,195,542,550) (24,184,734,378)

31 December 2013
Exchange rate

derivatives
-Inflow 7,506,065,245 6,224,134,910 2,764,664,972 16,494,865,127
-Outflow (7,490,683,537) (6,228,875,205) (2,766,119,707) (16,485,678,449)
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(3) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(d) Off-balance sheet items

The table below analyses the Group’s off-balance sheet items into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At 31 December 2014 Up to 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total

Letters of guarantee 6,185,678,821 - - 6,185,678,821
Acceptances

421,877,152 721,167,168 57,332,486 1,200,376,806
Letters of credit issued 222,812,259 140,737,000 - 363,549,259
Operating lease

commitments 103,504,126 369,032,121 562,022,213 1,034,558,460
Capital commitments 18,351,588 - - 18,351,588
Shipping guarantees 242,908 - - 242,908
Total

6,952,466,854 1,230,936,289 619,354,699 8,802,757,842

At 31 December 2013 Up to 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total

Letters of guarantee 6,830,646,674 - - 6,830,646,674
Acceptances 239,136,908 455,379,281 27,249,727 721,765,916
Letters of credit issued 582,254,589 78,950,515 - 661,205,104
Operating lease

commitments 60,862,247 165,637,532 44,025,874 270,525,653
Capital commitments 27,904,664 - - 27,904,664
Shipping guarantees 556,611 - - 556,611
Total 7,741,361,693 699,967,328 71,275,601 8,512,604,622

(4) Market risk

The Group is exposed to market risks that may cause losses to the Group as a result of adverse
movements in market prices. Market risk arises from open positions in the trading and banking
books in interest rate, exchange rate, equities and commodities. Both the Bank’s trading book and
banking book face market risks. The trading book consists of financial instruments and
commodities that are free of any restrictive covenants on their tradability and held with trading
intent, and in order to or for the purpose of hedging market risk of the trading book. The banking
book consists of financial instruments not included in the trading book (including those financial
instruments purchased with surplus funds and managed in the investment book).
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(4) Market risk (Continued)

The Group’s Board of Directors, the Risk Management Committee under Board of Directors and
senior management of the Bank approve the overall market risk policies and procedures. The
Group has set up the market risk management team to monitors the Group’s market risk exposure
and reports the risk exposures and interest rate sensitivity to senior management on a regular
basis. The senior management of the Group approves the limits over the foreign currency
exposures and the limits for trading book in accordance with market risk management policies
established by the Board of Directors.

(a) Market risks measurement techniques

The Group has established structural system of limit controls including regulatory limit、position
limit and risk limit to identify, monitor and control market risks. The Group is establishing for its
trading book, based on the market condition and technical condition, Value at Risk (VaR) method
which applies to normal market condition and Stress Test of market risk in case of extremely
adverse circumstance when there are significant changes of the market.

The Group performs sensitivity analysis to assess the interest rate risk and exchange rate risk of
its trading book and bank book. That is to calculate regularly the difference (exposure) between
interest-bearing assets and liabilities which would mature in a certain period or need to be re-
priced, and then using the exposure information to perform sensitivity analysis under changing
prime rate, market interest rate and exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis provides guidance to
the adjustment of re-pricing and maturity structure of interest-bearing assets and liabilities. The
Group has established reporting system for sensitivity analysis, to report the result of sensitivity
analysis regularly to higher authorities such as the Risk Management Committee for review.

(b) Currency risk

The Group conducts the majority of its businesses in RMB, with other transactions denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. The Group manages its
exposure to currency exchange risk through management of its net foreign currency position.

The table below summarizes the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk.
Included in the table are the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the Group along with
financial guarantees and credit related commitment in RMB equivalent, categorized by the original
currency.
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13 FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(4) Market risk (Continued)

(b) Currency risk (Continued)

31 December 2014 RMB
US Dollars (RMB

equivalent)
HK Dollars(RMB

equivalent)
Others(RMB

equivalent) Total

Financial assets
Cash in hand and deposits

with Central Bank 33,573,370,058 730,680,223 231,971,301 80,935,398 34,616,956,980
Deposits with supervisory

authority outside mainland
China - - - 685,309,300 685,309,300

Deposits with other banks
and financial institutions 8,338,428,734 2,201,756,927 1,115,286,390 533,443,662 12,188,915,713

Placements with other banks
and financial institutions 2,469,675,430 122,388,202 63,109,600 32,167,514 2,687,340,746

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 717,005,989 15,358,826 2,768,906 - 735,133,721

Derivative financial assets 22,105,725 33,122,234 - - 55,227,959
financial assets held under

resale agreements 7,219,000,000 - - - 7,219,000,000

Interest receivable 1,291,707,862 198,748,435 58,619,315 10,851,419 1,559,927,031

Loans and advances, net 66,029,335,810 29,903,892,191 11,705,073,245 1,620,885,070 109,259,186,316
Available-for-sale financial

assets 31,434,950,889 995,571,685 96,831,020 - 32,527,353,594

Held-to-maturity investments - - 74,942,650 956,679,264 1,031,621,914
Accounts receivable

investments 145,072,873,086 - - - 145,072,873,086

Other assets 99,053,631 51,907,197 101,397,923 165,574,860 417,933,611

Total assets 296,267,507,214 34,253,425,920 13,450,000,350 4,085,846,487 348,056,779,971

31 December 2014 RMB
US Dollars (RMB

equivalent)
HK Dollars(RMB

equivalent)
Others(RMB

equivalent) Total

Financial liabilities

Borrowings from Central
Bank (430,000,000) - - - (430,000,000)

Deposits from other banks
and financial institutions (76,296,767,714) (391,623,343) - - (76,688,391,057)

Placements from other
banks and financial
institutions - (6,578,131,812) (828,313,500) (15,317,864) (7,421,763,176)

Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss - (187,254) (2,928,807) (2,549,345) (5,665,406)

Derivative financial liabilities (14,351,861) (4,894,386) (12,525) (57,014,294) (76,273,066)
Financial assets sold under

repurchase agreements (15,148,688,927) - - - (15,148,688,927)

Customer deposits (177,199,583,590) (13,250,570,728) (23,014,424,591) (10,720,636,795) (224,185,215,704)
Interest payable (3,662,914,764) (71,157,097) (113,708,089) (26,451,289) (3,874,231,239)
Bonds payable (2,991,509,791) - (610,293,107) - (3,601,802,898)
Other liabilities (413,763,514) (87,089,782) (89,479,051) (25,889,040) (616,221,387)

Total liabilities (276,157,580,161) (20,383,654,402) (24,659,159,670) (10,847,858,627) (332,048,252,860)

Net on-balance sheet
position 20,109,927,053 13,869,771,518 (11,209,159,320) (6,762,012,140) 16,008,527,111

Net notional amounts in
derivative financial
instruments (5,908,784,514) 17,066,915,996 (14,550,866,981) 3,291,886,751 (100,848,748)

Credit commitments 6,218,241,673 308,857,012 - 1,222,749,109 7,749,847,794
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(4) Market risk (Continued)

(b) Currency risk (Continued)

31 December 2013 RMB
US Dollars (RMB

equivalent)
HK Dollars(RMB

equivalent)
Others(RMB

equivalent) Total

Financial assets
Cash in hand and deposits

with Central Bank 21,040,628,431 506,924,926 264,601,034 72,083,300 21,884,237,691
Deposits with supervisory

authority outside mainland
China - - - 577,415,805 577,415,805

Deposits with other banks
and financial institutions 20,981,637,157 515,603,969 575,047,901 119,820,266 22,192,109,293

Placements with other banks
and financial institutions 987,726,925 1,254,095,648 385,252,700 87,782,961 2,714,858,234

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 891,291,269 - 12,926,363 - 904,217,632

Derivative financial assets 33,447,424 12,354 177,299 5,140,199 38,777,276
financial assets held under

resale agreements 4,521,100,000 - - - 4,521,100,000

Interest receivable 1,043,765,166 159,643,165 38,447,596 12,366,232 1,254,222,159

Loans and advances, net 50,693,706,458 19,454,469,136 7,522,957,825 2,253,108,556 79,924,241,975
Available-for-sale financial

assets 26,100,403,104 1,262,865,490 6,268,421 - 27,369,537,015

Held-to-maturity investments - - 74,691,850 709,569,203 784,261,053
Accounts receivable

investments 97,742,159,077 - - - 97,742,159,077

Other assets 85,750,262 29,207,781 154,756,716 92,654,463 362,369,222

Total assets 224,121,615,273 23,182,822,469 9,035,127,705 3,929,940,985 260,269,506,432

31 December 2013 RMB
US Dollars (RMB

equivalent)
HK Dollars(RMB

equivalent)
Others(RMB

equivalent) Total

Financial liabilities
Deposits from other banks

and financial institutions (89,871,375,420) (7,321) (1) - (89,871,382,742)

Placements from other
banks and financial
institutions (261,458,878) (2,979,941,325) (86,485,300) (191,766,316) (3,519,651,819)

Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss - - (13,726,836) (1,195,718) (14,922,554)

Derivative financial liabilities (19,718,591) (7,218,942) (38,294) (1,559,126) (28,534,953)

Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements (14,428,678,937) - - - (14,428,678,937)

Customer deposits (106,155,100,652) (5,502,647,106) (17,913,295,669) (6,812,521,835) (136,383,565,262)

Interest payable (2,293,351,345) (36,514,917) (73,297,375) (17,797,742) (2,420,961,379)

Bonds payable - - (608,128,741) - (608,128,741)

Other liabilities (1,082,104,219) (65,863,697) (214,276,371) (19,548,512) (1,381,792,799)

Total liabilities (214,111,788,042) (8,592,193,308) (18,909,248,587) (7,044,389,249) (248,657,619,186)

Net on-balance sheet
position 10,009,827,231 14,590,629,161 (9,874,120,882) (3,114,448,264) 11,611,887,246

Net notional amounts in
derivative financial
instruments (359,908,499) 8,431,504,651 (8,888,749,647) 826,340,173 9,186,678

Credit commitments 6,846,601,451 663,067,391 - 704,505,463 8,214,174,305



XIAMEN INTERNATIONAL BANK Co., LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts are stated in Rmb Yuan unless otherwise stated)
[English Translation For Reference Only]

- 84 -

13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(4) Market risk (Continued)

(b) Currency risk (Continued)

When the foreign currency exchange rate of RMB changes by 1% at the balance sheet date,
impacts on the Group’s income(loss) before tax arising from the above currency fluctuation is
analyzed as below:

2014 2013

+1% appreciation of foreign currencies 17,065,358 19,711,552
-1% appreciation of foreign currencies (17,065,358) (19,711,552)

In determining the exchange rate sensitivity analysis, the Group makes the general assumptions
in defining business condition and financial parameters, but have not considered the following:

(i) changes after the balance sheet date, as the analysis is performed based on the static gap at
the time of the balance sheet date;

(ii) impact of exchange rate fluctuations on the customers’ behaviors;
(iii) complicated relationship between complex structured products and foreign exchange

movements; and
(iv) impact of foreign exchange movements on market prices.

(c) Interest rate risk

Banking book interest rate risk is the risk that the banking book assets, revenue and economic
value would suffer loss or have the risk of contingent losses due to fluctuations of interest rates
and changes of interest structure. The re-pricing risk, the primary and most common interest risk,
is a result from the difference among maturity terms (as for fixed interest rate) or among the re-
pricing terms (as for floating interest rate) of the Group’s assets, liabilities and off balance sheet
commitments. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group mainly manages its exposure to the risks arising from fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates on re-pricing, fair value and cash flows. The Group’s business in
Mainland China is operated under the interest rate scheme regulated by the PBOC. Based on
experience, it is normal practice for the interest rates of both interest-bearing assets and liabilities
to move in the same direction (but the extent of changes is not necessarily the same). The Group
controls its interest rate risk primarily through controlling the distribution of the maturity date or re-
pricing date of loans and deposits and the asset-liability re-pricing gap etc.

According to the PBOC regulations, the lower limit of 0.7 of the interest rates on loans offered by
financial institutions was cancelled on July 2013 and the interest rate for RMB discounted bills is
determined by the market. The interest rate of RMB deposit is allowed to float above the prime
rate. As at November 2014, the upper limit of the floated range was adjusted from 1.1 to 1.2.

The tables below summarize the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk. It includes the Group’s
assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or
maturity dates.
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(4) Market risk (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

31 December 2014 Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years
Non-interest

bearing Total

Financial assets
Cash in hand and deposits with

Central Bank 33,566,142,757 - - - - 1,050,814,223 34,616,956,980
Deposits with supervisory

authority outside mainland
China 685,309,300 - - - - - 685,309,300

Deposits with banks and other
financial institutions 6,365,299,333 276,000,000 1,850,000,000 - - 3,697,616,380 12,188,915,713

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions 2,130,675,721 407,465,025 149,200,000 - - - 2,687,340,746

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 2,381,794 59,501,544 215,019,633 458,230,750 - - 735,133,721

Derivative financial assets - - - - - 55,227,959 55,227,959
Financial assets held under

resale agreements 7,219,000,000 - - - - - 7,219,000,000

Interest receivable - - - - - 1,559,927,031 1,559,927,031
Loans and advances to

customers, net 24,024,571,367 25,032,324,817 52,582,137,256 7,008,668,215 275,788,925 335,695,736 109,259,186,316
Available-for-sale financial
assets 2,032,796,328 5,655,470,604 3,635,485,824 16,729,041,455 4,098,367,283 376,192,100 32,527,353,594

Held-to-maturity investments 245,057,622 375,108,942 336,512,700 - 74,942,650 - 1,031,621,914

Accounts receivable investments 9,467,811,717 83,073,776,004 37,921,012,004 13,752,569,538 - 857,703,823 145,072,873,086

Other assets - - - - - 417,933,611 417,933,611

Total assets 85,739,045,939 114,879,646,936 96,689,367,417 37,948,509,958 4,449,098,858 8,351,110,863 348,056,779,971
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(4) Market risk (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

31 December 2014 Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years
Non-interest

bearing Total

Financial liabilities

Borrowings from Central Bank - - (430,000,000) - - - (430,000,000)

Deposits from banks and other
financial institutions

(16,558,567,136) (35,904,066,578) (23,225,750,000) (1,000,000,000) - (7,343) (76,688,391,057)

Placements from banks and
other financial institutions

(3,294,177,913) (2,627,631,092) (1,499,954,171) - - - (7,421,763,176)

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (3,961,673) (1,703,733) - - - - (5,665,406)

Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - (76,273,066) (76,273,066)

Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements

(6,744,220,000) (5,695,568,927) (2,708,900,000) - - - (15,148,688,927)

Customer deposits (81,034,103,993) (40,598,846,286) (79,279,777,235) (21,316,411,314) (1,940,000,000) (16,076,876) (224,185,215,704)

Interest payable - - - - - (3,874,231,239) (3,874,231,239)

Bonds payable - - - - (3,601,802,898) - (3,601,802,898)

Other liabilities - - - - - (616,221,387) (616,221,387)

Financial liabilities (107,635,030,715) (84,827,816,616) (107,144,381,406) (22,316,411,314) (5,541,802,898) (4,582,809,911) (332,048,252,860)

Total interest sensitivity gap (21,895,984,776) 30,051,830,320 (10,455,013,989) 15,632,098,644 (1,092,704,040) 3,768,300,952 16,008,527,111
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(4) Market risk (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

31 December 2013 Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years
Non-interest

bearing Total

Financial assets
Cash in hand and deposits with

Central Bank 20,882,106,428 - - - - 1,002,131,263 21,884,237,691
Deposits with supervisory

authority outside mainland
China 577,415,805 - - - - - 577,415,805

Deposits with banks and other
financial institutions 15,160,671,495 4,936,184,500 1,000,000,000 150,000,000 - 945,253,298 22,192,109,293

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions 628,991,309 280,636,887 1,596,230,038 209,000,000 - - 2,714,858,234

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 12,926,363 - 108,950,700 547,891,109 234,449,460 - 904,217,632

Derivative financial assets - - - - - 38,777,276 38,777,276
Financial assets held under

resale agreements 4,521,100,000 - - - - - 4,521,100,000

Interest receivable - - - - - 1,254,222,159 1,254,222,159
Loans and advances to

customers, net 19,060,792,851 10,176,663,945 31,572,956,781 16,765,174,985 2,328,167,841 20,485,572 79,924,241,975

Available-for-sale financial
assets

413,657,915 6,996,337,632 3,097,223,065 8,801,051,382 7,657,688,600 403,578,421 27,369,537,015

Held-to-maturity investments 198,446,783 404,382,894 106,739,526 - 74,691,850 - 784,261,053

Account receivable investments 30,297,117,793 29,010,553,828 21,533,954,527 15,419,600,000 - 1,480,932,929 97,742,159,077

Other assets 21,384,971 - - - - 340,984,251 362,369,222

Total assets 91,774,611,713 51,804,759,686 59,016,054,637 41,892,717,476 10,294,997,751 5,486,365,169 260,269,506,432
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(4) Market risk (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

31 December 2013 Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years
Non-interest

bearing Total

Financial liability
Deposits from banks and other

financial institutions
(32,527,753,977) (21,837,241,095) (17,648,398,013) (17,857,982,342) - (7,315) (89,871,382,742)

Placements from banks and
other financial institutions

(1,545,902,293) (1,384,667,177) (589,082,349) - - - (3,519,651,819)

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (14,084,600) (837,954) - - - - (14,922,554)

Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - (28,534,953) (28,534,953)

Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements

(11,233,106,000) (2,960,572,937) (235,000,000) - - - (14,428,678,937)

Customer deposits (55,258,125,062) (22,241,298,223) (41,821,914,435) (16,976,940,352) - (85,287,190) (136,383,565,262)

Interest payable - - - - - (2,420,961,379) (2,420,961,379)

Bonds payable - - - - (608,128,741) - (608,128,741)

Other liabilities - - - - - (1,381,792,799) (1,381,792,799)

Total financial liabilities (100,578,971,932) (48,424,617,386) (60,294,394,797) (34,834,922,694) (608,128,741) (3,916,583,636) (248,657,619,186)

Total interest sensitivity gap (8,804,360,219) 3,380,142,300 (1,278,340,160) 7,057,794,782 9,686,869,010 1,569,781,533 11,611,887,246
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(4) Market risk (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The table below illustrates the potential impact on the Group’s net interest income in the coming
year of a parallel shift of 100 basis points in each currency’s yield curve as at 31 December 2014.
According to the due date of the contracts, most of the financial assets held for trading at 31
December 2013 are due over one year. Nevertheless, the Group treated financial assets held for
trading as those due within one month when preparing the analysis of the potential impact on the
Group’s net interest income by a parallel shift in each currency’s yield curve based on the
following consideration: since there exists an active trading market for these bonds, they are of
high liquidity and thus the Group could flexibly manage its interest risks.

Net interest income
2014 2013

+ 100 basis point upward parallel move in all yield curves 7,109,132 (52,868,066)
- 100 basis point downward parallel move in all yield curves (7,109,132) 52,868,066

In determining the interest rate sensitivity analysis, the Group makes the general assumptions in
defining business condition and financial parameters but have not considered the following:

(i)changes after the balance sheet date, as the analysis is performed based on the static gap at
the time of the balance sheet date;
(ii)impact of interest rate fluctuations on the customers’ behaviors;
(iii)complicated relationship between complex structured products and interest rate movements;
(iv)impact of interest rate movements on market prices; and
(v)impact of interest rate fluctuation on off-balance sheet items.
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(5) Fair value

(a) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value mainly represent cash on hand and deposits with Central Bank, deposits with other banks
and financial institutions, placements with other banks and financial institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, accounts receivable
investment, loans and advances, held-to-maturity investments, deposits from other banks and financial institutions, placements from other banks
and financial institutions, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements and customer deposits.

Except for financial assets and liabilities listed below, the carrying amount of the other financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value is a
reasonable approximation of their fair value.

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Book value Fair value
Unrealized

gains/losses Book value Fair value
Unrealized

gains/losses
Financial liabilities

Customer deposits (224,185,215,704) (224,609,141,241) (423,925,537) (136,383,565,262) (136,467,410,068) (83,844,806)

Bonds payable (3,601,802,898) (3,607,611,107) (5,808,209) (608,128,741) (608,128,741) -

Total (227,787,018,602) (228,216,752,348) (429,733,746) (136,991,694,003) (137,075,538,809) (83,844,806)

The fair value of secondary capital bonds are determined based on the public information published by Wind Information Co., Ltd and the fair value
measurement is classified as level 2. The fair value of fixed rate HKD subordinated bonds and customer deposits, which is classified as level 3, is
determined by the present value based on contractual future cash flow discount with the interest rate under the same contractual terms condition.
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(5) Fair value (Continued)

(b) Financial asset and liability measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2014, the financial assets measured at fair value and classified in three levels
are analyzed below:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

-Bonds held for trading - 686,354,421 - 686,354,421

-Interbank deposits - 48,779,300 - 48,779,300

Available-for-sale financial
assets

-Available-for-sale bonds - 32,137,006,659 14,154,835 32,151,161,494

-Available-for-sale equity
instruments - - 376,192,100 376,192,100

Derivative financial assets - 55,227,959 - 55,227,959

Financial liabilities
Financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss - (5,665,406) - (5,665,406)

Derivative financial liabilities - (76,273,066) - (76,273,066)

As at 31 December 2013, the financial assets measured at fair value andclassified in three levels are
analyzed below:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

-Bonds held for trading - 904,217,632 - 904,217,632

Available-for-sale financial
assets

-Available-for-sale bonds - 26,952,068,959 13,889,635 26,965,958,594

-Available-for-sale equity
instruments - - 403,578,421 403,578,421

Derivative financial assets - 38,777,276 - 38,777,276

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss - (14,922,554) - (14,922,554)

Derivative financial liabilities - (28,534,953) - (28,534,953)
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(5) Fair value (Continued)

(b) Financial asset and liability measured at fair value (Continued)

The fair value of a financial instrument that is traded in an active market is determined at the quoted
price in the active market. As for a financial instrument that is not traded in an active market, its fair
value is determined by using valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow model and
comparable corporation model. Inputs to valuation techniques mainly include risk-free and
benchmark rate, foreign currency exchange rate, the liquidity premium, EBITDA multiplier and
discount of lacking in liquidity. Valuation techniques include using prices of recent market
transactions between knowledgeable and willing parties, reference to the current fair value of
another financial asset that is substantially the same with this instrument, and discounted cash flow
analysis. Inputs to valuation techniques include prepayment rates, rates of estimated credit losses,
and interest rates or discount rates.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale
bonds

Available-for-sale
equity instruments Total

1 January 2013 16,152,835 368,681,590 384,834,425
Losses recognized in profit or loss (2,263,200) - (2,263,200)
Gains recognized in other
comprehensive income - 34,896,831 34,896,831
31 December 2013 13,889,635 403,578,421 417,468,056
Gains recognized in profit or loss 265,200 - 265,200
Losses recognized in other
comprehensive income - (27,386,321) (27,386,321)
31 December 2014 14,154,835 376,192,100 390,346,935

The total loss recognized in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 that are attributable
to level 3 financial assets held by the Group as at 31 December 2014 amounted to RMB 265,200
(31 December 2013: RMB 2,263,200).

The fair value of available-for-sale bonds classified in level 3 is obtained from Lliquidx. The valuation
technique approach make reference to the prices of recent market transactions between willing
parties.

The fair value of level 3 available-for-sale equity instrument is determined by using discounted cash
flow model or comparable market method.
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13 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(6) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

• To comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the markets where the entities
within the Group operate;
• To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for equity holders and benefits for other stakeholders; and
• To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

CBRC promulgated a revised capital requirement “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional)”
in 2012 which was put into practice from 1 January 2013. The original capital requirement has been
abandoned since then.

According to the "Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional)"(the "CRCC"), the CAR
requirements of commercial banks include: minimum capital requirement, additional capital
surcharge on systemically important banks (SIBs), conservation capital buffer requirement, counter-
cyclical capital requirement, as well as the capital requirement under Pillar II. Pursuant to the CRCC,
the core tier-one capital adequacy ratio, tier-one capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio
should be no less than 5%, 6% and 8%, respectively. Domestic SIBs should meet the additional
capital surcharge of 1%, which would be fulfilled by core tier-one capital. At the same time, according
to the CBRC’s “Notice of Transitional Arrangements for the Implementation of the ‘Regulation
Governing Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisional)’”, Core Tier-one capital reserve requirements,
will be introduced gradually during the transitional period. In addition, if the counter-cyclical capital
requirement or the capital requirement under Pillar II is required by regulators, commercial bank
should follow the rules and requirements of CRCC, and accomplish it by the due date.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored by the Group’s management, deploying
techniques based on the guidelines developed by the CBRC, for supervisory purposes. The required
information is filed with the CBRC on a quarterly basis.

The tables below summarize the core tier-one capital adequacy ratio, tier-one capital adequacy ratio
and capital adequacy ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2014. The Group complied with the
capital requirements as required by CBRC.

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio 8.17% 9.78%

Tier-one capital adequacy ratio 8.17% 9.78%

Capital adequacy ratio 10.60% 11.37%

Risk-weighted asset in total 189,120,638,056 109,176,426,500

Net core tie-one capital 15,446,091,463 10,674,247,300

Net tier-one capital 15,446,091,463 10,674,247,300

Net capital 20,043,276,749 12,408,228,400


